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ABOUT THE COMPANY

Triarc is a holding company
and, through its subsidiaries,
the franchisor of the Arby’s®
restaurant system and an
operator of 239 Arby’s restau-
rants located in the United
States. Qur Class A Common
shares are traded on the
New York Stock Exchange
under the ticker symbol TRY.
With approximately
3,400 restaurants worldwide,

Arby’s is the largest restaurant

system specializing in the
roast beef sandwich segment
of the quick service restau-
rant industry in the United
States. Arby’s is also the ninth
largest quick service restau-
rant chain in the United
States.

In addition to various
oven-roasted roast beef sand-

wiches, Arby’s also offers an

SELECTED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(In thousands except per share amounts)

Revenues, investment income and other income
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations

Net income

Diluted income (loss) per share:

Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Net income

Cash, cash equivalents and investments®

Total assets
Long-term debt
Stockholders’ equity

Weighted-average common shares outstanding

extensive menu of chicken,
turkey and ham sandwiches,
side dishes and salads,
including its Market Fresh®

premium sandwiches. Arby’s

also offers franchisees the

opportunity to multi-brand

at Arby’s locations with

T.J. Cinnamons® gourmet

cinnamon rolls and coffees.
Triarc currently has

in excess of $600 million in

cash, cash equivalents and

investments. The Company
is reviewing its options,
including acquisitions,
addirional share repurchases
and investments, with

the goal of further increasing

shareholder value.

$137,146 $ 98,773
8,966 (9,757)
43,450 11,100
52,416 1,343

$ .40 $ (.48)
1.91 .54

§ 231 $ .06
$694,387 $667,987
868,409 968,891
288,955 352,700
332,397 332,742
21,532 20,446

(1) You should refer to Selected Financial Data and the Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes conrained elsewhere in this Annual Report

for discussion of the factors thar impacted Triarc’s results.

(2) Includes restricted cash equivalents as well as both current and non-current investments and is net of both securities sold with an obligation to pur-
chase and investments held in deferred compensation trusts. You should refer to the Consolidated Balance Sheets and Notes 6 and 8 to the Consolidated

Financial Statements contained elsewhere in this Annual Report for the amounts of these items.
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For this year’s annual report, we decided to
showcase several key initiatives underway at Arby’s®. Working closely with
franchisees, Arby’s management has successfully repositioned and grown the
Arby’s brand. Today, Arby’s is about delicious, fresh, oven roasted food served
in an inviting, convenient and friendly environment.

Arby’s continued to post positive results in 2002. Higher sales of Market
Fresh® premium sandwiches, increased national advertising and net new store
openings all combined to boost results.

For 2003, the Arby’s system has developed a number of initiatives,
including new Market Fresh premium sandwiches, new “artisan” breads, new
equipment technologies and advertising, which we believe should further
enhance Arby’s “cut above” brand positioning and result in continued growth.

The Arby’s family is also committed to making a difference in its commu-
nities by helping families in need and their children through active participa-

tion in a number of charitable events and programs.




Arbys® first “Restaurant of the Future” opened in Allentoum, Pennsylvania, in November 2002. The result is hotter, faster, fresher food in an mwtzng environment.
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Driven by the desire to elevate the customer experience, Arby’s® challenged a multi-
disciplinary team of food technologists, ergonomic engineers, equipment designers, restaurant owners and consumer
researchers to reinvent the Arby’s restaurant. Arby’s modernization effort is all about the future, and meeting and
exceeding the needs of the customer of the 21st century. The full program includes across-the-board changes from
restaurant image to technology, which ultimately will alter and enhance the customer experience. The result is hotter,
faster, fresher food, in an inviting environment that features the latest trends in décor. The first Arby’s “Restaurant of

the Future”, located in Allentown, Pennsylvania, opened its doors for business in mid-November 2002.

Top: Arbys® logo underscores

the pride of our employees and their
contribution to building its brand
equity by delivering to customers
quality food and a quality dining

experience.

Center: Arbys® “Restaurant of the
Future” features the latest decorative

trends.

Bottom: With its upscale dining
room accented in earthy tones, soft
lighting and upholstered booths
and chairs, Arbys® “Restaurant of
the Future” offers a quality dining

experience.
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New limited-time-only Italian
Beef n’ Provolone features Arbys®
signature roast beef marinated in
Italian seasoning and ropped
with grilled onions and provolone

cheese on a baguette roll.

Arby’s Marker Fresh® line of
premium sandwiches has been

a real hit with customers, helping
to solidify Arby's as an adult
fast-food leader.

Unlike other restaurant
chains that fry or grill, Arby’s® roast beef is—and always
has been—oven roasted in our restaurants for three
full hours. In today’s environment, where consumers are
looking for high-quality food they can feel good about
eating, Arby’s offers warm, fresh-from-the-oven roast
beef sandwiches on a wide variety of bakery-soft breads,
as well as our highly popular sliced, fresh-to-order
turkey, chicken and ham Market Fresh® premium
sandwiches. To underscore its core brand equity of oven
roasting, Arby’s has launched a new national advertising
campaign featuring an animated character, Oven Mitt™,
In order to further connect with customers, Oven
Mitt features the entertaining voice of Tom Arnold.
Emotional about food that is “Oven Fresh... Oven
Good,” Oven Mitt sings to Arby’s new Iralian Beef n’
Provolone sandwich and gives motivational speeches

to his fellow crew members.

Excited about food that is “Oven
Fresh... Oven Good,” Oven Min™
praises Arbys® premium sandwiches,

while a fellow crew member watches.



Calvin Harris, Arbys® Executive Chef, savors an upcoming Market Fresh® sandwich in Arbys Ft. Lauderdale, Florida test kitchen.




Michael Howe, Arbys® President and CEQ, and other Arby’s executives work on a Habitat for Humanity home. 6

Volunteerism and charitable JCajgisicS
component of the Arby’s® culture.
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Volunteerism and charitable activities have long been

Since 1996

'America's Children $8,800,000

fight Million Eight Hundred Thousand st

ia part of the Arby’s® culture. Established in 1986, the Arby’s Foundation® is a not-for-

profit organization focused on making a valuable difference in the education and

l

‘development of the youth of America through its support of Big Brothers Big Sisters of

‘America and the Boys and Girls Clubs of America. Activities include one-on-one

mentoring and educational adventure programs for children in need, volunteering for

community building projects, providing college scholarships and an annual 20-city

charity golf tour. Since its inception, the Arby’s Foundation, along with the Arby’s

system, has raised approximately $10.5 million for national and local programs.

Top: The Arby’s Charity Tour®, Center: Brooke Bennett, 2002 U.S.
a series of golf tournaments and Olympian, shows off her gold medal
special events held annually at an Arbys® “Values lesson.”

throughout the United States, raised
over $2.6 million in 2002 for local

youth-mentoring organizations.

Bottom: Taught by Olympic, NBA
and NFL celebrity volunteers, 65
Arbys® “Values lessons” reached more
than 15,000 children in 2002,
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We were able
to purchase Sybra
at an attractive

valuation for our

shareholders.
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in 2002, we carefully evaluated a number of potential
acquisitions and completed the purchase of Sybra, Arby’s® second largest franchisee and
the owner of 239 Arby’s restaurants.

In addition, Arby’s continued to post positive results in 2002 as a result of the
continued success of its Market Fresh® premium sandwiches, more national advertising
and net new store openings.

Finally, we continued to repurchase additional shares of our common stock and to
prudently manage our significant cash and investments with the goal of maximizing

shareholder value at Triarc.

SYBRA ACQUISITION In December 2002, we completed the purchase of Sybra, Inc.,
the second largest franchisee of the Arby’s brand. Sybra was one of the best performers
in the Arby’s franchise system in 2002. Because Sybra’s former parent was in Chapter 11
during 2002 and the sales process was complicated, we were able to purchase Sybra at
an attractive valuation for our shareholders.

Sybra owns and operates 239 Arby’s restaurants located primarily in Michigan,
Texas, Pennsylvania, New Jersey and Florida. We are delighted to welcome Sybra to the
Triarc family and our Arby’s team is working closely with Sybra’s experienced manage-
ment to ensure a successful integration.

We believe that the Sybra acquisition solidifies Triarc’s commitment to the Arby’s
brand and the Arby’s system. We envision our ownership of Sybra as presenting
opportunities to demonstrate the benefits of restaurant remodeling and menu diversifica-
tion. Longer term, we believe that our ownership of Sybra should act as a catalyst to both
new and existing franchisees, encouraging them to build new units in new and under-
penetrated markets. Accordingly, we believe that our ownership of these restaurants will

increase the value of the Arby’s brand and thus enhance Triarc shareholder value.

ARBY'S 2002 PERFORMANCE Despite a difficult economy and an increasingly
competitive QSR environment, Arby’s posted solid financial results in 2002; reflecting
the favorable impact of higher sales of Arby’s Market Fresh premium sandwiches,

spurred in part by more national advertising in 2002, as well as net new store openings.



Nelson Peltz, Chairman and Chief Ex

In 2002, Arby'’s
domestic compara-
tive store results
increased 2.2% —
the sixth year

in a row in which
comparative store

results improved.

ecutive Officer (left) and Peter W May, President and Chief Operating Officer
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In 2002, Arby’s domestic comparative store results increased 2.2% — the sixth year
in a row in which comparative store results improved. In 2002, 116 new Arby’s units
were opened and 64 units (generally, underperforming stores) were closed, resulting in
a total of over 3,400 Arby’s units in operation worldwide at year-end 2002. Average unit
volumes at newly opened domestic stores continued to be above the 2002 system
average of approximately $843,000, which was up 3.5% from 2001. As of December
29, 2002, Arby’s had commitments from franchisees to build approximately 550 new
units through 2010.

Despite recent challenges, including the adverse effects of severe weather, industry
discounting and sluggish economic conditions, Arby’s will continue to focus on growing
its existing products, new product offerings, continued national advertising and new
unit openings.

We are very excited about Arby’s new product initiatives, including the introduction
of taste improvements in our signature roast beef and the use of “artisan” breads. We
believe that Arby’s new sandwiches can effectively bridge the gap between fast food and
fast casual offerings, thus broadening Arby’s consumer appeal.

Our Arby’s team is also working closely with franchisees on new technology and
advertising initiatives which we believe will further enhance Arby’s “cut above” brand

equity and promote sales growth.




Our share repur-
chase program is an
important tool
which allows us to
proactively respond
when we believe the
market is under-

valuing our stock.

Our principal
cbjective with any
acquisition is signif-
icant value creation.
We believe we

must be disciplined
buyers to achieve

superior returns.

Finally, Arby’s continues to be a very strong supporter of education and develop-

ment of America’s youth through the Arby’s Foundation and Arby’s family of franchisees’
commitment to Big Brothers Big Sisters and Boys and Girls Clubs. We at Triarc are

proud to support these worthy causes.

SHARE REPURCHASES Our share repurchase program is an important tool which
allows us to proactively respond when we believe the market is undervaluing our stock.

Over the last five years, we have spent approximately $300 million to repurchase
our stock, including shares repurchased through our stock repurchase programs, our
1999 “Dutch Auction” self-tender and the repurchase of all of our then-outstanding
Class B Common Shares.

During our reporting year 2002, while our stock price increased 6.5%, we pur-
chased approximately 290,000 shares at an aggregate cost of approximately $7 million.
Additionally, in January 2003, our board of directors extended the current Class A
Common Stock repurchase program until January 2004 and replenished the amount
available under the program to permit the Company to purchase up to $50 million of
Class A Common Stock.

Looking ahead, we will repurchase stock when and if market conditions warrant

and to the extent legally permissible.

ACQUISITION STRATEGIES Our principal objective with any acquisition is signifi-
cant value creation. We believe we must be disciplined buyers to achieve superior
returns. Although we continue to focus on consumer products, restaurants, and service
companies, where we believe opportunities exist for Triarc, we also look for undervalued
companies in other industries.

We have an experienced team of operating, financial, legal and tax professionals
with multiple, complementary acquisition and operating skills and an extensive network
of relationships.

During the due diligence process, we focus on many factors, but a key consideration
is always a target’s ability to generate significant free cash flow under our control.

Once we have completed an acquisition, we work to add value with “hands on,” entre-
preneurial management.

In financing transactions, we have had success with many creative uses of leverage.
We also think it is important to maintain liquidity to ensure flexibility and to protect

against “the downside.”
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We are continuously
evaluating strategic
options which may

bolster value.

In 2002, we reviewed many acquisition opportunities and, as we enter 2003, we

believe our “deal flow” of opportunities remains strong.

PRESERVING AND ENHANCING SHAREHOLDER VALUE Since the sale of the
Snapple Beverage Group and the securitization of Arby’s North American franchise royal-
ties and fees in 2000, we have prudently managed the significant proceeds generated
from these transactions. OQur goal is to preserve principal and to maximize liquidity. That
way, we can rapidly seize opportunities which we believe can enhance shareholder value.
In addition to maintaining our liquidity in order to facilitate acquisitions and share
repurchases and to working closely with our colleagues at Arby’s to ensure the brand’s
future growth, we are continuously evaluating strategic options which may bolster value.
In other words, we believe it is important to review an array of means by which to max-

imize value at Triarc.

LOOKING AHEAD In closing, we wish to acknowledge the excellent work of our
colleagues. Working closely with the franchisees, the Arby’s team continues to develop
successful growth strategies. We are confident that Arby’s future is bright. Our corporate
team remains focused on evaluating options that will enhance shareholder value.

We believe that their disciplined work will yield future opportunities from which all
shareholders will benefit.

Finally, we note with sadness the passing of our director, Jeffrey S. Silverman, in the
fall of 2002. Jeftrey was a very commirtted director and provided Triarc with excellent
advice and counsel. He was also a wonderful friend and we miss him greatly.

We appreciate your continued ownership of Triarc and look forward to updating

you on our future progress.

Sincerely,

I

Nelson Peltz Peter W. May
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer President and Chief Operating Officer
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NOTE CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements in this Annual Report that are not historical facts constitute “forward-looking
statements” under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such forward-looking

statements are based on our current expectations, speak only as of the date of this Annual Report

and are susceptible to a number of risks, uncertainties and other factors. Our actual results, per-
formance and achievements may differ materially from any future results, performance or achieve- ‘
ments expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. For those statements, the

Company claims the protection of the safe harbor for forward-looking statements contained in the

Act. See “Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements and Projections” and Item 1.

Business-Risk Factors, appearing in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended

December 29, 2002, included herein.

NOTE CONCERNING INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Arby’s®, T.J. Cinnamons®, Pasta Connection®, Market Fresh®, Sidekickers®, Arby’s Market
Fresh™, Oven Mitt™ and related logos are registered or pending trademarks of Arby’s, Inc. or its
subsidiaries, We also have other registered marks, service marks, trademarks and tradenames,
trademark applications and other phrases related to our brands’ products, services and concepts

that are used in this Annual Report.
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approximately $396,516,780 as of June 30, 2002. There were 20,448,722 shares of the registrant’s Class A
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Items 10, 11, 12 and 13 of Part III of this 10-K incorporates information by reference from an
amendment hereto or to the registrant’s definitive proxy statement, in either case which will be filed no
later than 120 days after December 29, 2002.

* As filed March 28, 2003 with the Securities and Exchange Commission, except does not include
Exhibit 99.1. In addition, does not include Part III of this Form 10-K which is to be incorporated by
reference to an amendment to this Form 10-K or to the Registrant’s definitive proxy statement, in either
case which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission no later than April 28, 2003.
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Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements and Projections

Certain statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including statements under “Item 1. Business”
and “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” that are
not historical facts, including most importantly, information concerning possible or assumed future results of
operations of Triarc Companies, Inc. and its subsidiaries and those statements preceded by, followed by, or that
include the words “may,” “believes,” “expects,” “anticipates,” or the negation thereof, or similar expressions,
constitute “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995. All statements which address operating performance, events or developments that are expected ot
anticipated to occur in the future, including statements relating to revenue growth, earnings per share growth
or statements expressing general optimism about future operating results, are forward-looking statements
within the meaning of the Reform Act. These forward-looking statements are based on our current
expectations, speak only as of the date of this Form 10-K and are susceptible to a number of risks, uncertainties
and other factors. Our actual results, performance and achievements may differ materially from any future
results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. For those
statements, we claim the protection of the safe-harbor for forward-looking statements contained in the Reform
Act. Many important factors could affect our future results and could cause those results to differ materially
from those expressed in the forward-looking statements contained herein. Such factors include, but are not
limited to, the following;

e Competition, including pricing pressures, the potential impact of competitors’ new units on sales
by Arby's® restaurants and consumers’ perceptions of the relative quality, variety and value of the
food products offered;

& Success of operating initiatives;

& Development and operating costs;

e Advertising and promotional efforts;

e Brand awareness;

e The existence or absence of positive or adverse publicity;
e Market acceptance of new product offerings;

e New product and concept development by competitors;

@ Changing trends in consumer tastes and preferences (including changes resulting from health or
safety concerns with respect to the consumption of beef, french fries or other foods or the effects of
food-borne illnesses) and in spending and demographic patterns;

@

The business and financial viability of key franchisees;

4]

Availability, location and terms of sites for restaurant development by the Company and its
franchisees;

@

The abilicy of franchisees to open new restaurants in accordance with their development
commitments, including the ability of franchisees to finance restaurant development;

® Delays in opening new restaurants or completing remodels;
e Anticipated and unanticipated restaurant closures by the Company and its franchisees;

o The ability to identify, attract and retain potential franchisees with sufficient experience and
financial resources to develop and operate Arby's restaurants;

e Changes in business strategy or development plans;

© Quality of the Company’s and franchisees’ management;

® Availability, terms and deployment of capital;

© Business abilities and judgment of the Company’s and franchisees’ personnel;

® Availability of qualified personnel to the Company and to franchisees;

[+]

Labor and employee benefit costs;



© Availability and cost of energy, raw materials, ingredients and supplies;

© The potential impact that interruptions in the distribution of supplies of food and other products
to Arby’s restaurants could have on sales at Company-owned restaurants and the royalties that
Arby’s receives from franchisees;

© Availability and cost of workers’ compensation and general liability premiums and claims
experience;

e Changes in national, regional and local economic, business or political conditions in the countries
and other territories in which the Company and its franchisees operate;

e Changes in government regulations, including franchising laws, accounting standards, environ-
mental laws, minimum wage rates and taxation requirements;

© The costs, uncertainties and other effects of legal, environmental and administrative proceedings;

e The impact of general economic conditions on consumer spending, including a slower consumer
economy and the effects of war or terrorist activities;

e Adverse weather conditions; and

o Cther risks and uncertainties affecting the Company and its subsidiaries referred to in this Form
10-K (see especially “Item 1. Business—Risk Factors” and “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”) and in our other current and periodic
filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, all of which are difficult or impossible to
predict accurately and many of which are beyond our control.

We will not undertake and specifically decline any obligation to publicly release the result of any revisions
which may be made to any forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of such
statements or to reflect the occurrence of anticipated or unanticipated events. In addition, it is our policy
generally not to make any specific projections as to future earnings, and we do not endorse any projections
regarding future performance that may be made by third parties.

Item 1. Business.

Introduction

We are a holding company and, through our subsidiaries, the franchisor of the Arby’s restaurant system
and an operator of 239 Arby's restaurants located in the United States. Qur corporate predecessor was
incorporated in Chio in 1929. We reincorporated in Delaware in June 1994. Qur principal executive offices are
located at 280 Park Avenue, New York, New York 10017 and our telephone number is (212) 451-3000. The
Company makes its annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on
Form 8-K, and amendments to such reports, available, free of charge, on its website as soon as reasonably
practicable after such reports are electronically filed with, or furnished to, the Securities and Exchange
Commission. Cur website address is: www.triarc.com. Information contained on our website is not part of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Business &trategy

The key elements of our business strategy include (i) using our resources to grow our restaurant
franchising business and our restaurant operations, (ii) evaluating and making various acquisitions and business
combinations, whether in the restaurant industry or otherwise, (iii) building strong operating management
teams for each of our current and future businesses and (iv) providing strategic leadership and financial
resources to enable these management teams to develop and implement specific, growth-oriented business
plans. The implementation of this business strategy may result in increases in expenditures for, among other
things, acquisitions and, over time, marketing and advertising. See “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” It is our policy to publicly announce an acquisition
or business combination only after an agreement with respect to such acquisition or business combination has
been reached.

2




The Company’s cash, cash equivalents and investments (including restricted cash, but excluding
investments related to deferred compensation arrangements) at December 29, 2002 totaled approximately $668
million. At such date, the Company’s consolidated indebtedness was approximately $387 million, including
approximately $255 million of debt issued by a subsidiary of Arby’s, Inc. and $98 million of debt issued by
Sybra, Inc. None of the debt of the Arby's subsidiary or Sybra has been guaranteed by Triarc. The Company’s
cash, cash equivalents and investments (other than approximately $30.6 million of restricted cash) do not secure
such debt. The Company is evaluating its options for the use of this significant cash, cash equivalents and
investment position, including acquisitions, share repurchases and investments.

Acquisition of Sybra, Inc.

On December 27, 2002, the Company completed the acquisition of Sybra, Inc., the second largest
franchisee of the Arby’s® brand, pursuant to a plan of reorganization previously confirmed by the United States
Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York on November 25, 2002.

Sybra, Inc., formerly a subsidiary of I.C.H. Corporation which filed for reorganization under Chapter 11 of
the Bankruptcy Code in February 2002, owned and operated, as of December 27, 2002, 239 Arby’s restaurants
in nine states located primarily in Michigan, Texas, Pennsylvania, Florida and New Jersey. In fiscal years 2001
and 2002, Sybra had revenues of approximately $200 million and $209 million, respectively.

In return for 100% of the equity of a reorganized Sybra, the Company paid approximately $8.3 million to
ICH's creditors. In addition, the Company invested approximately $14.2 million in Sybra and Sybra remains
exclusively liable for its long-term debt and capital lease obligations, which aggregated approximately $98
million as of December 29, 2002. The Company has also made available to Sybra a $5.0 million standby
financing facility for each of three years (up to $15.0 million in the aggregate) to fund any operating shortfalls
of Sybra.

Sale of Beverage Business

As previously reported, on October 25, 2000, we completed the sale of our beverage business by selling all
the outstanding capital stock of Snapple Beverage Group, Inc. and Royal Crown Company, Inc. to affiliates of
Cadbury Schweppes plc. The purchase and sale agreement for the transaction provided for a post-closing
adjustment, the amount of which is in dispute. Cadbury initially stated chat it believed that it was entitled to
receive from us a post-closing adjustment of approximately $27.6 million, and we initially stated, on the other
hand, that we believed that we were entitled to receive from Cadbury a post-closing adjustment of
approximately $5.6 million, in each case plus interest from the closing date. An atbitrator was selected by
Triarc and Cadbury for the purpose of determining the amount of the post-closing adjustment. On
September 6, 2002 we filed a submission with the arbitrator in which we stated that we believed that we are
entitled to receive from Cadbury a post-closing adjustment of approximately $0.8 million, plus interest from
the closing date. On October 21, 2002, Cadbury filed a submission with the arbitrator in which it stated that
it believes that it is entitled to receive from us a post-clesing adjustment of approximately $23.2 million, plus
interest from the closing date. In response to Cadbury’s October 21, 2002 submission, on December 3, 2002,
we filed a reply submission with the arbitrator in which we stated that we believed that neither party was
entitled to a post-closing adjustment. Subsequent to the filing of our reply submission, Cadbury requested the
arbitrator to convene a hearing for the purposes of taking witness testimony. By a letter to the arbicrator dated
December 20, 2002, we opposed such request. A decision on Cadbury's request for a hearing has been deferred
by the arbitrator pending review of the parties’ submissions. We currently expect the post-closing adjustment
process to be completed during 2003.

Fiscal Year

We use a 52/53 week fiscal year convention for Triarc and our subsidiaries whereby our fiscal year ends
each year on the Sunday that is closest to December 31 of that year. Each fiscal year generally is comprised of
four 13 week fiscal quarters, although in some years the fourth quarter represents a 14 week period.




Business Segment

Restaurant Franchising and Operations (Arby’s)

The Arby's Restaurant System

Through subsidiaries of Arby’s, Inc. (which does business as the Triarc Restaurant Group), which are the
franchisors of the Arby’s restauranc system, we participate in the quick service restaurant segment of the
domestic restaurant industry. There are over 3,300 Arby’s restaurants in the United States and Canada and
Arby’s is the largest restaurant franchising system specializing in the roast beef sandwich segment of the quick
service restaurant industry. According to Nation's Restaurant News, Arby’s is the 9th largest quick service
restaurant chain in the United States. In addition to various slow-roasted roast beef sandwiches, Arby’s also
offers an extensive menu of chicken, turkey, ham and submarine sandwiches, side-dishes and salads. In 2001,
Arby’s introduced its Market Fresh® line of turkey, ham, chicken and roast beef premium sandwiches on a
nationwide basis. Arby’s also owns the T.J. Cinnamons® concept, which consists of gourmet cinnamon rolls,
gourmet coffees and other related products, and the Pasta Connection® concept, which includes pasta dishes
with a variety of different sauces. Some Arby’s franchisees multi-brand with T.J. Cinnamons or Pasta
Connection within their Arby’s restaurants. Prior to the December 27, 2002 acquisition of Sybra (See Item 1.
“Business—Acquisition of Sybra, Inc.”), all of the Arby’s restaurants were owned and operated by franchisees.
As of December 29, 2002, there were 239 company-owned Arby’s restaurants and 3,164 Arby’s restaurants
were owned by franchisees. As of December 29, 2002, 469 franchisees operated the 3,164 restaurants, of which
3,011 operated within the United States and 153 operated outside the United States. Of the domestic
restaurants, 264 are multi-branded locations that sell T.J. Cinnamons products and 42 are multi-branded
locations that sell Pasta Connection products. At December 29, 2002, T.J. Cinnamons gourmet coffees were
also sold in approximately 1,182 additional Arby’s restaurants. Arby’s is not currently offering to sell any
additional Pasta Connection franchises.

From 1998 to 2002, Arby’s system-wide sales grew at a compound annual growth rate of 4.8% to $2.7
billion. Through December 29, 2002, the Arby’s system has experienced six consecutive years of domestic same
store sales growth compared to the prior year. During 2002, our franchisees opened 116 new Arby’s restaurants
and closed 64 Arby’s restaurants. In addition, Arby’s franchisees opened 16 T.J. Cinnamons units in Arby’s
units in 2002. As of December 29, 2002, franchisees have committed to open 553 Arby’s restaurants over the
next eight years. You should read the information contained in “Risk Factors—Arby’s is dependent on
restaurant revenues and openings;” and “—The number of Arby’s restaurants that open may not meet current
commitments.”

General

As the franchisor of the Arby’s rescaurant system, Arby’s, through its subsidiaries, licenses the owners and
operators of independent businesses to use the Arby's brand name and trademarks in the operation of Arby’s
restaurants. Arby’s provides its franchisees with services designed to increase both the revenue and proficabilicy
of their Arby’s restaurants. The more important of these services are providing strategic leadership for the
brand, quality control services, operational training and counseling regarding, and approval of, site selection.

Prior to the acquisition of Sybra, the Company and its subsidiaries derived all their revenues from two
principal sources: (i) franchise royalcies received from all Arby’s restaurants; and (ii) up-front franchise fees from
its restaurant operators for each new unit opened. As a result of the acquisition of Sybra, the Company and its
subsidiaries will derive a significant portion of their revenues from sales at company-owned restaurants. Arby’s
current domestic franchise royalty rate for new franchises is 4.0%.

On November 21, 2000, our subsidiary Arby’s Franchise Trust completed an offering of $290 million of
7.44% fixed rate insured notes due 2020 pursuant to Rule 144A of the Securities Act. As a result of the
financing and related restructuring, Arby’s continues to service the franchise agreements relating to U.S.
franchises and a subsidiary services the franchise agreements relating to Canadian franchises with che assistance
of Arby’s. In connection with the financing, Arby’s engaged in a corporate restructuring pursuant to which it
formed a wholly-owned Delaware statutory business trust, Arby’s Franchise Trust, which became the franchisor
of the Arby’s restaurant system in the United States and Canada. Arby’s contributed its U.S. and Canadian
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franchise agreements, development agreements, license option agreements and the rights to the revenues from
those agreements to Arby’s Franchise Trust. Arby's also formed a new wholly-owned Delaware statutory
business trust, Arby’s IP Holder Trust, and contributed to it all of the intellectual property, including the
Arby’s trademark, necessary to operate the Arby’s franchise system in the United States and Canada. Arby’s IP
Holder Trust has granted Arby’s Franchise Trust a 99-year exclusive license to use such intellectual property.
Arby's continues to service the franchise agreements relating to U.S. franchises, and Arby’s of Canada, Inc., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Arby’s, services the franchise agreements relating to Canadian franchises with the
assistance of Arby’s. The servicing functions are performed pursuant to separate servicing agreements with
Arby’s Franchise Trust pursuant to which the servicers receive servicing fees from Arby’s Franchise Trust equal
to their expenses, subject to a specified cap for any 12-month period. Any residual cash flow received by Arby’s
Franchise Trust, after taking into account all required monthly payments under the notes, including interest
and targeted principal repayments, may be distributed by Arby’s Franchise Trust to Arby’s. See Note 10 to our
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Arby’s Restaurants

Arby’s opened its first restaurant in Youngstown, Ohio in 1964. As of December 29, 2002, franchisees
operated Arby’s restaurants in 49 states and five foreign countries. As of December 29, 2002, the six leading
states by number of operating units were: Ohio, with 267 restaurants; Michigan, with 174 restaurants; Indiana,
with 174 restaurants; Texas, with 160 restaurants; Georgia, with 158 restaurants; and Florida, with 151
restaurants. The country outside the United States with the most operating units is Canada with 130
restaurants.

Arby’s restaurants in the United States and Canada typically range in size from 2,500 square feet to 3,000
square feet. Restaurants in other countries typically are larger than U.S. and Canadian restaurants. At December
29, 2002, more than 96% of freestanding Arby's restaurants (including more than 96% of the Company’s
freestanding Atby’s restaurants) feature drive-thru windows. Restaurants typically have a manager, at least one
assistant manager and as many as 30 full and parc-time employees. Staffing levels, which vary during the day,
tend to be heaviest during the lunch hours.

The following table sets forth the number of Arby’s restaurants at the beginning and end of each year from
2000 to 2002:

00 2000 2002
Restaurants open at beginning of period ................ 3,228 3,319 3,351
Restaurants opened during period ............. ... .. ..., 156 131 116
Restaurants closed during period ....................... 65 99 64
Restaurants open at end of period ...................... 3319 3,351 3,403

During the period from January 1, 2000 through December 29, 2002, 403 new Arby’s restaurants were
opened and 228 Arby's restaurants (generally, underperforming restaurants) were closed by franchisees. We
believe that closing underperforming Arby's restaurants has contributed to an increase in the average annual
unit sales volume of the Arby's system, as well as to an improvement of the overall brand image of Arby's.

As of December 29, 2002, the Company operated 239 domestic Arby’s restaurants. Of such 239
restaurants, 212 were free-standing units, 14 were located in shopping malls, eight were in food courts and five
were in strip center locations.

Franchise Network

Arby’s seeks to identify potential franchisees that have experience in owning and operating quick-service
restaurant units, have a willingness to develop and operate Atby's restaurants and have sufficient net worth.
Arby’s identifies applicants through targeted mailings, maintaining a presence at industry trade shows and
conventions, existing customer and supplier contacts and regularly placed advertisements in trade and other
publications. Prospective franchisees are contacted by an Arby’s sales agent and complete an application for a
franchise. As part of the application process, Arby’s requires and reviews substantial documentation, including
financial statements and documents relating to the corporate or other business organization of the applicant.
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Franchisees that already operate one or more Arby’s restaurants must satisfy certain criteria in order to be
eligible to enter into additional franchise agreements, including capital resources commensurate with the
proposed development plan submitted by the franchisee, a commitment by the franchisee to employ trained
restaurant management and to maintain proper staffing levels, compliance by the franchisee with all of its
existing franchise agreements, a record of operation in compliance with Arby’s operating standards, a
satisfactory credic rating and the absence of any existing or threatened legal disputes with Arby’s. The initial
term of the typical “traditional” franchise agreement is 20 years. Arby’s does not offer any financing
arrangements to its franchisees.

During 2002, Arby’s franchisees opened seven new restaurants in one foreign country and closed seven
restaurants in three foreign countries. Arby’s also had territorial agreements with international franchisees in
two countries as of December 29, 2002. Under the terms of these territorial agreements, these international
franchisees have the exclusive right to open Arby’s restaurants in specific regions or countries.

Arby’s offers franchises for the development of both single and multiple “traditional” restaurant locations.
Both new and existing franchisees may enter into either a master development agreement, which requires the
franchisee to develop two or more Arby’s restaurants in a particular geographic area within a specified time
period, or a license option agreement that grants the franchisee the option, exercisable for a one year period, to
build an Arby’s restaurant on a specified site. All franchisees are required to execute standard franchise
agreements. Arby’s standard U.S. franchise agreement for new franchises currently requires an initial $37,500
franchise fee for the first franchised unit and $25,000 for each subsequent unit and a monthly royalty payment
equal to 4.0% of restaurant sales for the term of the franchise agreement. Franchisees typically pay a $10,000
commitment fee, credited against the franchise fee during the development process for a new restaurant.
Because of lower royalty rates still in effect under earlier agreements, the average royalty rate paid by
franchisees was approximately 3.3% in 2001 and 3.4% in 2002.

Franchised restaurants are required to be operated under uniform operating standards and specifications
relating to the selection, quality and preparation of menu items, signage, decor, equipment, uniforms,
suppliers, maintenance and cleanliness of premises and customer service. Arby’s monitors franchisee operations
and inspects restaurants periodically to ensure that company practices and procedures are being followed.

Advertising and Marketing

Arby’s advertises primarily through regional television, radio and newspapers. Payment for advertising
time and space is made by local advertising cooperatives in which owners of local franchised restaurants and the
Company, to the extent that it owns local company owned restaurants, participate. The Company and Arby’s
franchisees contribute 0.7% of net sales of their Atby’s restaurants to the AFA Service Corporation, which
produces advertising and promotional materials for the system. The Company and Arby’s franchisees are also
required to spend a reasonable amount, but not less than 3% of monthly net sales of their Arby’s restaurants,
for local advertising. This amount is divided between the individual local market advertising expense and the
expenses of a cooperative area advertising program with the Company operated restaurants and those franchisees
who ate operating Arby’s restaurants in that area. Contributions to the cooperative area advertising program are
determined by the participants in the program and are generally in the range of 3% to 5% of monthly net
sales. Arby’s and AFA Service Corporation have entered into an agreement pursuant to which the Arby’s system
had two flights of national advertising in 2001, three flights of national advertising in 2002 and will have an
additional three flights of national advertising in 2003. Under the agreement, Arby’s is contributing $8.2
million over the three-year petiod ($3.1 million of which was expensed in 2002 and $3.1 million of which will
be expensed in 2003) for the eight flights. The Company and Arby’s franchisees are also required to contribute
incremental dues to AFA Service Corporation equal to 0.5% of net sales of their Arby’s restaurants (bringing
their total contribution to advertising and marketing to 1.2% of net sales) to help fund the program. In
addition, during the first two years of the program, AFA Service Corporation has contributed $3.8 million to
the program and will contribute an additional $1.6 million to the program in 2003.

Provisions and Supplies

Three independent meat processors provide all of Arby’s roast beef in the United States. Franchise
operators are required to obtain roast beef from one of these three approved suppliers. ARCOP, Inc., a non-
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profit purchasing cooperative, negotiates contracts with approved suppliers on behalf of the Company and
Arby’s franchisees. Arby’s believes that satisfactory arrangements could be made to replace any of the current
roast beef suppliers, if necessary, on a timely basis.

Franchisees may obrain other products, including food, beverage, ingredients, paper goods, equipment and
signs, from any source that meets Arby’s specifications and approval. Suppliers to the Arby’s system must
comply with USDA and USFDA regulations governing the manufacture, packaging, storage, distribution and
sale of all food and packaging products. Through ARCOP, the Company and Arby’s franchisees purchase food,
proprietary paper and operating supplies through national contracts employing volume purchasing. You should
read the information contained in “Item 1—Risk Factors—Arby’s is dependent on restaurant revenues and
openings.

Quality Assurance

Arby’s has developed a quality assurance program designed to maintain standards and uniformity of the
menu selections at each of its franchised restaurants. Arby’s assigns a full-time quality assurance employee to
each of the five independent processing facilities that processes roast beef for Arby’s domestic restaurants. The
quality assurance employee inspects the roast beef for quality and uniformity and to assure compliance with
quality and safety specifications of the United States Department of Agriculture and the United States Food
and Drug Administration. In addition, a laboratory at Arby’s headquarters periodically tests samples of roast
beef from franchisees. Each year, Arby’s representatives conduct unannounced inspections of operations of a
number of franchisees to ensure that Arby’s policies, practices and procedures are being followed. Arby’s field
representatives also provide a variety of on-site consulting services to franchisees. Arby's has the right to
terminate franchise agreements if franchisees fail to comply with quality standards.

General

Trademarks

We own several trademarks chat are considered material to our business, including Arby’s®, T]J.
Cinnamons®, Pasta Connection®, Arby's Market Fresh™, Market Fresh® and Sidekickers®.

Our material trademarks are registered or pending trademarks in the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office
and various foreign jurisdictions. Registrations for such trademarks in the United States will last indefinitely as
long as the trademark owners continue to use and police the trademarks and renew filings with the applicable
governmental offices. There are no pending challenges to our right to use any of our material trademarks in the
United States.

Competition

Arby’s faces direct and indirect competition from numerous well-established competitors, including
national and regional quick service restaurant chains, such as McDonald’s, Burger King and Wendy’s, and quick
casual restaurant chains. In addition, Arby’s competes with locally owned restaurants, drive-ins, diners and
other similar establishments. Key competitive factors in the quick service restaurant industry are price, quality
of products, quality and speed of service, advertising, name identification, restaurant location and accractiveness
of facilities.

Many of the leading restaurant chains have focused on new unit development as one strategy to increase
market share through increased consumer awareness and convenience. This has led to increased competition for
available development sites and higher development costs for those sites. This has also led some competitors to
employ other strategies, including frequent use of price promotions and heavy advertising expenditures. In
2002, there was increased price competition among national fast food hamburger chains. Although Arby’s
experienced an increase in sales in 2002, continued price discounting in the QSR industry could have an
adverse impact on Arby’s and the Company.

Additional competitive pressures for prepared food purchases have come more recently from operators
outside the restaurant industry. Several major grocery chains have begun offering fully prepared food and meals
to go as part of their deli sections. Some of these chains also have added in-store cafes with service counters and
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tables where consumers can order and consume a full menu of items prepared especially for that portion of the
operation.

Many of our competitors have substantially greater financial, marketing, personnel and other resources
than we do.

Governmental Regulations

Various state laws and the Federal Trade Commission regulate Arby’s franchising activities. The Federal
Trade Commission requires that franchisors make extensive disclosure to prospective franchisees before the
execution of a franchise agreement. Several states require registration and disclosure in connection with
franchise offers and sales and have “franchise relationship laws” that limic the ability of franchisors to terminate
franchise agreements or to withhold consent to the renewal or transfer of these agreements. Furthermore, the
United States Congress has also considered, and there is currently pending, legislation governing various aspects
of the franchise relationship. In addition, the Company and Arby’s franchisees must comply with the Fair Labor
Standards Act and the Americans with Disabilities Act (the “ADA”"), which requires that all public
accommodations and commercial facilities meet federal requirements related to access and use by disabled
persons, and various state and local laws governing matters that include, for example, the handling, preparation
and sale of food and beverages, minimum wages, overtime and other working and safety conditions.
Compliance with the ADA requirements could require removal of access barriers and non-compliance could
result in imposition of fines by the U.S. government or an award of damages to private litigants. Although we
believe that our facilities are substantially in compliance with all applicable government rules and regulations,
including requirements under the ADA, the Company may incur additional costs to comply with the ADA.
However, we do not believe that any such costs would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
consolidated financial position or results of operations. We cannot predict the effect on our operations,
particularly on our relationship with franchisees, of any pending or future legislation.

Environmental Matters

Our past and present operations are governed by federal, state and local environmental laws and
regulations concerning the discharge, storage, handling and disposal of hazardous or toxic substances. These
laws and regulations provide for significant fines, penalties and liabilities, sometimes without regard to whether
the owner or operator of the property knew of, or was responsible for, the release or presence of the hazardous or
toxic substances. In addition, third parties may make claims against owners or operators of properties for
personal injuries and property damage associated with releases of hazardous or toxic substances. We cannot
predict what environmental legislation or regulations will be enacted in the future or how existing or future
laws or regulations will be administered or interpreted. We similarly cannot predict the amount of future
expenditures which may be requited to comply with any environmental laws or regulations or to satisfy any
claims relating to environmental laws or regulations. We believe chat our operations comply substantially with
all applicable environmental laws and regulations. Accordingly, the environmental matters in which we are
involved generally relate either to properties that our subsidiaries own, but on which they no longer have any
operations, or properties that we or our subsidiaries have sold to third parties, but for which we or our
subsidiaries remain liable or contingently liable for any related environmental costs. Our company-owned
Arby’s restaurants have not been the subject of any material environmental macters. Based on currently
available information, including defenses available to us and/or our subsidiaries, and our current reserve levels,
we do not believe that the ultimate outcome of the environmental matter discussed below or in which we are
otherwise involved will have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position or resules of
operations. See “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” below.

In 2001, a vacant property owned by our indirect subsidiary, Adams Packing Association, Inc., was listed
by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency on the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation
and Liability Information System (“CERCLIS”) list of known or suspected contaminated sites. The CERCLIS
listing appears to have been based on an allegation that a former tenant of Adams Packing conducted drum
recycling operations at the site from some time prior to 1971 until the late 1970s. The business operations of
Adams Packing were sold in December 1992. Adams Packing engaged an envitonmental consultant that, under
the supervision of the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (the “FDEP”), conducted an
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investigation of the site that was intended to develop additional information on the extent and nature of the
soil and groundwater contamination and the appropriate remediation for that contamination. Adams Packing’s
environmental consultant has submitted to the FDEP a summary of che results of this investigation and Adams
Packing and the FDEP have negotiated a work plan for further investigation of the site and limited remediation
of the identified contamination. The work plan is embodied in a consent order between Adams Packing and the
FDEP. The consent order has been executed by Adams Packing and the FDEP and is effective, subject to a
petition for adminiscrative hearing being filed during the statutory public comment period. Based on a
preliminary cost estimate of approximately $1.0 million for completion of the work plan, developed by Adams
Packing’s environmental consultant, and Adams Packing’s current reserve levels, and after taking into
consideration various legal defenses available to us and/or Adams Packing, the cost of further investigation and
remediation at the site is not expected to have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position or
results of operations. See “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources.”

Seasonality

Our consolidated results are not significantly impacted by seasonality, however, our restaurant franchising
royalty revenues and our restaurant sales are somewhat lower in our first quarter.

Employees

As of December 29, 2002, we had 5,030 employees, including 422 salaried employees and 4,608 hourly
employees. As of December 29, 2002, none of our employees were covered by a collective bargaining
agreement. We believe that employee relations are satisfactory.

Risk Factors

We wish to caution readers that in addition to the important factors described elsewhere in this
Form 10-K, the following important factors, among others, sometimes have affected, or in the future could
affect, our actual resules and could cause our actual consolidated results during 2003, and beyond, to differ
materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statements made by us or on our behalf.

Holding company structure.

Because we are a holding company, our ability to service debt and pay dividends, including dividends on
our common stock, is primarily dependent upon, in addition to our cash, cash equivalents and short-term
investments on hand, cash flows from our subsidiaries, including loans, cash dividends and reimbursement by
subsidiaries to us in connection with providing certain management services and payments by subsidiaries
under certain tax sharing agreements.

Under the terms of the indenture relating to the notes issued in the Arby’s securitization and the
agreements relating to debt issued by Sybra, there are restrictions on the ability of certain of our subsidiaries to
pay dividends and/or make loans or advances to us. The ability of any of our subsidiaries to pay cash dividends
and/or make loans or advances to us is also dependent upon the respective abilities of such entities to achieve
sufficient cash flows after satisfying their respective cash requirements, including debt service, to enable the
payment of such dividends or the making of such loans or advances. In addition, in connection with the
December 2002 acquisition of Sybra, Triarc agreed that Sybra would not pay dividends to it for a period of two
years from the closing.

In addition, our equity interests in our subsidiaries rank junior to all of the respective indebtedness,
whenever incurred, of such entities in the event of their respective liquidation or dissolution. As of December
29, 2002, our subsidiaries had aggregate indebtedness of approximately $387 million excluding intercompany
indebtedness.




We bave broad discretion in the use of our significant cash, cash equivalents and investment
position,

We have not designated any specific use for our significant cash, cash equivalents and investment position.
We are evaluating options for the use of these funds, including acquisitions, share repurchases and investments.
We have significant flexibility in selecting the opportunities that we will pursue. See “Item 1. Business—
Business Strategy.”

Acquisitions are a key element of our business strategy, but we cannot assure you that we will
be able to identify appropriate acquisition targets in the futuve and that we will be able to
successfully integrate any future acquisitions into our existing operations.

Acquisitions involve numerous risks, including difficulties assimilating new operations and products. In
addition, acquisitions may require significant management time and capital resources. We cannot assure you
that we will have access to the capital required to finance potential acquisitions on satisfactory terms, that any
acquisition would result in long-term benefits to us or that management would be able to manage effectively
the resulting business. Future acquisitions are likely to result in the incurrence of additional indebtedness or
the issuance of additional equity securities.

We may bave to take actions that we would not otherwise take so as not to be deemed an
“Imvestment Company.”

The Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the “1940 Act”), requires the registration of, and
imposes various restrictions on, companies that do not meet certain financial tests regarding the composition of
their assets and source of income. A company may be deemed to be an investment company if it owns
“investment securities” with a value exceeding 40% of its total assets (excluding government securities and cash
items) on an unconsolidated basis or if more than 45% of the value of its total assets consists of, or more than
45% of its net after-tax income/loss is derived from, securities of companies it does not control. Our acquisition
strategy may require us to take actions that we would not otherwise take so as not to be deemed an “investment
company” under the 1940 Act. Investment companies are subject to registration under, and compliance with,
the 1940 Act unless a particular exclusion or safe harbor provision applies. Presently, the total amount of
investment securities that we hold is substantially less than 40% of our total assets and substantially less than
45% of our total assets consist of, and substantially less than 45% of our net after-tax income/loss is derived
from, securities of companies we do not control. If in the future we were to be deemed an investment company,
we would become subject to the requirements of che 1940 Act. We intend to make acquisitions and other
investments in a manner so as not to be deemed an investment company. As a result, we may forego
investments that we might otherwise make or retain or dispose of investments or assets that we might
otherwise sell or hold.

In the future we may have to take actions that we would not otherwise take so as not to be
subject to tax as a “personal holding company.”

If at any time during the last half of our taxable year, five or fewer individuals own or are deemed to own
more than 50% of the total value of our shares and if during such taxable year we receive 60% or more of our
gross income from specified passive sources, we would be classified as a “personal holding company” for the
U.S. federal income tax purposes. If this were the case, we would be subject to additional taxes at the rate of
38.6% on a portion of our income, to the extent this income is not distributed to shareholders. We do not
currently expect to have any liability for tax under the personal holding company rules in 2003. However, we
cannot assure you that we will not become liable for such tax in the future. Because we do not wish to be
classified as a personal holding company or to incur any personal holding company tax, we may be required in
the future to take actions that we would not otherwise take. These actions may influence our strategic and
business decisions, including causing us to conduct our business and acquire or dispose of investments
differently thar we otherwise would.
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Our subsidiaries are subject to various restrictions, and substantially all of their assets are
Pledged, under certain debt agreements.

Under our subsidiaries’ debt agreements, substantially all of our subsidiaries’ assets, other than cash, cash
equivalents and short-term investments, are pledged as collateral security. The indenture relating to the notes
issued in the Arby’s securitization and the agreements relating to debt issued by Sybra contain financial
covenants that, among other things, require Arby’s Franchise Trust and Sybra, as applicable, to maintain certain
financial ratios and restrict their ability to incur debt, enter into certain fundamental transactions (including
sales of all or substantially all of their assets and certain mergers and consolidations) and create or permit liens.
If either Arby’s Franchise Trust or Sybra is unable to generate sufficient cash flow or otherwise obtain the funds
necessary to make required payments of interest ot principal under, or is unable to comply with covenants of,
its respective debt agreements, it would be in default under the terms of such agreements which would, under
certain circumstances, permit the insurer of the notes issued in the Arby’s securitization or the lenders to Sybra,
as applicable, to accelerate the maturity of the balance of its indebtedness. You should read the information in
Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Arby’s is dependent on restauvant revenues and openings.

Prior to the acquisition of Sybra, the principal source of revenues for our restaurant business was royalty
fees received from franchisees. Following the acquisition, such royalties and fees will continue to comprise a
significant portion of our revenues and earnings. Our future revenues and earnings will be highly dependent on
the gross revenues of company-owned Arby’s restaurants and of Arby’s franchisees’ restaurants and the number
of Arby’s restaurants that we and Arby’s franchisees operate. In addition, it is possible that interruptions in the
distribution of supplies to Arby’s restaurants could adversely affect sales at Company-owned restaurants and
result in a decline in royalty fees that we receive from Arby’s franchisees.

The level of gross revenues of Arby's vestauvants may not continue.

Competition is intense among national brand franchisors and smaller chains in the restaurant industry to
grow their franchise systems. Arby’s restaurants are generally in competition for customers with franchisees of
other national and regional quick service and quick casual restaurant chains and with locally owned restaurants.
We cannot assure you that the level of gross revenues of Company-owned restaurants and of restaurants owned
by Arby’s franchisees, upon which our royalty fees are dependent, will continue.

The number of Arby's restaurants that open may not meet curvent commitments.

Numerous factors beyond our control affect restaurant openings. These factors include the ability of
potential restaurant owners to obtain financing, locate appropriate sites for restaurants and obtain all necessary
state and local construction, occupancy and other permits and approvals. Although as of December 29, 2002
franchisees had signed commitments to open 553 Arby's restaurants and have made or are required to make
non-refundable deposits of $10,000 per restaurant, we cannot assure you that these commitments will result in
open restaurants. See “Item 1. Business—Business Segment—Restaurant Franchising and Operations (Arby's)
—Franchise Network.” In addition, we cannot assure you that our franchisees will successfully develop and
operate their restaurants in a manner consistent with our standards.

Arby’s franchise revenues depend, to a significant extent, on its largest franchisee and a decline
in its revenue may indirvectly adversely affect us.

During 2002, Atby’s received approximately 27% of its royalties and franchise and related fees from RTM
Restaurant Group, Inc. ("RTM”) (which as of December 29, 2002, operated 783 Atby's restaurants). Arby's
revenues could decline from their present levels if RTM suffered a significant decline in its business.

Competition from restaurant companies could adversely affect us.

A significant portion of our revenues and earnings comes from restaurant franchising and operations. The
business sectors in which we and Arby’s franchisees compete are highly competitive (e.g., with respect to price,
food quality and presentation, service, location, and the nature and condition of the financed business
unit/location), and are affected by changes in tastes and eating habits, local, regional and national economic
conditions and population and traffic patterns. Arby’s restaurants compete with a variety of locally-owned



restaurants, as well as competitive regional and national chains and franchises. Moreover, new companies may
enter the Company’s or a franchisee’s respective market area and target sales audience. Such competition may
have, among other things, lower operating costs, lower debt service requirements, better locations, better
facilities, better management, more effective marketing and more efficient operations. All such competition
may adversely affect our revenues and profits or those of Arby’s franchisees and could adversely affect the ability
of franchisees to make required payments to Arby’s. Furthermore, we and Arby’s franchisees face competition
for competent employees and high levels of employee turnover, which also can have an adverse effect on our
operations and revenues and those of Arby’s franchisees and on franchisees’ abilities to make required payments
to Arby’s. Many of Arby’s competitors have substantially greater financial, marketing, personnel and other
resources than Arby’s.

Changes in consumer tastes and preferences and in spending and demographic patterns, as well
as health and safety concerns about food quality, could vesult in a loss of customers and reduce
the royalties that we receive.

The quick service restaurant industry is often affected by changes in consumer tastes, national, regional
and local economic conditions, discretionary spending priorities, demographic trends, traffic patterns and the
type, number and location of competing restaurants. Consumer preferences could also be affected by health or
safety concerns with respect to the consumption of beef, french fries or other foods or with respect to the effects
of food borne illnesses. As is generally the case in the restaurant franchise business, we and our franchisees may,
from time to time, be the subject of complaints or litigation from customers alleging illness, injury or other
food quality, health or operational concerns. Adverse publicity resulting from these allegations may harm the
reputation of Arby’s restaurants, even if the allegations are not valid, we are not found liable or those concerns
relate only to a single restaurant or a limited number of restaurants. Moreover, complaints, litigation or adverse
publicity experienced by one or more of our franchisees could also adversely affect our business as a whole. If
Arby’s is unable to adapt to changes in consumer preferences and trends, or we have adverse publicity due to
any of these concerns, we and our franchisees may lose customers and the resulting revenues from company-
owned restaurants and the royalties that Arby’s receives from its franchisees may decline.

We may not be able to adequately protect our intellectual property, which could harm the value
of our brands and adversely affect our business.

Our intellectual property is material to the conduct of our business. We rely on a combination of
trademarks, copyrights, service marks, trade secrets and similar intellectual property rights to protect our
brands and other intellectual property. The success of our business strategy depends, in part, on our continued
ability to use our existing trademarks and service marks in order to increase brand awareness and further
develop our branded products in both domestic and international markets. If our efforts to protect our
intellectual property are not adequate, or if any third party misappropriates or infringes on our intellectual
property, either in print or on the Internet, the value of our brands may be harmed, which could have a material
adverse effect on our business, including the failure of our brands to achieve and maintain market acceptance.

We franchise our restaurant brands to various franchisees. While we try to ensure that the quality of our
brands is maintained by all of our franchisees, we cannot assure you that these franchisees will not take actions
that adversely affect the value of our intellectual property or the reputation of the Arby’s restaurant system.

We have registered certain trademarks and have other trademark registrations pending in the U.S. and
certain foreign jurisdictions. The trademarks that we currently use have not been registered in all of the
countries outside of the United States in which we do business and may never be registered in all of these
countries.

We cannot assure you that all of the steps we have taken to protect our intellectual property in the U.S.
and foreign countries will be adequate. In addition, the laws of some foreign countries do not protect
intellectual property rights to the same extent as the laws of the U.S.

We remain contingently liable with respect to certain obligations relating to businesses that we

bhave sold,

As previously reported, in 1997 we sold all of our then company-owned Arby’s restaurants to subsidiaries
of RTM, Arby’s largest franchisee. In connection with the sale, an aggregate of approximately $54.7 million of
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mortgage and equipment notes were assumed by subsidiaries of RTM, of which approximately $42.0 million
was outstanding at December 29, 2002. RTM has guaranteed the payment of these notes by its subsidiaries.
Notwithstanding the assumption of this debt and guaranty, we remain contingently liable as a guarantor of the
notes. In addition, the subsidiaries of RTM also assumed substantially all of the lease obligations relating to the
purchased restaurants (which aggregate a maximum of approximately $66.0 million at December 29, 2002) and
RTM has indemnified us for any losses we might incur with respect to such leases. Notwithstanding such
assumption, we remain contingently liable if RTM's subsidiaries fail to make the required payments under
those leases.

In addition, in July 1999, the Company sold 41.7% of its remaining 42.7% interest in National Propane
Partners, L.P. and a sub-partnership, National Propane, L.P. to Columbia Energy Group, and retains less than a
1% special limited partner interest in AmeriGas Eagle Propane, L.P. (formerly known as National Propane, L.P.
and as Columbia Propane, L.P.). As part of the transaction, our subsidiary, National Propane Corporation,
agreed cthat while it remains a special limited partner of AmeriGas, it would indemnify the owner of AmeriGas
for any payments the owner makes under certain debt of AmeriGas (aggregating approximately $138.0 million
as of December 29, 2002), if AmeriGas is unable to repay or refinance such debt, but only after recourse to the
assets of AmeriGas. Either National Propane Corporation or AmeriGas Propane, L.P.,, the owner of AmeriGas,
may require AmeriGas to repurchase the special limited partner interest. However, we believe it is unlikely that
either party would require repurchase prior to 2009 as either AmeriGas Propane, L.P. would owe us tax
indemnification payments ot we would accelerate payment of deferred taxes associated with our sale of the
propane business.

Although the Company believes that it is unlikely that it will be called upon to make any payments under
the guaranty, leases or indemnification described above, if the Company were required to make such payments
it could have a material adverse effect on the financial position or results of operations of the Company. You
should read the information in “Item. 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources” and in Note 22 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Changes in governmental regulation may adversely affect our ability to open new restaurants or
otherwise adversely affect our existing and future operations and results.

Each of our restaurants is subject to licensing and regulation by health, sanitation, safety and other
agencies in the state and/or municipality in which the restaurant is located. There can be no assurance that we
will not experience material difficulties or failures in obtaining the necessary licenses or approvals for our
restaurants which could delay the opening of such restaurants in the future. In addition, more stringent and
varied requirements of local and tax governmental bodies with respect to zoning, land use and environmental
factors could delay or prevent development of new restaurants in particular locations. We are also subject to the
Fair Labor Standards Act which governs such matters as minimum wages, overtime and other working
conditions, along with the Americans with Disabilities Act, family leave mandates and a variety of other laws
enacted by the states that govern these and other employment law matters. We cannot predict the amount of
future expenditures which may be required in order to comply with any changes in existing regulations or to
comply with any future regulations that may become applicable to our business.

Certain of our current and past operations are or have been subject to federal, state and local
environmental laws and regulations concerning the discharge, storage, handling and disposal of hazardous or
toxic substances. Such laws and regulations provide for significant fines, penalties and liabilities, in certain cases
without regard to whether the owner or operator of the property knew of, or was responsible for, the release or
presence of such hazardous or toxic substances. In addition, third parties may make claims against owners or
operators of properties for personal injuries and property damage associated with releases of hazardous or toxic
substances. Although we believe that our operations comply in all material respects with all applicable
environmental laws and regulations, we cannot predict what environmental legislation or regulations will be
enacted in the future or how existing or future laws or regulations will be administered or interpreted. We
cannot predict the amount of future expenditures which may be required in order to comply with any
environmental laws or regulations or to satisfy any such claims. See “Item 1. Business—General—
Environmental Matters.”
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Item 2. Properties.

We believe that our properties, taken as a whole, are generally well maintained and are adequate for our
current and foreseeable business needs. We lease each of cur material properties.

The following table contains information about our material facilities as of December 29, 2002:

Approximate

Sq. Fr. of

Active Facilities Facilities—Location Land Title Floor Space

Triarc Corporate Headquarters........................ New York, NY 1 leased 30,670%
Triarc Restaurant Group Headquarters ................ Ft. Lauderdale, FL 1 leased 47,300%%*

* We are currently seeking to sublet approximately 4,600 square feet of this space.
*% Approximately 1,140 square feet of this space is subleased from Arby’s by a third party.

Arby’s also owns two and leases five properties which are leased or sublet principally to franchisees and has
a lease for one inactive property. Our other subsidiaries also own or lease a few inactive facilities and
undeveloped properties, none of which are material to our financial condition or results of operations.

At December 29, 2002, Sybra’s 239 restaurants were located in the following states: 75 were in Michigan,
67 in Texas, 39 in Pennsylvania, 21 in Florida, 14 in New Jersey, 10 in Maryland, 8 in Connecticut, 4 in
Virginia and 1 in West Virginia. In addition to its Arby’s restaurant locations, Sybra also leases office space in
San Diego, California and New York, New York for its corporate and executive offices and in Flint, Michigan,
Sinking Spring, Pennsylvania, Plano, Texas and Temple Terrace, Florida for its regional operations centers.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

On March 23, 1999, Norman Salsitz, a stockholder of Triarc, filed a complaint in the United States
District Court for the Southern District of New York against Triarc, Nelson Peltz and Peter May. In an
amended complaint filed in April 2000, Mr. Salsitz purported to assert a claim for alleged violation of Section
14(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, on behalf of all persons who held our stock as of
March 10, 1999. The amended complaint alleged that our tender offer statement in connection with the 1999
“Dutch Auction” self-tender offer was materially false and misleading in that, among other things, it failed to
disclose alleged recent valuations of Triarc. The amended complaint sought damages in an amount to be
determined, together with prejudgment interest, the costs of suit, including attorneys’ fees, an order permitting
all shareholders who tendered their shares in the Dutch Auction Tender Offer to rescind the transaction, and
unspecified other relief. On November 16, 2001, the defendants moved for summary judgment dismissing the
action in its entirety, and the plaintiff moved to certify a class consisting of all persons or entities who held
stock in Triarc as of March 10, 1999 and allegedly suffered damages thereby. On October 17, 2002, the court
denied the plaintiff’s motion for class certification and granted the defendants’ motion for summary judgment,
and subsequently entered judgment dismissing the case. On November 21, 2002, plaintiff filed a notice of
appeal to the United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit. On February 28, 2003, the plaintiff
withdrew his appeal.

In October 1998, various class actions were brought on behalf of our stockholders in the Court of
Chancery of the State of Delaware. These class actions name Triarc, Messrs. Peltz and May and directors of
Triarc as defendants. On March 26, 1999, four of the plaintiffs in these actions filed an amended complaint
making allegations substantially similar to those asserted in the Salsitz case described above. In October 2000,
the plaintiffs agreed to stay these actions pending determination of the Sa/sizz action.

We believe that the outcome of any of the matters described above or any of the other matters that have
arisen in the ordinary course of our business (including those arising in the ordinary course of the operation of
our company-owned restaurants) will not have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial condition
or results of operations.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

We held an Annual Meeting of Stockholders on June 4, 2002. The matcers acted upon by the stockholders
at that meeting were reported in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2002.
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PART I

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters.

The principal market for our Class A Common Stock is the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) (symbol:
TRY). The high and low market prices for our Class A Common Stock, as reported in the consolidated

transaction reporting system, are set forth below:
Market Price

Fiscal Quarters High Low

2001

First Quarter ended April 1 ... .. . .. ... . L $26.62 $23.44

Second Quarter ended July 1 ....... ... it 2640 2385

Third Quarter ended September 30 ......................... 26,50 21.80

Fourth Quarter ended December 30 ......................... 25.10 2240
2002

First Quarter ended March 31 ............ ... ... ... ... $28.68 $24.00

Second Quarter ended June 30............ .. ...l 28.73  26.50

Third Quarter ended September 29 ......................... 27.55  22.30

Fourth Quarter ended December 29 ......................... 28.05 21.98

We did not pay any dividends on our common stock in 2001, 2002 or in 2003 to date and do not
presently anticipate the declaration of cash dividends on our Class A Common Stock in the near future.
However, the declaration of future dividends is subject to the discretion of our Board of Directors, which may
from time to time review whether to declare dividends in light of all of the then existing relevant facts and
circumstances. We have no class of equity securities currently issued and outstanding except for the Class A
Common Stock. However, we are currently authorized to issue up to 100 million shares of Class B Common
Stock and up to 100 million shares of preferred stock.

Because we are a holding company, our ability to meet our cash requirements, including required interest
and principal payments on our indebtedness, is primarily dependent upon, in addition to our cash, cash
equivalents and short-term investments on hand, cash flows from our subsidiaries. Under the terms of the
indenture relating to the notes issued in the Arby’s securitization and the agreements related to debrt issued by
Sybra (see “Item 1. Business—Business Segment—Restaurant Franchising and Operations (Arby’s)—General”
and “Item 1. Business—Acquisition of Sybra, Inc.”), the ability of Arby’s and Sybra to pay any dividends or
make any loans or advances to us is limited by the debt service requirements of its subsidiaries. In addition, in
connection with the acquisition of Sybra, Triarc agreed that Sybra would not pay dividends ro it for a period of
two years from the closing. You should read the information in “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources” and Note 10 to our
Consolidared Financial Starements.

On January 18, 2001, our management was authorized, when and if market conditions warrant, to
purchase from time to time up to an aggregate of $50 million worth of our Class A Common Stock pursuant to
a $50 million stock repurchase program that ended on January 18, 2003. During the period from January 18,
2001 through January 18, 2003, we repurchased 438,500 shares, at an average cost of approximately $23.89
per share (including commissions), for an aggregate cost of approximately $10.5 million, pursuant to the stock
repurchase program.

On January 17, 2003, the stock repurchase program was extended until January 18, 2004 and the amount
available under the stock repurchase program was replenished to permit the Company to repurchase up to a
total of $50 million worth of our Class A Common Stock on or after January 18, 2003 (in addition to the $10.5
million previously spent under the program). We cannot assure you that we will repurchase any additional
shares pursuant to this stock repurchase program.

As of March 15, 2003, there were approximately 3,569 holders of record of our Class A Common Stock.




Item 6. Selecied Financial Data (1)

Year Ended(2)

January 3,
1999

Revenues, investment income

and other income .......... $ 88,964
Income (loss) from continuing

operations before income

taxes and minority

INEETESES .+ v e eeeenenn, 8,019
Income (loss) from continuing
OpErations ................. 3,187
Income from discontinued
OPErations ................. 11,449
Extraordinary charges ......... —
Net income .................. 14,636(5)
Basic income (loss) per
share (3):
Continuing operations . . .. A1
Discontinued operations . . . .37
Extraordinary charges. . ... -_—
Net income ............. A48
Diluted income (loss) per
share (3):
Continuing operations . ... .10
Discontinued operations . . . 36
Extraordirary charges..... —
Net income ............. 46
Working capital .............. 180,739
Total assets .................. 462,417
Long-term debt .............. 279,226
Scockholders’ equity
(deficiey (4) ................ 11,272
Weighted-average common
shares outstanding .......... 30,306

January 2, December 31, December 30,
2000 2000 2001

(In Thousands Except Per Share Amounts)

$102,577 $ 119,406 $ 137,146
24,854 (6) 2,211 (8) 17,410(10)
17,702 (6) (10,157X8) 8,966(10)

4,519 472,078 43,450
(12,097) (20,680) _
10,124 (6) 441,241 (8) 52,416(10)

.68 (.44) 42

.18 20.32 2.02

(.47) (.89) —

.39 18.99 2.44

.66 (.44) 40

16 20.32 1.91

(45) (.89) —

37 18.99 2.31
240,399 596,319 556,637
378,424 1,067,424 868,409

3,792 291,718 288,955

(166,726)7) 282,310 (9) 332,397

26,015 (7) 23,232 21,532

December 29,
2002

$ 98,773 (11)

(16,634)
(9,757)

11,100

1,343 (12)

(.48)
.54

.06

(.48)
.54
.06
510,438
968,891
352,700

332,742

20,446

(1) Selected Financial Data for the years ended on or prior to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000 reflect
the discontinuance of the Company’s beverage businesses sold in October 2000 and for the years ended on
or prior to the fiscal year ended January 2, 2000 reflect the discontinuance of the Company’s propane

business sold in July 1999.

(2) The Company reports on a fiscal year basis consisting of 52 or 53 weeks ending on the Sunday closest to
December 31. In accordance with this method, the Company’s 1998 fiscal year contained 53 weeks and
each of the Company’s 1999, 2000, 2001 and 2002 fiscal years contained 52 weeks.

(3) Basic and diluted income (loss) per share are the same for the fiscal years 2000 and 2002 since all
potentially dilutive securities would have had an antidilutive effect based on the loss from continuing
operations for each of those years. The shares used in the calculation of diluted income (loss) per share for
the fiscal years 1998 (31,527,000), 1999 (26,943,000) and 2001 (22,692,000) consist of the weighted
average common shares outstanding and potential common shares reflecting the effect of dilutive stock
options of 1,221,000, 818,000 and 1,160,000, respectively, and for the fiscal year 1999 the effect of a
dilutive forward purchase obligation for common stock of 110,000 shares.

(4) The Company has not paid any dividends on its common shares during any of the years presented.
(footnotes continued on next page)
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(footnotes continued from previous page)

(5) Reflects certain significant credits recorded during fiscal 1998 as follows: $7,074,000 credited to net
income representing (1) $3,067,000 included in the income from operations of the discontinued businesses
consisting of $5,016,000 of gain on sale of businesses less $1,949,000 of related income taxes and (2)
$4,007,000 of gain on disposal of discontinued operations.

(6) Reflects certain significant charges and credits recorded during fiscal 1999 as follows: $926,000 credited to

income from continuing operations before income taxes and minority interests representing 3,052,000 of
reversal of excess interest expense accruals for interest due the Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS”) in
connection with the completion of their examinations of the Company’s Federal income tax returns for
prior years less a $2,126,000 charge for a capital structure reorganization related charge related to
equitable adjustments made to the terms of outstanding stock options for stock of a former subsidiary held
by corporate employees; $5,789,000 credited to income from continuing operations representing (1) the
aforementioned $926,000 credited to income from continuing operations before income taxes and minority
interests less $264,000 of related income taxes and (2) $5,127,000 of release of excess reserves for income
taxes in connection with the completion of IRS examinations of the Company’s Federal income tax returns;
and $3,897,000 credited to net income representing (1) the aforementioned $5,789,000 credited to income
from continuing operations, (2) $15,102,000 of gain on disposal of discontinued operations, less (i)
$4,897,000 of charges reported in income from operations of the discontinued businesses consisting of (a) a
$3,348,000 charge for a capital structure reorganization related charge, similar to the charge in continuing
operations, relating to option holders who were employees of the sold businesses, (b) $411,000 of provision
for interest due the IRS in connection with the completion of their examination of the Company'’s Federal
income tax returns, both less $1,464,000 of related income taxes and (c) $2,602,000 of provision for
income taxes in connection with the completion of IRS examinations of the Company’s Federal income tax
returns and (i) a $12,097,000 extraordinary charge from the early extinguishment of debt.

(7) In fiscal 1999 the Company repurchased for treasury 3,805,015 shares of its class A common stock and

1,999,208 shares of class B common stock for an aggregate $117,160,000 and recorded a forward purchase
obligation for two future purchases of class B common stock that occurred on August 10, 2000 and on
August 10, 2001 for $42,343,000 and $43,843,000, respectively. These transactions resulted in an
aggregate $203,346,000 reduction to stockholders’ equity in fiscal 1999 resulting in a stockholders’ deficit
as of January 2, 2000 and a reduction of 3,376,000 shares in the weighted-average common shares
outstanding.

(8) Reflects certain significant charges and credits recorded during fiscal 2000 as follows: $36,432,000

charged to income from continuing operations before income taxes and minority interests representing (1)
a $26,010,000 charge for capital market transaction related compensation and (2) a $10,422,000 charge
resulting from the Company’s repurchase of 1,045,834 shares of its class A common stock from certain of
the Company’s officers and a director within six months after exercise of the related stock options by the
officers and director; $32,914,000 charged to loss from continuing operations representing the
aforementioned $36,432,000 less $3,518,000 of related income tax benefit; and $427,352,000 credited to
net income representing $480,946,000 of the then estimated gain on disposal of the Company’s former
beverage business credited to income from discontinued operations less (1) the aforementioned
$32,914,000 charged to loss from continuing operations and (2) a $20,680,000 extraordinary charge from
the early extinguishment of debt.

(9) The increase in stockholders’ equity during fiscal 2000 principally reflects net income of $441,241,000

which includes a gain on disposal of discontinued operations of $480,946,000.

(10) Reflects certain significant credits recorded during fiscal 2001 as follows: $5,000,000 credited to income

from continuing operations before income taxes and minority interests representing the receipt of a
$5,000,000 note receivable from the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and the President and Chief
Operating Officer (the “Executives”) of the Company received in connection with the settlement of a class
action lawsuit involving cerrain awards of compensation to the Executives; $3,200,000 credited to income
from continuing operations representing the aforementioned $5,000,000 less $1,800,000 of related income
tax expense; and $46,650,000 credited to net income representing the aforementioned $3,200,000 credited
(footnotes continued on next page)
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(foatnotes continued from previous page)

to income from continuing operations and $43,450,000 of additional gain on disposal of the Company’s
beverage businesses.

(11) Reflects a decline in investment income of $32,781,000 in fiscal 2002 compared with fiscal 2001.

(12) Reflects a significant credit recorded during fiscal 2002 as follows: $11,100,000 credited to net income
representing adjustments to the previously recognized gain on disposal of the Company’s beverage business
due to the release of reserves for income taxes associated with the discontinued beverage operations in
connection with the receipt of related income tax refunds.




Item 7. Mawnagement's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Qperations.

Introduction
We currently operate in one business, franchising and operating Arby's restaurants.

On December 27, 2002, we completed the acquisition of all of the voting equity interests of Sybra, Inc.
from I.C.H. Corporation in a transaction we refer to as the Sybra Acquisition. The acquisition was under a plan
of reorganization confirmed by a United States Bankruptcy Court for I.C.H. and Sybra following their filing in
February 2002 for protection under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code in order to restructure
their financial obligations. Sybra owns and operates 239 Arby’s restaurants in nine states and, prior to the Sybra
Acquisition, was the second largest franchisee of Arby’s restaurants. We acquired Sybra with the expectation of
strengthening and increasing the value of our Arby’s brand. Sybra’s results of operations following the
December 27, 2002 date of the Sybra Acquisition through December 29, 2002 have been included in the
accompanying consolidated income statement for the year ended December 29, 2002. The results of operations
before income taxes for that two-day period have been reported in “Other income, net” for convenience since
the results were not material to our consolidated income before income taxes.

As discussed below under “Liquidity and Capital Resources,” we are presently evaluating our options for
the use of our significant cash, cash equivalent and investment position, including additional business
acquisitions, repurchases of outr common shares and invesements.

Throughout the years presented in this discussion, we derived our revenues in the form of royalties and
franchise and related fees but, as a result of the Sybra Acquisition, we have also begun deriving revenues from
the sales by the restaurants we now operate which, commencing with fiscal 2003, will be reported as sales.
While the majority of our existing royalty agreements and all of our new domestic royalty agreements provide
for royalties of 4% of franchise revenues, our average rate was 3.4% in fiscal 2002. We also derive investment
income from our investments.

We incur general and administrative expenses, depreciation and amortization and interest expense, but no
cost of sales, in our restaurant franchising operations. In addition, we incur general corporate expenses,
including investment activity related expenses, in those same expense categories. As a result of the Sybra
Acquisition we will also report cost of sales and advertising and selling expenses commencing with fiscal 2003.
Recently we have not had significant capital expenditures; however, as a result of the Sybra Acquisition, we will
increase capital expenditures to support our recently acquired company-owned restaurants.

We previously operated in the premium beverage and soft drink concentrate businesses. On October 25,
2000 we completed the sale of these businesses, which we refer to as the Snapple Beverage Sale, of Snapple
Beverage Group, Inc., the parent company of Snapple Beverage Corp., Mistic Brands, Inc. and Stewart’s
Beverages, Inc., and Royal Crown Company, Inc. to affiliates of Cadbury Schweppes plc, which we refer to as
Cadbury. The premium beverage and soft drink concentrate businesses, formerly reported as business segments,
have been accounted for as discontinued operations in 2000 through the date of sale.

In recent years our restaurant business has experienced the following trends:

e Continued growth of food consumed away from home as a percentage of total food-related
spending;

o Increases in the cost and overall difficulty of developing new units in many areas of the country,
primarily as a result of increased competition among quick service restaurant competitors. for
available development sites, higher development costs associated wich those sites and continued
tightening in the lending markets typically used to finance new unit development;

e Increased price competition in the quick service restaurant industry, particularly as evidenced by
the value menu concept which offers comparatively lower prices on some menu items, the
combination meals concept which offers a combination meal at an aggregate price lower than the
individual food and beverage items, couponing and other price discounting;

® The continuing proliferation of competitors in the higher end of the sandwich category, many of
whom are competing with Arby’s by offering higher priced sandwiches with perceived higher
levels of freshness, quality and customization;
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o Additional competitive pressures for prepared food purchases from operators outside the quick
service restaurant industry such as deli sections and in-store cafes of several major grocery store
chains, convenience stores and casual dining outlets; and

© The addition of selected higher-priced quality items to menus, which appeal more to adult tastes
and offer an opportunity to recover some of the dollar margins lost in the discounting of other
menu items.

We have experienced the effects of these trends to the extent they affect sales by our franchisees and,
accordingly, impact the royalties and franchise fees we receive from them. Effective December 27, 2002 we also
experienced these effects directly to the extent they affect the operations of our recently acquired restaurants.

Presentation of Financial Information

| This “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” of Triarc

| Companies, Inc., which we refer to as Triarc, and its subsidiaries should be read in conjunction with our
consolidated financial statements included elsewhere herein. Certain statements we make under this Item 7

| constitute “forward-looking statements” under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. See
“Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements and Projections” in “Part I” preceding “Item 1.”

We report on a fiscal year consisting of 52 or 53 weeks ending on the Sunday closest to December 31.
Each of our 2000, 2001 and 2002 fiscal years contained 52 weeks. Our 2000 fiscal year commenced on January
3, 2000 and ended on December 31, 2000, our 2001 fiscal year commenced on January 1, 2001 and ended on
December 30, 2001, and our 2002 fiscal year commenced on December 31, 2001 and ended on December 29,
2002. When we refer to “2000” we mean the period from January 3, 2000 to December 31, 2000; when we
refer to “2001” we mean the period from January 1, 2001 to December 30, 2001; and when we refer to “2002”
we mean the period from December 31, 2001 to December 29, 2002.

Certain amounts presented in this “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” for 2000 and 2001 have been reclassified to conform with the curreat year’s
presentation.
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Results of Operations

Set forth below is a table that summarizes our results of operations and compares the amount and percent
of the change between (1) 2000 and 2001, which we refer to as the 2001 Change, and (2) 2001 and 2002,
which we refer to as the 2002 Change. We consider certain percentage changes between years to be not
measurable or not meaningful, and we refer to these as “n/m.” The percentage changes used in the following
discussion have been rounded to the nearest whole percentage.
2001 Change 2002 Change
2000 2001 2002 Amount  Percent Amount  Percent
- - (ﬁﬂlions Except Percents)

Revenues, investment income and other

income:
Royalties and franchise and related
fees oo $ 874 $ 928 $ 978 § 54 6% $§ 5.0 5 %
Investment income, net ............ 30.7 33.6 0.8 2.9 9% (32.8) (97)%
Gain (loss) on sale of businesses . ... — 0.5 1.2) 0.5 n/m 1.7 no/m
Other income, net................. 1.3 10.2 1.4 8.9 n/m (8.8) (87)%
Total revenues, investment
income and other income.... 1194 137.1 98.8 17.7 15 % (38.3) (28)%
Costs and expenses:
General and administrative ......... 80.5 77.4 75.9 (3.1) (4)% (1.5) 2)%

Depreciation and amortization,
excluding amortization of deferred

financing €osts .................. 5.3 6.5 6.6 1.2 22 % 0.1 1%
Capital market transaction related

COMPENSALION. . .o vvvene e, 26.0 — — (26.0) no/m — —
Interest €Xpense ................... 4.8 30.4 26.2 25.6 n/m 4.2) (14)%
Insurance expense related to long-

term debt ... ... 0.6 4.8 4.5 4.2 n/m (0.3) (6)%
Costs of proposed business

acquisitions not consummated . ... — 0.6 2.2 0.6 n/m 1.6 no/m

Total costs and expenses ....... 117.2 119.7 1154 2.5 2% (4.3) (4%

Income (loss) from
continuing operations
before income taxes and

minority interests ...... 2.2 17.4 (16.6) 15.2 no/m (34.0) o/m
Benefit from (provision for) income taxes (12.4) 8.7) 3.3 3.7 n/m 12.0 n/m
Minority interests in loss of a
consolidated subsidiaty ............... — 0.3 3.5 0.3 no/m 3.2 n/m
Income (loss) from
continuing operations . .. (10.2) 9.0 (9.8) 19.2 n/m (18.8) n/m
Income from discontinued operations. . ... 472.1 43 4 11.1  (428.7) n/m (32.3) n/m
Income before
extraordinary charges ... 461.9 52.4 1.3  (409.5) n/m 51.1) o/m
Extraordinary charges ................... (20.7) — — 20.7 n/m — n/m
Net income .............. $4412 $ 524 ¢ 1.3 $(388.8) n/m $ 51.1) n/m

2002 Compared with 2001

Royalties and Franchise and Related Fees

Our royalties and franchise and related fees, which were generated entirely from our restaurant business,
increased $5.0 million, or 5%, to $97.8 million in 2002 from $92.8 million in 2001 reflecting a $5.7 million,
or 6%, increase in royalties partially offset by a $0.7 million, or 17%, decrease in franchise and related fees. The
increase in royalties consisted of (1) a $3.3 million improvement resulting from the royalties from the 116
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restaurants opened in 2002, with generally higher than average sales volumes, replacing the royalties from the
64 generally underperforming restaurants closed in 2002, (2) a $1.7 million improvement due to a 2% increase
in same-store sales of franchised restaurants and (3) a $0.7 million improvement due to an increase in the
average royalty rate to 3.4% in 2002 from 3.3% in 2001. The decrease in franchise and related fees was
principally due to a decrease in the amount of revenues recognized from forfeited deposits upon the termination
of commitments to open new franchised restaurants and the opening of 15 fewer franchised restaurants in 2002
compared with 2001, partially offset by an increase in franchise license renewal fees and a decrease in franchise
tee credits earned by franchisees under our remodeling incentive program.

During the fourth quarter of 2002, we experienced a 3% decline in the same-store sales of franchised
restaurants and, based on early results, this trend appears to be continuing into the first quarter of 2003. We
believe this decline is affected by the adverse effects of worse weather conditions, price discounting in the quick
service restaurant industry, the generally sluggish economy and for the fourth quarter of 2002, strong same-
store sales comparisons. During the balance of 2003, we intend to continue Arby's national cable television
advertising with a new campaign and introduce new operational, product and marketing initiatives which we
expect will favorably impact the trend of same-store sales.

Our royalties and franchise fees have no associated cost of sales. However, commencing in 2003 we will
report net sales and related cost of sales due to the Sybra Acquisition. Included in royalties and franchise and
related fees in 2002 and 2001 are $7.5 million and $7.4 million, respectively, of franchise revenues from Sybra
prior to the Sybra Acquisition. Franchise revenues from Sybra will no longer be included in our consolidated
results of operations in future periods but instead Sybra’s results of operations will be included in our future
consolidated operating results.

Investment Income, Net

The following table summarizes and compares the major components of investment income, net:

2001 2002 Change
(In Millions)

INEEIESt I0COMIE . o o ottt et e et et e e e e e e e e $31.8 $10.9 $(20.9
Other than temporary unrealized losses .................. ... ... ... (3.5) (@145 Q1.0
Recognized net gains ........ ... it e 5.0 2.7 (2.3)
Distributions, including dividends................. ... .. .. L 1.2 2.1 0.9
Investment management and performance fees....................... (1.0) (0.4) 0.6
Other . .o 0.1 — 0.1)

$33.6 $ 0.8 $(32.8)

The decrease in interest income is due to lower average interest rates and, to a lesser extent, lower average
amounts of cash equivalents and interest-bearing short-term investments during 2002 compared with 2001.
Average rates on our interest-bearing investments declined from 4.8% in 2001 to 1.8% in 2002 principally due
to the general decline in the money market and short-term interest rate environment which has continued into
2003. The average amount of our interest-bearing investments declined principally due to our payment in
mid-March 2001 of $239.3 million of estimated income taxes related to the Snapple Beverage Sale in October
2000. Our recognized net gains and other than temporary unrealized losses are dependent upon the underlying
economics and/or volatility in the value of our investments in available-for-sale securities and cost basis
investments and/or the timing of the sales of those investments. Accordingly, our recognized net gains and our
other than temporary unrealized losses presented in the above table may not recur in future periods.

As of December 29, 2002, we had pretax unrealized holding gains and (losses) on available-for-sale
marketable securities of $1.2 million and $(1.0) million, respectively, included in accumulated other
comprehensive deficit. Should either (1) we decide to sell any of these investments or (2) any of the unrealized
losses continue such that we believe they have become other than temporary, we would recognize the gains or
losses on the related investments at that time. In addition, through 280 BT Holdings LLC, a 57.4%-owned
consolidated subsidiary, we hold a $1.7 million cost basis investment in Scientia Health Group Limited, an
entity which we refer to as Scientia, representing original cost less adjustments for unrealized losses in
investments made by Scientia that were deemed to be other than temporary of $3.3 million during 2002. Such
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amounts have been effectively reduced by minority interests of $0.7 million and $1.4 million, respectively. In
addition, as of December 29, 2002 we have $0.8 million of non-recourse notes receivable from management
officers and employees relating to a portion of their investments in 280 BT Holdings, less an allowance of $0.4
million for uncollectible amounts. If the value of the investments of 280 BT Holdings decline further and,
accordingly, we recognize additional other than temporary losses, we would also provide additional allowances
relating to the non-recourse notes receivable in “General and administrative” expenses.

Gain (Loss) on Sale of Businesses

The loss on sale of businesses of $1.2 million in 2002 represents a reduction of a gain related to a business
previcusly sold due to a charge for estimated environmental clean-up and related costs. The gain on sale of
businesses of $0.5 million in 2001 reflects the release of sales tax accruals no longer necessary due to the
expiration of statutory audit periods. These accruals were originally provided as a component of the loss on sale
of all the 355 then company-owned restaurants in 1997.

Other Income, Net

The following table summarizes and compares the major components of other income, net:
2001 2002 Change

(In Millions)

Interest income related to the Snapple Beverage Sale ................. $83 $— $(8.3)
Reduction in the fair value of the liability for a written call option on

UL STOCK . oot 0.8 — (0.8)
Other INTErest INCOME . ..o oottt et 0.4 0.3 0.1)
Equity in (losses) earnings of investees, other than investment limited

partnerships and similar investment entities ....................... 0.2) 0.3 0.5
Other . . 0.9 0.8 0.1)

$102 $ 1.4 $(8.8)

Other income, net decreased $8.8 million principally due to $8.3 million of interest income recorded in
2001 which did not recur in 2002 related to our election in June 2001 to treat certain portions of the Snapple
Beverage Sale as an asset sale for income tax purposes, as explained in more detail under “Discontinued
Operations.” The written call option on our common stock relates to the right of Cadbury to have caused us to
issue our common stock upon conversion of our zero coupon convertible debentures that had been assumed by
Cadbury. Cadbury called the debentures for redemption in full with a redemption date of February 9, 2003, and
the written call option terminated without any of our common stock being called under the option. The $0.5
million increase in equity in (losses) earnings of investees, other than investment limited partnerships and
similar investment entities, was primarily attributable to the $0.3 million of equity in earnings of Encore
Capital Group, Inc., formerly MCM Capital Group, Inc., which we refer to as Encore, in 2002 compared with
equity in losses of Encore of less than $0.1 million in 2001 as Encore returned to profitability in 2002. We own
7.2% of the issued and outstanding common stock of Encore and 17.5% of convertible preferred stock of
Encore. If all of the convertible prefecred stock were converted, the Company’s ownership in Encore common
stock would increase to 13.1%.

General and Administrative

Our general and administrative expenses decreased $1.5 million, or 2%, principally reflecting (1) a $5.3
million decrease in incentive compensation costs, (2) 2 $0.7 million decrease in legal fees, (3) a $0.6 million
decrease in the provision for doubtful accounts due to the realization in 2002 of collections on two fully-
reserved notes from franchisees and (4) a $0.5 million decrease in deferred compensation expense. The $5.3
million decrease in incentive compensation was principally due to lower executive bonuses relating to 2002 as
compared with 2001. Deferred compensation expense of $1.4 million in 2002 and $1.9 million in 2001
represents the increase in the fair value of investments in two deferred compensation trusts, which we refer to as
the Trusts, for the benefit of our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and President and Chief Operating
Officer, whom we refer to as the Executives, as explained in more detail below under “Income (Loss) From
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Continuing Operacions Before Income Taxes and Minority Interests.” These decreases were partially offsec by
(1) a $5.0 million reduction in compensation expense in 2001 which did not recur in 2002 related to a note
that we received from the Executives in partial settlement of a class action shareholder lawsuit which effectively

represented an adjustment of prior period compensation expense and (2) an increase of $1.1 million in insurance
costs principally reflecting higher premiums.

Depreciation and Amortization, Excluding Amortization of Deferved Financing Costs

Our depreciation and amortization, excluding amortization of deferred financing costs, in total was
relatively unchanged at $6.6 million in 2002 compared with $6.5 million in 2001.

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased $4.2 million, or 14%, principally reflecting (1) interest of $3.1 million
recorded in 2001 which did not recur in 2002 on the estimated income tax liability paid with the filing of our
election in June 2001 to treat certain portions of the Snapple Beverage Sale as an asset sale for income tax
purposes, as explained below under “Discontinued Operations,” and (2) a $1.4 million decrease in interest
expense due to lower outstanding balances of our 7.44% insured non-recourse securitization notes, which we
refer to as the Securitization Notes. These decreases were partially offset by a $0.6 million increase in interest
expense due to the full period effect in 2002 of a term loan and related interest rate swap agreement used to
finance the purchase of an airplane in July 2001.

Insurance Expense Related to Long-Term Debt

Insurance expense related to long-term debt decreased $0.3 million, or 6%, to $4.5 million in 2002 from
$4.8 million in 2001 due to lower outstanding balances of the Securitization Notes.

Costs of Proposed Business Acquisitions Not Consummated

The $2.2 million of costs of proposed business acquisitions not consummated in 2002 were primarily for a
business acquisition proposal which was not accepted. The $0.6 million of costs in 2001 were for other
proposed business acquisitions not consummated.

Income (Loss) From Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes and Minovity Interests

Our income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes and minority interests decreased $34.0
million to a loss of $16.6 million in 2002 from income of $17.4 million in 2001 due to the effect of the
variances explained in the captions above.

As disclosed above, we recognized $1.9 million in 2001 and $1.4 million in 2002 of deferred
compensation expense for the increase in the fair value of the investments in the Trusts. Under accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, we recognized investment income of $0.2 million
on the investments in the Trusts in 2001, but were not permitted to recognize any investment income on the
investments in the Trusts in 2002. This disparity between compensation expense and investment income
recognized will reverse in the future periods as either (1) the investments in the Trusts are sold and previously
unrealized gains are recognized without any offsetting increase in compensation expense or (2) the fair values of
the investments in the Trusts decrease resulting in the recognition of a reduction of deferred compensation
expense without any offsetting losses recognized in investment income.

Income Taxes

The benefit from and provision for income taxes represented effective rates of 20% in 2002 and 50% in
2001 on the respective loss or income from continuing operations before income taxes and minority interests.
The effective benefit rate in 2002 is lower than the United States Federal statutory rate of 35% principally due
to (1) the tax provision related to minority interests in loss of a consolidated subsidiary, which is not included
in income or loss from continuing operations before income taxes and minority interests, (2) the state income
taxes, net of Federal income tax benefit, of the consolidated entities due to the differing mix of pretax income
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or loss among the consolidated entities which file state tax returns on an individual company basis and (3) che
effect of non-deductible compensation costs. The effective provision rate in 2001 was higher than the 35% rate
principally due to (1) the effect of non-deductible compensation costs and (2) state income taxes, both of which
had a greater effect in 2001 compared with 2002.

Minority Interests in Loss of a Consolidated Subsidiary

The minority interests in loss of a consolidated subsidiary of $3.5 million in 2002 and $0.3 million in
2001 principally reflect provisions for unrealized losses by 280 BT Holdings on its cost basis investments
deemed to be other than temporary.

Discontinued Operations

Income from discontinued operations, which resulted entirely from adjustments to the previously
recognized gain on the Snapple Beverage Sale, was $11.1 million in 2002 compared with $43.4 million in
2001. The adjustment to the gain in 2002 was due to the release of reserves for income taxes associated with
the discontinued beverage operations in connection with the receipt of related income tax refunds. The
adjustment to the gain in 2001 resulted from the realization of $200.0 million of proceeds from Cadbury for
our electing in June 2001 to treat certain portions of the Snapple Beverage Sale as an asset sale in lieu of a stock
sale under the provisions of Section 338(h)(10) of the United Scates Internal Revenue Code, net of estimated
income taxes, partially offset by additional accruals relating to the Snapple Beverage Sale.

2001 Compared with 2000

Royalties and Franchise and Related Fees

Our royalties and franchise and related fees, which were generated entirely from our restaurant business,
increased $5.4 million, or 6%, to $92.8 million in 2001 from $87.4 million in 2000 reflecting a $5.3 million,
ot 6%, increase in royalties and a $0.1 million, or 2%, increase in franchise and related fees. The increase in
royalties consisted of (1) a $3.9 million improvement resulting from the royalties from the 131 restaurants
opened in 2001, with generally higher than average sales volume, replacing the royalties from the 99 generally
underperforming restaurants closed in 2001, (2) a $1.2 million improvement due to a 2% increase in same-
store sales of franchised restaurants and (3) a $0.2 million improvement due to a higher average royalty rate.
The slight increase in franchise and related fee revenue was principally due to (1) an increase in fees from
franchise license transfers and franchisee training and (2) an increase in revenues recognized from forfeited
deposits upon the termination of commitments to open new franchised restaurants, boch substantially offset by
a decrease in franchise fee revenue principally due to the opening of 25 fewer franchised restaurants in 2001
compared with 2000.

Our royalties and franchise fees have no associated cost of sales.

Investment Income, Net

The following table summarizes and compares the major components of investment income, net:

2000 2001 Change
(In Millions)

IOTEIESt IMCOMIE. o o\ttt ettt e e et e e e e e e e e $16.5 $31.8 §$15.3
Other than temporary unrealized losses........... ... .. ... ... ..., (3.7) (3.5) 0.2
Recognized et GaiNs ... .....ouunuuuun e 17.2 5.0 (12.2)
Distributions, including dividends ....................... .. ... ... 1.6 1.2 0.4)
Investment management and performance fees ....................... 0.8) (1.0) (0.2)
Other oo (0.1) 0.1 0.2

$30.7 $33.6 $ 29

The increase in interest income was due to higher average amounts of cash equivalents and short-term
investments in 2001 compared with 2000 as a result of the full year effect in 2001 of the cash provided from
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the Snapple Beverage Sale and $277.0 million of proceeds, net of $13.0 million of expenses, from the issuance
of the Securitization Notes on November 21, 2000. The decrease in recognized net gains on our investments
includes $10.3 million which was attributable to our gain on the sale of one particular common stock
investment in 2000 which did not recur in 2001.

Gain on Sale of Businesses

The gain on sale of businesses of $0.5 million in 2001 reflects the release of sales tax accruals no longer
necessary as previously discussed in more detail in the comparison of 2002 and 2001. There was no gain on sale
of businesses included in continuing operations in 2000.

Other Income, Net

The following table summarizes and compares the major components of other income, net:

2000 2001 Change
(In Millions)

Interest income related to the Snapple Beverage Sale.................. $— $ 83 $83
Equity in losses of investees, other than investment limited

partnerships and similar investment entities........................ (2.3)  (0.2) 21
Reduction in the fair value of the liability for a written call option on

OUL STOCK « .ttt 0.7 0.8 0.1
Settlement of bankruptcy claims with a former affiliate previously

WEITten Off ..o e 0.9 —_ 0.9)
Other INTErest INCOME . .. v' ittt et et e 0.7 0.4 (0.3)
L 1 1 =: S U PP 1.3 0.9 0.4)

$13 $10.2 $89

Other income, net, increased $8.9 million principally due to (1) $8.3 million of interest income recorded
in 2001, which did not occur in 2000, related to our election to treat certain portions of the Snapple Beverage
Sale as an asset sale for income tax purposes, as previously discussed in more detail in the comparison of 2002
and 2001 and (2) a $2.1 million decrease in our equity in the losses of investees other than investment limited
partnerships and similar investment entities accounted for under the equity method, principally due to $1.8
million of equity in the write-down of certain assets by an investee in 2000 which did not recur in 2001. These
increases were partially offset by the non-recurring collection in 2000 of $0.9 million of a receivable from a
former affiliate which was written off in years prior to 2000 due to the former affiliate filing for bankruptcy
protection.

General and Administrative

Our general and administrative expenses decreased $3.1 million, or 4%, reflecting (1) an $11.4 million
decrease in stock option compensation costs due to costs incurred in 2000 which did not recur in 2001
consisting of (a) $10.4 million resulting from our repurchase of class A common stock from certain officers and
a director within six months after the exercise of related stock options by such officers and director and (b) $1.0
million resulting from other stock option activity relating to the Snapple Beverage Sale, (2) a 5.0 million
reduction in compensation expense related to a note receivable from the Executives that we received in 2001, as
previously explained in more detail in the comparison of 2002 and 2001, (3) provisions of $1.2 million in 2000
which did not recur in 2001 for costs to support a change in distributors of food and other products for a
majority of franchisees in our restaurant franchising operations and (4) a $1.2 million decrease in charitable
contributions in 2001. These decreases were partially offset by (1) higher incentive compensation costs of $5.0
million under our executive bonus plan principally reflecting the positive impact of the Snapple Beverage Sale
on our capitalization, (2) a $2.5 million increase in insurance expense due to (a) 2 1.5 million reduction of
insurance expense recognized in 2000 which did not recur in 2001 relating co the favorable settlement of
insurance claims by the purchaser of a former insurance subsidiary that we sold in 1998 resulting in the
collection of a $1.5 million note receivable that we received as a portion of the sales proceeds which was fully
reserved at the time of sale and (b) a $1.0 million increase in insurance premiums in 2001, (3) $2.1 million of
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expenses in connection with an Arby’s national cable television advertising campaign introduced in 2001,
(4) $1.9 million of deferred compensation expense recognized in 2001 representing the increase in the fair value
of investments in the Trusts for the benefit of the Executives, as previously explained in more detail in the
comparison of 2002 and 2001 under “Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes and
Minority Interests” and (5) other general increases. The $1.5 million gain in 2000 from realization of the note
receivable discussed above was included as a reduction of general and administrative expenses since the gain
effectively represented an adjustment of prior period insurance reserves.

Depreciation and Amortization, Excluding Amortization of Deferred Financing Costs

Our depreciation and amortization, excluding amortization of deferred financing costs, increased §$1.2
million, or 22%, principally reflecting (1) 2 $0.5 million increase in depreciation related to an airplane that was
placed in service in September 2001 which replaced fractional interests in two airplanes under timeshare
agreements which were terminated and (2) a $0.5 million increase in amortization related to leasehold
improvements completed during the 2001 second quarter.

Capital Marker Transaction Related Compensation

The capital market transaction related compensation charge of $26.0 million in 2000 resulted from
incentive compensation costs directly related to the completion of the Snapple Beverage Sale and the issuance of
our Securitization Notes. This compensation consisted of an aggregate of $22.5 million to the Executives which
was invested in the Trusts for their benefit in January 2001 and $3.5 million paid to other officers and
employees in January 2001. There was no similar charge in 2001.

Interest Expense

Interest expense increased $25.6 million to $30.4 million in 2001 primarily reflecting (1) $18.5 million
of additional interest in 2001 on our Securitization Notes and $1.9 million of additional amortization of related
deferred financing costs, due to the full year effect on interest expense in 2001 of the Securitization Notes
which were issued on November 21, 2000, (2) interest of $3.1 million for the period from March 15, 2001
through June 14, 2001 on the estimated income tax liability paid with the filing of our election in June 2001
to treat certain portions of the Snapple Beverage Sale as an asset sale for income tax purposes as previously
explained in more detail in the comparison of 2002 and 2001 under “Discontinued Operations” and (3) interest
of $1.3 million in connection with a term loan and a related interest rate swap agreement used to finance the
purchase of an airplane in July 2001.

Insurance Expense Related to Long-Term Debt

Insurance expense related to long-term debt increased $4.2 million to $4.8 million in 2001 reflecting
increased charges relating to the full year effect in 2001 of insuring the payment of principal and interest on
the Securitization Notes which were issued on November 21, 2000.

Income from Comtinuing Operations Before Income Taxes and Minority Interests

Our income from continuing operations before income taxes and minority interests increased $15.2
million to $17.4 million in 2001 due to the effect of the variances explained in the captions above.

Income Tuxes

The provision for income taxes represented effective rates of 50% in 2001 and 559% in 2000. The
effective rate is unusually high in 2000 principally due to the relatively low amount of pretax income and the
effect thereon of non-deductible compensation costs. The effective rate is lower in 2001, but still exceeds the
United States Federal statutory rate of 35%, principally due to (1) the effect of non-deductible compensation
costs, which were significantly lower in 2001 compared with 2000, and (2) the effect of state income taxes,
which was lower in 2001 compared with 2000, due to the differing mix of pretax income or loss among the
consolidated entities which file state tax returns on an individual company basis.
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Minority Interesis in Loss of a Consolidated Subsidiary

The mincrity interests in loss of a consolidated subsidiary was $0.3 million in 2001 as previously
explained in more detail in the comparison of 2002 and 2001. In 2000 this consolidated subsidiary had no
income or loss and, accordingly, no minority interests.

Discontinued Operations

Income from discontinued operations was $43.4 million in 2001 compared with $472.1 million in 2000.
The 2001 income from discontinued operations resulted entirely from adjustments to the previously recognized
estimated gain on the Snapple Beverage Sale as previously explained in more detail in the comparison of 2002
and 2001. The 2000 income from discontinued operations consisted of the then estimated gain on disposal of
the discontinued beverage businesses of $481.0 million less the loss from operations of the discontinued
businesses of $8.9 million through the October 25, 2000 Snapple Beverage Sale.

Revenues and other income of the beverage businesses were $681.0 million in 2000 through the October
25, 2000 Snapple Beverage Sale reflecting in part the impact of the acquisition of two premium beverage
distributors on February 26, 1999 and January 2, 2000. The beverage businesses generated a net loss of $8.9
million in 2000 through the October 25, 2000 Snapple Beverage Sale principally reflecting the negative impact
of operating costs and expenses associated with the acquisition of the two premium beverage distributors
referred to above and interest expense related to additional borrowings and the effect of an increasing interest
rate environment on the variable-rate debt of our beverage businesses.

Extraordinary Charges

The extraordinary charges of $20.7 million in 2000 resulted from the early assumption by Cadbury or
extinguishment by us, as applicable, of (1) borrowings under a senior bank credit facility maintained by
Snapple, Mistic, Stewart’s, Royal Crown and RC/Arby’s Corporation, the former parent company of Royal
Crown and Asby’s, Inc., (2) 10%% senior subordinated notes due 2009 co-issued by Snapple Beverage Group
and Triarc Consumer Products Group, LLC, a subsidiary of ours and the former parent of Snapple Beverage
Group and Royal Crown, and (3) zero coupon convertible subordinated debentures due 2018. These
extraordinary charges consisted of (1) the write-off of previously unamortized deferted financing costs of $27.5
million and (2) the payment of prepayment penalties and fees of $5.5 million, both less income tax benefit of
$12.3 million. There were no similar charges in 2001.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash Flows from Continuing Operating Activities

Our consolidated operating activities from continuing operations provided cash and cash equivalents,
which we refer to in this discussion as cash, of $12.0 million during 2002 reflecting (1) net operating
investment adjustments of $17.6 million, (2) net non-cash charges of $6.3 million and (3) the collection of a
litigation settlement receivable of $1.7 million, all partially offset by (1) a loss from continuing operations of
$9.8 million and (2) cash used by changes in operating assets and liabilities of $3.8 million.

The net operating investment adjustments of $17.6 million consisted of (1) net recognized losses of $11.8
million principally due to the recognition of non-cash other than temporary losses on available-for-sale
securities and other cost basis investments, (2) $5.2 million of ner sales of trading securities in excess of
purchases and (3) a $0.6 million adjustment for the non-cash net amortization of premium on debt securities.

The net non-cash charges of $6.3 million consisted principally of $8.4 million of depreciation and
amortization and $1.4 million of deferred compensation, both partially offset by $3.5 million of minority
interests in loss of a consolidated subsidiary. The cash used by changes in operating assets and liabilities of $3.8
million reflects a decrease in accounts payable and accrued expenses of $6.1 million partially offset by decreases
in receivables of $1.6 million, prepaid expenses of $0.6 million and inventories of $0.1 million. The decrease in
accounts payable and accrued expenses was principally due to a $4.0 million dectease in accrued incentive
compensation. The decrease in receivables was principally due to the collection of past due amounts from
franchisees.
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Cash flows from continuing operating activities were positive in 2002 even after excluding the effect of
the net sales of trading securities which represent the discretionary investment of excess cash. However, we
currently expect that our continuing operating activities will require the net use of cash in 2003, even after
excluding the effect of any net purchases of trading securities. This expected net use of cash results from the
required funding of net negative working capital of $20.8 million assumed in the Sybra Acquisition. We expect
to meet this operating cash flow requirement through the use of our aggregate $623.5 million of existing cash
and cash equivalents and short-term investments, net of $9.2 million short-term investments sold with an
obligation for us to purchase.

Working Capital and Capitalization

Working capital, which equals current assets less current liabilities, was $510.4 million at December 29,
2002, reflecting .a current ratio, which equals current assets divided by current liabilities, of 4.2:1. Working
capital decreased $46.2 million from $556.6 million at December 30, 2001 principally due to (1) the effect of
the Sybra Acquisition consisting of the $9.7 million cost and the $20.8 million of net negative working capital
assumed in the acquisition and (2) the reclassification of $25.9 million of long-term debt to current.

Our total capitalization at December 29, 2002 was $719.8 million consisting of stockholders’ equity of
$332.7 million and $387.1 million of long-term debt, including current portion. Our total capitalization
increased $73.7 million from $646.1 million at December 30, 2001 principally due to (1) the assumption of
$103.2 million of debt in the Sybra Acquisition, (2) proceeds of $6.1 million from stock option exercises and
(3) net income of $1.3 million, all partially offset by (1) repayments of long-term debt of $29.8 million,
including $5.5 million related to debt assumed in the Sybra Acquisition, (2) repurchases of $7.0 million of our
common stock discussed below under “Treasury Stock Purchases” and (3) adjustments of $1.7 million in
deriving comprehensive loss from net income.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes the expected payments under our outstanding contractual obligations at
December 29, 2002:
Fiscal Years

2003 2004-2005  2006-2007  After 2007 Total
(In Millions)

Long-term debt @) ............... ...l $33.6 $ 72.7 $ 84.0 $ 191.2  $381.5
Capitalized leases (b) ..................... 0.8 L5 0.6 2.7 5.6
Operating leases (€)....................... 17.4 29.0 23.3 84.3 154.0
Deferred compensation payable to related
parties (d) ....... .. i — 25.7 — — 25.7
Total ... $51.8 $1289 $107.9 $ 2782  $566.8

(a) Excludes capitalized lease obligations, which are shown separately in the table, and interest.
(b) Excludes interest on capitalized lease obligations.

(c) Represents the future minimum rental obligations including $12.2 million of net unfavorable lease amounts
we have provided and which will not be included in rent expense in future periods.

(d) Represents amounts due to the Executives in 2004, which can be settled either by the payment of cash or
transfer of the investments held in the Trust. The Executives may elect to defer receipt beyond 2004.

Securitization Notes and Sybra Long-Term Debt

We have outstanding, through our ownership of Arby’s Franchise Trust, Securitization Notes with a
remaining principal balance of $254.8 million as of December 29, 2002 which are due no later than December
2020. However, based on cutrent projections and assuming the adequacy of available funds, as defined under
the indenture for the Securitization Notes, which we refer to as the Indenture, we currently estimate that we
will repay $20.7 million in 2003 with increasing annual payments to $37.4 million in 2011 in accordance with
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a targeted principal payment schedule. The Securitizacion Notes are redeemable by Arby’s Franchise Trust at an
amount equal to the total of remaining principal, accrued interest and the excess, if any, of the discounted value
of the remaining principal and interest payments over the outstanding principal amount of the Securitization
Notes.

Obligations under the Securitization Notes are insured by a financial guarantee company and are
collateralized by assets with a total net book value of $46.0 million as of December 29, 2002 consisting of cash
and cash equivalents of $9.2 million, the cash equivalent reserve account of $30.5 million referred to above and
royalty receivables of $6.3 million.

We have outstanding, through our ownership of Sybra, leasehold notes, equipment notes and mortgage
notes. The leasehold notes have a remaining principal of $82.0 million and are due generally in equal monthly
installments including interest through 2021, of which $5.9 million is due in 2003. The leasehold notes are
secured by leasehold improvements, equipment and inventories with respective net book values of $32.0
million, $12.8 million and $2.1 million. The equipment notes have a remaining principal of $6.3 million and
are generally due in equal monthly installments including interest through 2009, of which $1.3 million is due
in 2003. The equipment notes are secured by restaurant equipment with a net book value of $7.1 million. The
mortgage notes have a remaining principal of $3.3 million and are generally due in equal monthly installments
including interest through 2018, of which $0.1 million is due in 2003. The mortgage notes are secured by land
and buildings of restaurants each with net book values of $1.1 million.

The loan agreements for most of the Sybra leasehold notes, mortgage notes and equipment notes contain
various prepayment provisions that provide for prepayment penalties of up to 5% of the principal amount
prepaid or are based upon specified “yield maintenance” formulas.

The Indenture and the agreements for the leasehold notes and mortgage notes contain various covenants,
the most restrictive of which (1) require periodic financial reporting, (2) require meeting certain debt service
coverage ratio tests and (3) restrict, among other matters, (a) the incurrence of indebtedness, (b) certain asset
dispositions and (c) the payment of distributions by Arby’s Franchise Trust and Sybra. Arby’s Franchise Trust
and Sybra were in compliance with all of these covenants as of December 29, 2002.

As of December 29, 2002, Arby's Franchise Trust had no amounts available for the payment of
distributions. However, on January 21, 2003, $1.6 million relating to cash flows for the calendar month of
December 2002 became available for the payment of distributions by Arby’s Franchise Trust cthrough its parent
to Arby’s which, in turn, would be available to Arby’s to pay management service fees or Federal income tax
sharing payables to Triarc or, to the extent of any excess, make distributions to Triarc. In connection with
Sybra’s reorganization, Sybra is unable to pay any distributions prior to December 27, 2004.

Sybra is required to maintain a fixed charge coverage ratio under the agreements for the leasehold notes
and equipment notes. In the event that Sybra fails to maintain the minimum fixed charge coverage ratio, such
failure may be cured by a capical contribucion in cash to Sybra in the quarter immediately following such
period of an amount such that the minimum fixed charge coverage ratio would have been met.

Other Long-Term Debt

We have a secured bank term loan payable through 2008 with an outstanding principal amount of $18.3
million as of December 29, 2002, of which $3.2 million is due during 2003. We also have an 8.95% secured
promissory note payable through 2006 with an outstanding principal amount of §13.3 million as of December
29, 2002, of which $1.9 million is due during 2003.

Our total scheduled long-term debt repayments during 2003 are $34.4 million consisting principally of
the $20.7 million expected to be paid under the Securitization Notes, $7.3 million under Sybra’s leasehold,
equipment and mortgage notes, $3.2 million due on the secured bank term loan and $1.9 million due on the
8.95% secured promissory note.

Guarantees and Commitments

Our wholly-owned subsidiary, National Propane Corporation, retains a less than 1% special limited
partner interest in our former propane business, now known as AmeriGas Eagle Propane, L.P., which we refer to
as AmeriGas Eagle. National Propane agreed that while it remains a special limited partner of AmeriGas Eagle,
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it would indemnify the owner of AmeriGas Eagle for any payments the owner makes related to the owner’s
obligations under certain of the debt of AmeriGas Eagle, aggregating approximately $138.0 million as of
December 29, 2002, if AmeriGas Eagle is unable to repay or refinance such debt, but only after recourse by the
owner to the assets of AmeriGas Eagle. National Propane’s principal asset is an intercompany note receivable
from Triarc in the amount of $30.0 million as of December 29, 2002 which amount was increased to $50.0
million as of January 1, 2003. We believe it is unlikely that we will be called upon to make any payments
under this indemnity. In August 2001, AmeriGas Propane, L.P., which we refer to as AmeriGas Propane,
purchased all of the interests in AmeriGas Eagle other than National Propane’s special limited partner interest.
Either National Propane or AmeriGas Propane may require AmeriGas Eagle to repurchase the special limited
partner interest. However, we believe it is unlikely chat either party would require repurchase prior to 2009 as
either AmeriGas Propane would owe us tax indemnification payments if AmeriGas Propane required che
repurchase or we would accelerate payment of deferred taxes, which would amount to $43.4 million as of
December 29, 2002, associated with our July 1999 sale of the propane business if National Propane required
the repurchase. In the event the interest is not repurchased prior to 2009, we estimate our actual related taxes
payable to be $4.0 million in 2003 with further payments in 2004 through 2008 reducing the taxes payable in
2009 to approximately $36.0 million.

Triarc guarantees mortgage and equipment notes payable through 2015 of approximately §42.0 million as
of December 29, 2002 related to 355 restaurants sold by us in 1997. The purchaser of the restaurants also
assumed substantially all of the associated lease obligations which extend through 2031, including all then
existing extension or renewal option periods, although Arby’s remains contingently liable if the purchaser does
not make the required future lease payments. Those lease obligations total approximately $66.0 million as of
December 29, 2002, assuming the purchaser has made all scheduled payments through that date under those
lease obligations.

We guarantee up to $6.7 million of senior notes that marure in January 2007 issued by Encore to a major
financial institution. During 2002, the outstanding principal amount of these notes was reduced from $10.0
million to $7.2 million as the lender forgave $2.8 million of principal and $2.5 million of related accrued
interest upon an investment by certain significant stockholders, including us, of $5.0 million in newly-issued
convertible preferred stock of Encore. Cur portion of the preferred stock investment was $0.9 million and
certain of our present officers, including entities controlled by them, invested an aggregate of $1.4 million. Our
guarantee will be reduced by (1) any repayments of these senior notes, (2) any purchases of these senior notes by
us and (3) the amount of certain investment banking or financial advisory services fees paid to the financial
institution by us, Encore or another significant stockholder of Encore or any of their affiliates. Some of our
present and former officers, including entities controlled by them, who collectively owned 15.7% of Encore at
the time of Encore’s initial public offering in July 1999 are not parties to this note guarantee and could
indirectly benefit from it.

In addition to the note guarantee, we and certain other stockholders of Encore, including our present and
former officers referred to above who had invested in Encore prior to its initial public offering, on a joint and
several basis, have entered into guarantees and agreements to guarantee up to $15.0 million of revolving credit
borrowings of a subsidiary of Encore. We would be responsible for approximately $1.8 million assuming the
full $15.0 million was borrowed and all of the parties, besides us, to the guarantees of the revolving credit
borrowings and certain related agreements fully perform thereunder. As of Encore’s year end of December 31,
2002, Encore had $3.9 million of outstanding revolving credit borrowings. At December 29, 2002 we had a
$15.0 million interest-bearing bank custodial account at the financial institution providing the revolving credit
facility. Under the guarantees of the revolving credit borrowings, this deposit is subject to set off under certain
circumstances if the parties to these guarantees of the revolving credit borrowings and related agreements fail to
perform their obligations thereunder.

Encore had encountered cash flow and liquidity difficulties in the past. However, Encore’s liquidity and
capital were positively impacted by the debt forgiveness and preferred stock investment discussed above. Encore
also has returned to profitability, and it reported net income available to common stockholders for its year
ended December 31, 2002. We currently believe it is unlikely that we will be required to make payments
under the note guarantee and/or the bank guarantees.
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Capital Expenditures

During 2002 cash capital expenditures included in “Properties” in our accompanying consolidated balance
sheet amounted to $0.1 million and we purchased a fractional interest in the use of a helicopter for $1.2
million. We expect that cash capital expenditures will be approximately $3.6 million during 2003, principally
to remodel company-owned restaurants, for which there were no outstanding commitments as of December 29,
2002.

Acquisitions and Investments

On December 27, 2002 we completed the Sybra Acquisition for $9.7 million, including estimated fees
and expenses of $1.5 million, as discussed in more detail in the “Introduction” to this “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” The purchase price, less cash of
Sybra of $9.4 million, resulted in a net use of our cash of $0.3 million.

As of December 29, 2002, we have $658.2 million of cash, cash equivalents and investments, including
$34.7 million of investments classified as non-cutrent and net of $9.2 million of securities sold with an
obligation for us to purchase included in “Accrued expenses” in our accompanying consolidated balance sheet.
We also had $32.5 million of restricted cash equivalents including $30.5 million held in a reserve account
discussed above under Securitization Notes. The non-current investments include $22.7 million of investments,
at cost, in the Trusts designated to satisfy deferred compensation. We continue to evaluate strategic
opportunities for the use of our significant cash and investment position, including additional business
acquisitions, repurchases of Triarc common shates (see “Treasury Stock Purchases” below) and investments.

Income Taxes

Our Federal income tax returns for years subsequent to 1993 have not been examined by the Internal
Revenue Service, which we refer to as the IRS. However, should any income taxes or interest be assessed as the
result of any Federal or state examinations for periods through the October 25, 2000 date of the Snapple
Beverage Sale, Cadbury has agreed to pay up to $5.0 million of any resulting income taxes or associated interest
relating to the operations of the former beverage businesses.

Treasury Stock Purchases

Our management is currently authorized, when and if market conditions warrant, to repurchase up to
$50.0 million of our class A common stock through January 18, 2004. We cannot assure you that we will
repurchase any shares under this program. We repurchased 299,600 shares for a total cost of $7.2 million
during 2001 and 289,500 shares for a total cost of $7.0 million during 2002.

Discontinued Operations

The agreement relating to the October 25, 2000 Snapple Beverage Sale provides for a post-closing
adjustment, the amount of which is in dispute. Cadbury has stated that it currently believes that it is entitled
to receive from us a post-closing adjustment of $23.2 million plus interest at 7.19% from Cctober 25, 2000
while we, on the other hand, have stated that we currently believe that no post-closing adjustment is required.
We are in arbitration with Cadbury to determine the amount of the post-closing adjustment, if any. We
currently expect the arbitration process to be completed in 2003.

Cash Requirements

As of December 29, 2002, our consolidated cash requirements for continuing operations for 2003,
exclusive of operating cash flow requirements, consist principally of (1) a maximum of $50.0 million of
payments for repurchases of our class A common stock for treasury under our current stock repurchase program,
(2) scheduled debt principal repayments aggregating $34.4 million, (3) capital expenditures of approximately
$3.6 million and (4) the cost of business acquisitions, if any. Our consolidated cash requirements relating to
discontinued operations for 2003 consist principally of the Snapple Beverage Sale post-closing adjustment, if
any, of up to $23.2 million plus related accrued interest. We anticipate meeting all of these requirements

32




through the use of our aggregate $623.5 million of existing cash and cash equivalents and short-term
investments, net of $9.2 million of short-term investments sold with an obligation for us to purchase.

Legal and Environmental Matters

In 2001, a vacant property owned by Adams Packing Association, Inc., a non-operating subsidiary of ours,
was listed by the United States Environmental Protection Agency on the Comprehensive Environmental
Response, Compensation and Liability Information System, which we refer to as CERCLIS, list of known or
suspected contaminated sites. The CERCLIS listing appears to have been based on an allegation that a former
tenant of Adams Packing conducted drum recycling operations at the site from some time prior to 1971 until
the late 1970s. The business operations of Adams Packing were sold in December 1992. Adams Packing
engaged an environmental consultant that, under the supervision of the Florida Department of Environmental
Protection, which we refer to as the Florida DEP, conducted an investigation of the site that was intended to
develop additional information on the extent and nature of the soil and groundwater contamination and the
appropriate remediation for that contamination. Adams Packing’s environmental consultant has submitted to
the Florida DEP a summary of the results of this investigation and Adams Packing and the Florida DEP have
negotiated a work plan for further investigation of the site and limited remediation of the identified
contamination. The work plan is embodied in a consent order between Adams Packing and the Florida DEP.
The consent order has been executed by Adams Packing and by the Florida DEP subsequent to December 29,
2002 and will become effective upon expiration without incident of a public comment period. Based on a
preliminary cost estimate of approximately $1.0 million for completion of the work plan developed by Adams
Packing’s environmental consultant and, after taking into consideration various legal defenses available to us,
including Adams Packing, Adams Packing has provided for its estimate of its liability for this matter,
including related legal and consulting fees.

On March 23, 1999, a stockholder filed a complaint on behalf of persons who held Triarc class A common
stock as of March 10, 1999 which, as amended in April 2000, alleged that our tender offer statement filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission in 1999, pursuant to which we repurchased 3,805,015 shares of our
class A common stock for $18.25 per share, was materially false and misleading. The amended complaint
sought damages in an unspecified amount, together with prejudgment interest, the costs of suit, including
attorneys’ fees, an order permitting all stockholders who tendered their shares in the tender offer to rescind the
transaction and unspecified other relief. The amended complaint names us and the Executives as defendants. On
October 17, 2002, the court presiding over the matter granted our motion to dismiss this action and
subsequently entered a judgment dismissing the case. On November 21, 2002, the plaintiff filed a notice of
appeal. Subsequent to December 29, 2002, the plaintiff withdrew the appeal.

In October 1998, various class action lawsuits were filed on behalf of our stockholders. Each of these
actions names us, the Executives and members of our board of directors as defendants. On March 26, 1999,
certain plaintiffs in these actions filed an amended complaint making allegations substantially similar to those
asserted in the March 23, 1999 action described in the preceding paragraph. In October 2000, the plaintiffs
agreed to stay this action pending determination of the March 23, 1999 action discussed in the preceding
paragraph.

In addition to the environmental matter and stockholder lawsuits described above, we are involved in
other litigation and claims incidental to our business. We and our subsidiaries have reserves for all of our legal
and environmental matters aggregating $2.7 million as of December 29, 2002. Although the outcome of these
matters cannot be predicted with certainty and some of these matters may be disposed of unfavorably to us,
based on currently available information, including legal defenses available to us and/or our subsidiaries, and
given the aforementioned reserves, we do not believe that the outcome of these legal and environmental matters
will have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of our consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires us to make estimates and assumptions in applying
our critical accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilicies at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amount of
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revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Qur estimates and assumptions concern, among other
things, contingencies for legal, environmental, tax and other matters and the valuations of some of our
investments. We evaluate those estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis based on historical experience
and on various other factors which we believe are reasonable under the circumstances.

We believe that the following represent our more critical estimates and assumptions used in the
preparation of our consolidated financial statements:

© The amount of the post-closing adjustment, if any, being arbitrated in connection with the
Snapple Beverage Sale:

Cadbury has stated thac it currently believes it is entitled to receive from us a post-closing
adjustment of $23.2 million, plus interest at 7.19% from October 25, 2000, while we, on the
other hand, have stated we currently believe that no post-closing adjustment is required. To the
extent that the actual post-closing adjustment differs from the estimate we have accrued, that
difference will be reflected net of income tax effect in the gain or loss on disposal component of
total income or loss from discontinued operations in the fiscal quarter the adjustment is finalized,
which we currently expect will be in 2003. To the extent the actual interest differs from the
estimate we have accrued, that difference will be reflected in interest expense in the same fiscal
quarter the post-closing adjustment is finalized.

e Reserves for the resolution of income tax contingencies which are subject to future examinations of
our Federal and state income tax returns by the IRS, or state taxing authorities, including
remaining provisions included in “Net current liabilities relating to discontinued operations” in
our consolidated balance sheets:

Our Federal income tax returns subsequent to 1993 have not been examined by the IRS. However,
should any income taxes or interest be assessed as the result of any Federal or state examinations
through the October 25, 2000 date of the Snapple Beverage Sale, Cadbury has agreed to pay up to
$5.0 million of any resulting income taxes or associated interest telating to the operations of the
discontinued beverage businesses. :

® Reserves which total $2.7 million at December 29, 2002 for the resolution of all of our legal and
environmental matters as discussed immediately above under “Legal and Environmental Matters™

Should the actual cost of settling these matters differ from the reserves we have accrued, that
difference will be reflected in our results of operations in the fiscal quarter in which the matter is
resolved or when our estimate of the cost changes.

e Valuations of some of our investments:

Our investments in short-term available-for-sale and trading marketable securities are valued based
on quoted market prices or statements of account received from investment managers which are
principally based on quoted market or brokered/dealer prices. Accordingly, we do not anticipate
any significant changes from the valuations of these investments. Our investments in other short-
term investments accounted for under the cost method, which we refer to as Cost Investments, and
investments accounted for under the equity method, which we refer to as Equity Investments, and
the majority of our non-current investments are valued almost entirely based on statements of
account received from the investment managers or the investees which are principally based on
quoted market or brokered/dealer prices. To the extent that some of these investments, including
the underlying investments in investment limited partnerships, do not have available quoted
market or brokered/dealer prices, we rely on third-party appraisals or valuations performed by the
investment managers or the investees in valuing those securities. These valuations are subjective
and thus subject to estimates which could change significantly from period to period. Those
changes in estimates in Cost Investments would impact our earnings only to the extent of losses
which are deemed to be other than temporary. The total carrying value of these investments was
approximately $16.1 million as of December 29, 2002. Those changes in estimates related to the
underlying income or losses of our Equity Investments in investment limited partnerships would
directly impact our earnings for our share of the investments. However, the total carrying value of
these investments is only $1.8 million as of December 29, 2002. We also have $4.1 million of
non-marketable Cost Investments in securities for which it is not practicable to estimate fair value
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because the investments are non-marketable and are in start-up enterprises for which we currently
believe the carrying amount is recoverable.

e Provisions for unrealized losses on certain investments deemed to be other than temporary:

We review all of our investments that have unrealized losses for any that we might deem other
than temporary. The losses we have recognized were deemed to be other than temporary due to
declines in the undetlying economics of specific securities or volatility in capital and lending
markets. This includes the underlying investments of any of our investment limited partnerships
and similar investment entities in which we have an overall unrealized loss. This process is
subjective and subject to estimation. We have aggregate unrealized holding losses on our available-
for-sale marketable securities of $1.0 million as of December 29, 2002 which, if not recovered,
may result in the recognition of future losses. Also, should any of our Cost Investments, which
total approximately $50.8 million as of December 29, 2002, experience declines in value due to
conditions that we deem to be other than temporary, we may recognize additional other than
temporary losses. We have permanently reduced the cost basis component of the investments for
which we have recognized other than temporary losses of $3.7 million, $3.5 million and $14.5
million during 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively. As such, recoveries in the value of the
investments, if any, will not be recognized in income until the investments are sold.

Our estimates of each of these items historically have been adequate. However, due to uncertainties
inherent in the estimation process, it is reasonably possible that the actual resolution of any of these items could
vary significantly from the estimate and, accordingly, there can be no assurance that the estimates may not
materially change in the near term.

inflation and Changmg Prices

We believe that inflation did not have a significant effect on our consolidated results of operations during
2000, 2001 and 2002 since inflation rates generally remained at relatively low levels. ‘

Seasonality

Our continuing operations are not significantly impacted by seasonality. However, our restaurant revenues
are somewhat lower in our first quarter.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.” Statement 143 addresses financial
accounting and reporting for legal obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and
the associated asset retirement costs. Statement 143 requires that the discounted fair value of an asset
retirement obligation be recorded as a liability in the period in which it is incurred or as soon thereafter as a
reasonable estimate of fair value can be made, with a corresponding increase to the carrying amount of the long-
lived asset. The capitalized cost is depreciated over the useful life of the related asset. The provisions of
Statement 143 are effective starting with the first quarter of 2003. We do not believe that any of our tangible
long-lived assets presently have material associated retirement obligations and, accordingly, we do not expect
that the adoption of Statement 143 will have any immediate effect on our consolidated financial position or
results of operations.

In April 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment of FASB Scatement No.
13, and Technical Corrections.” Statement 145 most significantly rescinds Statement 4, “Reporting Gains and
Losses from Extinguishment of Debt,” which required that gains and losses from extinguishment of debt that
were included in the determination of net income be aggregated and, if material, classified as an extraordinary
item, net of related tax effect. Under Statement 145, any gains and losses from extinguishment of debt will be
classified as excraordinary items only if they meet the criteria in Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 30,
“Reporting the Results of Operations—Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and
Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions.” Those criteria specify that
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extraordinary items must be both unusual in their nature and infrequent in their occurrence. The provisions of
Statement 145 with respect to the rescission of Statement 4 must be adopted no later than our fiscal year
beginning December 30, 2002 and require that prior periods presented be reclassified accordingly. Upon
adoption of Statement 145, we expect that any future charges relating to the early extinguishment of debt will
not meet the criteria of extraordinary items under Opinion 30 and, therefore, will be reported as a component
of costs and expenses on a pretax basis with any applicable income tax benefit included in our provision for or
benefit from income taxes. This change in classification would not have any impact on our reported net income
or loss.

In June 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” Statement 146 replaces
the previous accounting guidance provided by Issue No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee
Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a
Restructuring),” of the Emerging Issues Task Force of the Financial Accounting Standards Board. Under
Statement 146, costs associated with exit or disposal activities, other than those associated with a business
acquisition, will be recognized when they are incurred rather than at che date of a commitment to an exit or
disposal plan under Issue 94-3. Examples of costs covered by Statement 146 include contract termination costs,
including leases, and certain employee severance costs that are associated with a restructuring, discontinued
operation, plant closing, or other exit or disposal activity. Statement 146 is to be applied prospectively to exit
or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002. Since we do not presently have any exit or disposal
plans other than severance pay, relocation costs and other costs associated with relocating the Sybra corporate
offices, Statement 146 will not have any immediate effect on our consolidated financial position or results of
operations.

In November 2002, The Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s
Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of
Others,” an interpretation of Statements No. 5, 57 and 107 and rescission of Interpretation No. 34.
Interpretation No. 45 elaborates on the existing disclosure requirements for most guarantees. Interpretation
No. 45 also expands on the accounting guidance of Statement No. 5 “Accounting for Contingencies” and
provides that at the time a guarantee is issued a liability must be recognized for the fair value of the obligation
undertaken in issuing the guarantee, including the ongoing obligation to stand ready to perform over the term
of the guarantee in the event that the specified triggering events or conditions occur. Certain types of
guarantees are not included in the scope of Interpretation No. 45. In the past, we have occasionally guaranteed
debt or lease obligations in connection with the sale of businesses or to support our investment in an affiliate.
The initial recognition provisions of Interpretation No. 45 are applicable on a prospective basis to guarantees
issued or modified after December 31, 2002 and, accordingly, will not have any immediate effect on our
consolidated financial position or results of operations. However, to the extent we enter into any similar
guarantees commencing January 1, 2003, we would be required to recognize the fair value of the guarantees in
our consolidated financial statements. The disclosute requirements of Interpretation No. 45 are effective for our
year ended December 29, 2002 and our disclosure of our guarantees conforms with these requirements.

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation No. 46 “Consolidation
of Variable Interest Encities,” an interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, “Consolidated
Financial Statements.” Variable interest entities, which were formerly referred to as special purpose entities, are
generally entities that either (1) have equity investors that do not provide significant financial resources for the
entity to sustain its activities or (2) have equity investors without voting rights. Under Interpretation No. 46
variable interest entities must be consolidated by the primary beneficiary. The primary beneficiaty is generally
defined as having the majority of the risks and rewards of ownership arising from the variable interest encity.
Interpretation No. 46 also requires certain disclosures if a significant, but not majority, variable interest is held.
Interpretation No. 46 applies immediately for variable interests in entities created or obtained after January 31,
2003 and in the first fiscal period beginning after June 15, 2003 for variable interests in entities acquired
before February 1, 2003. Since we do not presently have interests in any variable interest entities, the
application of Interpretation No. 46 will not have any immediate effect on our consolidated financial position
or results of cperations. :
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Certain statements we make under this Item 7A constitute “forward-looking statements” under the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. See “Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements
and Projections” in “Part I" preceding “Item 1.”

We ate exposed to the impact of interest rate changes, changes in the market value of our investments and,
to a lesser extent, foreign currency fluctuations.

Policies and procedures—In the normal course of business, we employ established policies and procedures to
manage our exposure to changes in interest rates, changes in the market value of our investments and
fluctuations in the value of foreign currencies using financial inscruments we deem appropriate.

Interest Rate Risk

Our objective in managing our exposure to interest rate changes is to limic the impact of interest rate
changes on earnings and cash flows. As of December 29, 2002, our long-term debt, including current portion,
aggregated $387.1 million and consisted of $368.8 million of fixed-rate debt, including $5.6 million of
capitalized leases, and $18.3 million of a variable-rate bank loan. The fair value of our fixed-rate debt will
increase if interest rates decrease. We generally use interest rate caps or interest rate swap agreements on a
portion of our variable-rate debt to limit our exposure to the effects of increases in short-term interest rates on
our earnings and cash flows. As of December 29, 2002 we did not have any interest rate cap agreements
outstanding. However, we do have an interest rate swap agreement in connection with our vatiable-rate bank
term loan. The swap agreement effectively establishes a fixed interest rate on this variable-rate debt, but with
an embedded written call option whereby the swap agreement will no longer be in effect if, and for as long as,
the one-month London Interbank Offered Rate, which we refer to as LIBOR, is at or above the specified rate of
6.5% which was 3% higher than the one-month LIBOR at the time the swap agreement was entered into. This
swap agreement, therefore, does not fully protect us from exposure to significant increases in interest rates due
to the written call option. In addition to our fixed-rate and variable-rate debt, our investment portfolio includes
debt securities that are subject to interest rate risk with maturities which range from less than one year to
nearly thirty years. The fair market value of all of our investments in debt securities will decline if interest rates
increase.

Equity Market Risk

Our objective in managing our exposure to changes in the market value of our investments is to balance
the risk of the impact of these changes on earnings and cash flows with our expectations for long-term
investment returns. Our primary exposure to equity price risk relates to our investments in equity securities,
equity derivatives, securities sold with an obligation for us to purchase and investment limited partnerships and
similar investment entities. We have established policies and pxjdcedures governing the type and relative
magnitude of investments we may make. We have a maﬁagement investment committee which supervises the
investment of certain funds not currently required for our operations and our board of directors has established
certain investment policies to be followed with respect to the investment of funds.

Foreign Currency Risk

Our objective in managing our exposure to foreign currency fluctuations is to limit the impact of these
fluctuations on earnings and cash flows. Our primary exposure: to foreign currency risk relates to our
investments in certain investment limited parenerships and similar investment entities that hold foreign
securities. To a more limited extent, we have foreign currency exposure when one of our investment funds buys
or sells foreign currencies or financial instruments denominated in foreign currencies. However, some of the
investment managers hedge the foreign currency exposure, thereby substantially mitigating the risk. We
monitor these exposures and periodically determine our need for the use of strategies intended to lessen or limit
our exposure to these fluctuations. We also have a relatively limited amount of exposure to (1) investments in
foreign subsidiaries and (2) export revenues and related receivables denominated in foreign currencies which are
subject to foreign currency fluctuations. Our foreign subsidiary exposures relate to operations in Canada and our
export revenue exposures primarily relate to royalties in Canada. Foreign operations and foreign export revenues
of continuing operations for the years ended December 30, 2001 and December 29, 2002 together represented
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only 3% and 2%, respectively, of our total royalties and franchise and related fees, and an immediate 10%
change in foreign cutrency exchange rates versus the United States dollar from their levels at December 30,
2001 and December 29, 2002 would not have a material effect on our consolidated financial position or results
of operations.

Overall Market Risk

We balance our exposure to overall market risk by investing a portion of our portfolio. in cash and cash
equivalents with relatively stable and risk-minimized returns. We periodically interview and select asset
managers to avail ourselves of higher, but more risk-inherent, returns from the investment strategies of these
managers. We also seek to identify alternative investment strategies that may earn higher returns with
attendant increased risk profiles for a portion of our investment portfolio. We continue to evaluate whether to
adjust our asset allocations to increase the portion of our investments which offer the opportunity for higher,
but more risk-inherent, returns and lower the portion of our risk-minimized investments. We periodically
review the returns from each of our investments and may maintain, liquidate or increase selected investments
based on this review and our assessment of potential future returns.

We maintain investment portfolio holdings of various issuers, types and maturities. As of December 30,
2001 and December 29, 2002, such investments consisted of the following (in thousands):

Year-End
o0 2002
Cash equivalents included in “Cash” on our consolidated balance sheets . . .. .. $489,978 $449,005
ShoOrt-term INVESTIMENTS . ...\ v vttt et e te et e ettt et 153,401 175,161
Total cash equivalents and short-term investments ................. 643,379 624,166
Restricted cash equivalents .......... .. ... i i 32,506 32,476
NOO-CULLENT IAVESTINENES . o v v v v e e e e e e et e e e e e e et e e 42,074 34,717

$717,959 $691,359

Our cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less
when acquired and consisted principally of money market mutual funds, interest-bearing brokerage and bank
accounts with a stable value, commercial paper of high credit-quality entities and United States government
agency debt securities. Our short-term investments included $30.0 million and $75.4 million as of
December 30, 2001 and December 29, 2002, respectively, of United States government and government agency
debt securities with maturities ranging from ten months to two years when acquired. The $30.0 million and
$75.4 million together with our cash equivalents were highly liquid investments that combined constituted
over 80% of our total cash equivalents and short-term investments in each year shown above.
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At December 30, 2001 our investments were classified in the following general types or categories (in

thousands):

Cash equivalents. ............................
Restricted cash equivalents ...................
Securities accounted for as:
Trading securities .......................
Available-for-sale securities ...............

Non-current investments held in deferred
compensation trusts accounted for at cost ...

Other current and non-current investments in
investment limited partnerships and similar
investment entities accounted for at:

Equity ...

Total cash equivalents and long investment
POSIEIONS .« .\ttt

Securities sold with an obligation for us to
purchase accounted for as trading securities

At Fair Value Carrying Value

At Cost or Equirty Amount Percentage
$489,978 $489,978 $489,978 68%
32,506 32,506 32,506 5%
27,072 25,014 25,0_14 4%
100,839 102,355 102,355 14%
22,671 24,356 22,671 3%
24,289 35,920 24,289 3%
8,250 8,797 8,797 1%
12,070 12,070 12,070 2%
3,227 279 279 —
$720,902 $731,275 $717,959 100%
$(19,189 $017384) $0173849)  N/A

At December 29, 2002 our investments were classified in the following general types or categories (in

thousands):

Cash equivalents................ .. ... ...
Restricted cash equivalents ..................
Securities accounted for as:
Trading securities ......................
Available-for-sale securities ..............

Non-current investments held in deferred
compensation trusts accounted for at cost ..

Other current and non-current investments in
investment limited partnerships and similar
investment entities accounted for at:

GOt ot e

Equity ...
Other non-current investments accounted for at:

GOS8t ot

Total cash equivalents and long investment
POSILIONS . .ottt i

Securities sold with an obligation for us to
purchase accounted for as trading securities

At Fair Value Carrying Value

At Cost or Equity Amount  Percentage
$449,005  $449,005  $449,005 65%
32,476 32,476 32,476 5%
15,351 12,412 12,412 2%
143,920 144,142 144,142 21%
22,671 25,706 22,671 3%
23,188 36,818 23,188 3%
1,687 1,809 1,809 —
4,975 6,022 4,975 1%
2,893 681 681 —
$696,168 $709,071 $691,359 100%
$ (9.953) $ (9168) $ (9,168) N/A

Our marketable securities are classified and accounted for either as “available-for-sale” or “trading” and are
reported at fair market value with the resulting net unrealized holding gains or losses, net of income taxes,
reported as a separate component of comprehensive income or loss bypassing net income or included as a
component of net income, respectively. Investment limited partnerships and similar investment entities and
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other non-current investments in which we do not have significant influence over the investee are accounted for
at cost (see below). Realized gains and losses on investment limited partnerships and similar investment entities
and other non-current investments recorded at cost are reported as investment income or loss in the period in
which the securities are sold. Investment limited partnerships and similar investment entities and other non-
current investments in which we have significant influence over the investee are accounted for in accordance
with the equity method of accounting under which our results of operations include our share of the income or
loss of each of the investees. We review all of our investments in which we have unrealized losses for any
unrealized losses deemed to be other than temporary. We recognize an investment loss currently for any
resulting other than temporary loss with a permanent reduction in the cost basis component of the investment.
The cost of investments reflected in the tables above represents original cost less unrealized losses that were
deemed to be other than temporary. '

Sensitivity Analysis

For purposes of this disclosure, market risk sensitive instruments are divided into two categories:
instruments entered into for trading purposes and instruments entered into for purposes other than trading.
Our measure of market risk exposure represents an estimate of the potential change in fair value of our financial
instruments. Market risk exposure is presented for each class of financial instruments held by us at December
30, 2001 and December 29, 2002 for which an immediate adverse market movement causes a potential
material impact on our financial position or results of operations. We believe that the rates of adverse market
movements described below represent the hypothetical loss to future earnings and do not represent the
maximum possible loss nor any expected actual loss, even under adverse conditions, because actual adverse
fluctuations would likely differ. In addition, since our invesement portfolio is subject to change based on our
portfolio management strategy as well as market conditions, these estimates are not necessarily indicative of the
actual results which may occur.

The following tables reflect the estimated effects on the market value of our financial instruments as of
December 30, 2001 and December 29, 2002 based upon assumed immediate adverse effects as noted below (in
thousands):

Trading Purposes:

Year-End
2001 2002
Carrying Equity Carrying Equity
Value Price Risk Value Price Risk
Equity securities ....... ..., $ 22,349  $(2,235) $ 11,811  $(1,181)
Debt securities . ........oovveviviriiiiinann. .. 2,665 (267) 601 (60)
Securities sold with an obligation to purchase ... (17,384) 1,738 9,168) 917

The debt securities included in the trading portfolio were entirely investments in convertible bonds which
trade primarily on the conversion feature of the securities rather than on the stated interest rate and, as such,
there was no material interest rate risk since a change in interest rates of one percentage point would not have
had a material impact on our consolidated financial position or results of operations. The securities included in
the trading portfolio denominated in foreign currency totaled less than $1.0 million and, accordingly, there was
no significant foreign currency risk.

The sensitivity analysis of financial instruments held for trading purposes assumes an instantaneous 10%
decrease in the equity markets in which we are invested from their levels at December 30, 2001 and December
29, 2002, with all other variables held constant. For purposes of this analysis, our debt securities, which were
entirely convertible bonds, were assumed to primarily trade based upon the conversion feature of the securities
and be perfectly correlated with the assumed equity index.
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Other Than Trading Purposes:

Year-End 2001

Carrying Interesc Equity Foreign
Value Rate Risk  Price Risk  Currency Risk

Cash equivalents............................ $489,978 & 4 $ — P —
Restricted cash equivalents .................. 32,506 — — —
Available-for-sale United States government

and government agency debt securities .. ... 30,009 (600) — —
Available-for-sale corporate debt securities.. ... - 10,157 62)) — —
Available-for-sale asset-backed securities....... 24,183 (2,116) —_— —
Available-for-sale equity securities ............ 30,131 — (3,013) e
Available-for-sale debt mutual fund .......... 7,875 (158) — —
Other INVESEMENTS oo oo v et e, 68,106 (2,048)  (2,930) (84)
Long-term debt. ...l 313,723 (13,942) — —
Interest rate swap agreement in a payable -

POSIEION &\ttt e 651 (369) — —
Written call option on common stock........ 30 — (123) —

Year-End 2002
Carrying Interest Equity Foreign
Value Rate Risk  Price Risk  Currency Risk

Cash equivalents...............coiiean... $449,005 $ (35 & — $ —
Restricted cash equivalents .................. 32,476 — — —
Available-for-sale United States government

and government agency debt securities .. ... 75,372 (440) — —
Available-for-sale corporate debt securicies.. ... 9,988 (33) — —
Available-for-sale asset-backed securities....... 24,332 (1,703) — —
Available-for-sale equity securities ............ 26,104 — (2,610) —
Available-for-sale debt mutual fund .......... 8,346 (125) — —
Other investments ..............covueeiion.. 53,324 (1,867) (2,799) (78)
Long-term debt, excluding capitalized lease

obligations . ......... ... i i 381,474 (16,909) — —
Interest rate swap agreement in a payable

POSILION vttt et 1,229 (424) — —

The sensitivity analysis of financial instruments held at December 30, 2001 and December 29, 2002 for
purposes other than trading assumes an instantaneous change in market interest rates of one percentage point
and an instantaneous 10% decrease in the equity markets in which we are invested, both with all other
variables held constant. For purposes of this analysis, our debt investments were assumed to have average
maturities as set forth below. Our cash equivalents consisted of $487.0 million and $420.7 million as of
December 30, 2001 and December 29, 2002, respectively, of money market funds and interest-bearing
brokerage and bank accounts which are designed to maintain a stable value and, as a result, were assumed to
have no interest rate risk, and $3.0 million and $28.3 million as of December 30, 2001 and December 29,
2002, respectively, of commercial paper with maturities of three months or less when acquired which were
assumed to have an average maturity of 45 days. Our restricted cash equivalents were invested in money matket
funds and are assumed to have no interest rate risk since those funds are designed to maintain a stable value.
Our United States government agency debt securities at December 30, 2001 consisted of a single security with
a maturity of two years when acquired and was assumed to have a maturity of two years. Our United States
government and government agency debt securities at December 29, 2002 consisted of several securities with
maturities ranging from ten months to two years when acquired and had an average remaining maturity of
seven months. Our corporate debt securities consisted almost entirely of short-term commercial paper and had
an average maturity of 180 days and 120 days at December 30, 2001 and December 29, 2002, respectively.
Our asset-backed securities had expected maturities ranging from less than two years to thirty years when
acquired and had an average remaining maturity of eight and three-quarters years and seven years at December
30, 2001 and December 29, 2002, respectively. Our debt murtual fund had underlying investments with an
average duration of approximately two years and one and one-half years at December 30, 2001 and December
29, 2002, respectively, and accordingly, was assumed to have an average macurity of two years and one and one-
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half years at December 30, 2001 and December 29, 2002, respectively. Qur other investments, principally
investment limited partnerships and similar investment entities, included debt securities for which we assumed
an average maturity of ten years. The interest rate risk reflects, for each of these debt investments, the impact
on our results of operations. At the time these securities mature and, assuming we reinvest in similar securities,
the effect of the interest rate risk of one percentage point above their levels at December 30, 2001 and
December 29, 2002 would continue beyond the maturities assumed.

The interest rate risk presented with respect to our long-term debt, excluding capitalized lease obligations
relates only to our fixed-rate debt and represents the potential impact the indicated change has on the fair value
of this debe and not on our financial position or our results of operacions. The fair value of our variable-rate
debt approximates the carrying value since the floating rate resets monthly. However, as discussed above under
“Interest Rate Risk,” we have an interest rate swap agreement but with an embedded written call option on our
variable-rate debt. As interest rates decrease, the fair market values of the interest rate swap agreement and the
written call option both decrease, but not necessarily by the same amount. The interest rate risk presented with
respect to the incerest rate swap agreement represents the potential impact the indicated change has on the net
fair value of the swap agreement and embedded written call option and on our financial position and resules of
operations.

For investments in investment limited partnerships and similar investment entities accounted for at cost
and other non-current investments which trade in public markets included in “Other investments” in the tables
above, the decrease in the equity markets and the change in foreign currency were assumed for this analysis to
be other than temporary. To the extent such entities invest in convertible bonds which trade primarily on the
conversion feature of the securities rather than on the stated interest rate, this analysis assumed equity price risk
and no interest rate risk. Further, this analysis assumed no market risk for other investments, other than
investment limited partnerships and similar investment entities and other non-current investments which trade
in public equity markets. This analysis also assumes an instantaneous 10% change in the foreign currency
exchange rates versus the United States dollar from their respective levels at December 30, 2001 and December
29, 2002, with all other variables held constant. The foreign currency risk presented excludes those investments
where the investment manager has fully hedged the risk.

We also had a written call option on our class A common stock which effectively arose upon the
assumption of our zero coupon convertible debentures by the purchaser of our former beverage businesses,
which remained convertible into our class A common stock until February 8, 2003, when it ceased to exist
without any of our class A common stock being called under the option. The equity risk presented with respect
to this wricten call option as of December 30, 2001 represented the potential impact of an instantaneous 10%
increase in the price of our class A common stock on the fair value of the written call option and on our
financial position and results of operations. The fair value of this written call option was less than $1,000 as of
December 29, 2002 and, as a result, the associated equity risk was not significant.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
TRIARC COMPANIES, INC.:
New York, New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Triarc Companies, Inc. and subsidiaries
(the “Company”) as of December 29, 2002 and December 30, 2001, and the related consolidated income
statements, statements of stackholders’ equity (deficit) and statements of cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 29, 2002. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 29, 2002 and December 30, 2001 and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 29, 2002 in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the Unived States of America.

As discussed in Notes 1 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements, effective December 31, 2001 the
Company changed its method of accounting for goodwill in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 142.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

New York, New York
March 27, 2003




Triarc Companies, inc. and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in Thousands Except Share Data)

December 30,

December 29,

2001 2002
Assets
Current assets:
Cash (including cash equivalents of $489,978 and $449,005) (Note 6) ... ... $ 506,461 $457,472
Short-term investments (INOte S). ... ... ', 153,401 175,161
Receivables (Notes 6 and 23) ... . i 14,969 12,967
Inventories (INOte G) ...ttt e — 2,274
Deferred income tax benefit Note 13) ............. i, 11,495 15,934
Prepaid expenses and other current assets..................ovrvivunn.. 3,435 7,082
TOtal CUITENT ASSELS .\ .o vttt ettt e e e e e 689,761 670,890
Restricted cash equivalents (Note 7)..... ... ... .. . 32,506 32,476
Investments (NOtE &) .. ...ttt et e e 42,074 34,717
Properties (INOE 6) ...\ttt e e 60,989 115,224
Goodwill (INOte 9) ..o 17,922 90,689
Other intangible assets (INote Q) ... ... i : 5,472 8,291
Deferred costs and other assets (Notes 6 and 23).........ccvveinnnnnnn... 19,685 16,604
$ 868,409  $968,891
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 10)......................... $ 24,768 $ 34,422
Accounts payable . ... ... .. 2,941 18,998
Accrued expenses (INOTE G) ... ittt 73,453 73,949
Net current liabilities relating to discontinued operations (Note 18).... 31,962 33 083
Total current liabilities ....... ... .. .o 133,124 160,452
Long-term debt (Note 10) .. ... .. i 288,955 352,700
Deferred compensation payable to related parcies (Note 15) ................ 24,356 25,706
Deferred income taxes (INOTE 13) ... vtt e 69,606 60,967
Other liabilities, deferred income and minority interests in a consolidated
subsidiary (Notes 6, 11, 20, 21 and 22) .......... ... ..., 19,971 36,324
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 2, 3, 10, 13, 20, 21, 22, 23
and 24)
Stockholders’™ equity (Note 14):
Class A common stock, $.10 par value; shares auchorized: 100,000,000;
shares issued: 29,550,663 .. ... . 2,955 2,955
Class B common stock, $.10 par value; shares authorized: 100,000,000
shares issued and outstanding: none .......... ... ... ... ... — —_—
Additional paid-in capital ........ .. o 129,608 131,708
Retained earnings ...........ouvriiit i 359,652 360,995
Common stock held in treasury ...... ... ... (160,639) (162,084)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (deficit) .................... 821 (832)
Total stockholders” equity........ . ... ... .. . . 332,397 332,742
$ 868,409 $968,891

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Triarc Companies, Inc. and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS

{In Thousands Except Per Share Amounts)

Year Ended

December 31, December 30, December 29,
2000 2001 2002

Revenues, investment income and other income:

Royalties and franchise and related fees ................... $ 87,450 $ 92,823 $ 97,782
Investment income, net (Notes 16 and 23)................ 30,715 33,632 851
Gain (loss) on sale of businesses (Note 24) ................ — S00 (1,218)
Other income, net (Notes 17 and 23) .................... 1,241 10,191 1,358
Total revenues, investment income and other income .. 119,406 137,146 98,773
Costs and expenses:
General and administrative (Notes 14, 20 and 23)......... 80,518 77,355 75,893
Depreciation and amortization, excluding amortization of
deferred financing costs.............ccoiiiiiiiiia.. 5,313 6,506 6,550
Capital market transaction related compensation (Note 15) ...... 26,010 — —
Interest expense (Notes 10 and 11)....................... 4,804 30,447 26,210
Insurance expense related to long-term debt (Note 10) .. ... 550 4,805 4516
Costs of proposed business acquisitions not consummated . .. — 623 2,238
Total costs and eXpenses. ..............o.veriinnnnn.. 117,195 119,736 115,407
Income (loss) from continuing operations before
income taxes and minority interests ........... 2,211 17,410 (16,634)
Benefit from (provision for) income taxes (Note 13) ............ (12,368) (8,696) 3,329
Minority interests in loss of a consolidated subsidiary........... — 252 3,548
Income (loss) from continuing operations......... (10,157) 8,966 9,757)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes
(Note 18):
Loss from Operations................eviiiinuinineananons (8,368) — —
Gain on disposal .. ... 480,946 43,450 11,100
Total income from discontinued operations............ 472,078 43,450 11,100
Income before extraordinary charges.............. 461,921 52,416 1,343
Extraordinary charges (Note 19).......... ... oinn. (20,680) — —
Net INCOME. . ottt e et et e e $441,241 $ 52,416 $ 1,343
Basic income (loss) per share (Note 4):
Continuing operations ..............ouvuivi.... $ (44 ¢ 42 $ (48
Discontinued operations...............c..oovi... 20.32 2.02 .54
Extraordinary charges ............ ... ... . (.89 — —
Net INCOME. ..ottt et $ 18.99 $ 244 $ .06
Diluted income (loss) per share (Note 4):
Continuing Operations ................o.ouven... $ (44 % 40 $ (48
Discontinued operations.............. ... ........ 20.32 1.91 54
Extraordinary charges ............... . ... L (.89) — —
NEt INCOME. . ..ottt i $ 18.99 3 231 $ .06

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Triarc Companies, Inc. and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)

(In Thousands)

Balance at January 2,
2000 .. ...l
Comptehensive
income (loss):
Net income ......
Unrealized losses
on available-for-
sale investments
(Note 5).......
Ner change in
currency
translation
adjustment . .. ..
Unrecognized
pension loss
(Note 20)......

Comprehensive
income . .......

Repurchases of
common stock for
treasury from
certain officers and
a director with
related recognition
of compensation
(Note 14)........

Common stock
acquired under
forward purchase
obligation
(Note 14)........

Issuance of common
stock from treasury
upon exercises of
stock options
(Note 14)........

Tax benefit from
exercises of stock
options ..........

Equity in the
issuance of Snapple
Beverage Group,
Inc. below market
stock options
(Note 14)........

Modification of stock
option terms
(Note 14)........

Amortization of
below market
stock options
(Note 14)........

Other .............

Balance at December 31,

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income (Deficit)

Unrealized
Retained  Common Common Gain on Unrecog-
Additional  Earnings Stock Stock Available-  Currency nized
Paid-in  (Accumulated Held In to be Unearned for-Sale Translation Pension
Capital Deficit) Treasury Acquired Compensation Investments Adjustment  Loss Total
$204,231 $ (90,680) $(202,625) $(86,186) $(61) $ 5,398 $(358) $— $(166,726)
— 441,241 — —_ — — — — 441,241
_ — — — — (2,322) — — (2,322
— — — - — — 322 — 322
— — — — — — — (198) (198)
— — — — — — — — 439,043
10,422 — (25,942) — — — — — (15,520)
— — (42,373) 42,343 — — — — 30
(5,338) — 28,009 — — — — — 22,671
1,263 — — — — — — — 1,263
1,157 — — — — — — — 1,157
491 — — — — — — — 491
— —_ — — 61 — — — 61
(259) - 159  — — — — — (100)
$211,967  $350,561  $(242,772) $(43,843) $— $ 3,076 $ 36) $(198) § 282,310
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Triarc Companies, inc. and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY (DEFICIT)—CONTINUED
(in Thousands)

Accumulated Other
. Comprehensive Income (Deficit)

Unrealized
Retained Common Common Gain on Unrecog-
Additional  Earnings Stock Stock  Available-  Currency nized
Common  Paid-in  (Accumulated Held In to be for-Sale  Translation Pension
Stock Capital Deficit) Treasury Acquired Investments Adjustment  Loss Total
Balance at December 31, 2000 ...... $3,555  $211,967  $350,561  $(242,772) $(43,843) $3,076 $(36) $(198) $282,310
Comprehensive income (loss):
Net income ................ —_ — 52,416 — — — — — 52,416
Unrealized losses on available-
for-sale investments
(Note 5) ... — — — — — (2,090 — — (2,090)
Net change in currency
translation adjustment .. ... — —_ — — — — 15 — 15
Recovery of unrecognized
pension loss (Note 20)..... — — — — — —_ — 54 54
Comprehensive income ....... — —_ — — _— _ — — 50,395

Repurchases of common stock

for treasury (Note 14) ....... — —_— — (7,190) p— — — — (7,190)
Common stock acquired under

forward purchase obligation

(Note 14) . .........ovii... — — — (43,843) 43,843 — — — —
Issuance of common stock from

treasury upon exercises of

stock options (Note 14) ... ... —_ (233) — 5,910 — — — — 5,677
Tax benefit from exercises of

stock options ............... — 581 — — — — — — 581
Cancellation of former class B )

common stock (Note 14)..... (600) (83,211) (43,325) 127,136 — — — — —
Modification of stock option

terms (Note 14) ............ — 462 — — — — — — 462
Other ........... ........... — 42 —_ 120 — — — —_ 162

Balance at December 30, 2001 ...... $2,955 $129,608  $359,652  $(160,639) $§ — $ 986 21) (144) $332,397

48




Triarc Companies, Inc. and Subsidiaries

(in Thousands)

Common  Paid-in
Stock Capital

Additional

Retained
Earnings

Common

Stock

(Accumulated Held In

Deficit)

Treasury Investments Adjustment

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)—CONTINUED

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income (Deficit)

Unrealized
Gain on
Available-
for-Sale

Currency

Unrecog-
nized

Translation Pension

Balance at December 30, 2001 ............... $2,955 $129,608
Comprehensive loss:

Net income ................. ..., — —
Unrealized losses on available-for-sale

investments (Note 5) ............... — —_—
Net change in currency translation

adjustment . ....... ... o — —
Unrecognized pension loss (Note 20) . ... — —

Comprehensive loss ................... — —

Repurchases of common stock for treasury

(Note 14) ........... . i — —
Issuance of common stock from treasury

upon exercises of stock options

(Note 14) ..., — 680
Tax benefit from exercises of stock

OPLIONS .\ itv et — 723
Equity in forgiveness of debt of an equity

investee (Note 8) . .................... — 393
Modification of stock option terms

(Note 14) ..ot — 275
Other....... ... . i —_— 29

$359,652
1,343

$(160,639)

(6,987)

5,447

95

$ 986

(826)

Balance at December 29, 2002 ............... $2,955 $131,708

$360,995

$(162,0

84)

$ 160

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Loss

$(144)
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$332,397
1,343

(826)

(43)
(784)

(310)

(6,987)

6,127
723
393

275
124

$332,742



Triarc Companies, inc. and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
{in Thousands)

Cash flows from continuing operating activities:
Net INCOME ..o i it e
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used
in) continuing operating activities:
Operating investment adjustments, net (see below)............
Depreciation and amortization of properties ..................
Amortization of goodwill ...... ... ... ... ..
Amortization of other intangible assets and certain other items
Amortization of deferred financing costs and original issue
diSCount . ..o e
(Recognition) collection of litigation settlement receivable. ... ..
Deferred compensation provision ............ ...,
(Gain) loss on sale of businesses .......... ... ... ... ... .....
Equity in losses (earnings) of investees, net ..................
Minority interests in loss of a consolidated subsidiary .........
Deferred income tax provision (benefit) ......................
Income from discontinued operations ...............cccoi....
Write-off of unamortized deferred financing costs .............
Capital market transaction related compensation ..............
Compensation expense upon repurchases of common stock
issued upon exercise of stock options.............. ... . ...
Other, Det ..o e
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in receivables ........................
Decrease in inventories ...,
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other current
BSSEES + v vttt e e e e e
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued
EXPEIISES « ettt e

Net cash provided by (used in) continuing operating
ACTIVITIES ..ot e

Cash flows from continuing investing activities:
Investment activities, net (see below) .......... .. ................
Sale (purchase) of fractional interests in aircraft ...................
Cost of business acquisition less cash acquired of $§9,425...........
Capital expenditures ....... ... ... . i i i
Other .. ..

Net cash provided by (used in) continuing investing
ACCIVITIES © .ottt et ettt e

Cash flows from continuing financing activities:
Issuance of long-term debt ....... ... ... ... i i
Repayments of long-term debt....... ... ... ... oo o
Repayments of debt and accrued interest related to acquisition of a
business. . ...
Repurchases of common stock for treasury........................
Exercises of stock options ........... ... il
Deferred financing CoStS.............c.ooiuiuiniii i
Transfers (to) from restricted cash equivalents.....................

Net cash provided by (used in) continuing financing
ACTIVILIES « oot e ittt e

Net cash provided by (used in) continuing operations..................
Net cash provided by (used in) discontinued operations ................

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ............ R
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year .......................

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year.......................... ...
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Year Ended
December 31, December 30, December 29,
2000 2001 2002
3 441,241 $ 52,416 $ 1,343
(4,715) (17,365) 17,635
3,394 4,478 5,653
842 842 —_
1,077 1,186 897
121 2,066 1,892
— (3,333) 1,667
— 1,856 1,350
— (500) 1,218
2,307 221 (260)
— (252) (3,548)
9,745 (1,054) (1,398)
(472,078) (43,450) (11,100)
27,491 —_— —
26,010 — —_
10,422 — —_
(23) 98 436
(2,667) 1,094 1,622
— _ 69
(31) (2,758) 581
6,656 (2,042) (6,056)
49,792 (6,497) 12,001
(167,843) 148,113 (40,870)
- 3,000 (1,200)
— — (325)
(11,955) (25,386) 107)
1,250 (199) 439
(178,548) 125,528 (42,063)
289,963 22,590 —
(5,574) (17,605) (24,321)
— — (6,343)
(68,315) (51,033) (6,987)
22,671 5,677 6,127
(12,445) (605) —
(30,745) 1,288 376
195,555 (39,688) (31,148)
66,799 79,343 (61,210)
401,493 (169,017) 12,221
468,292 (89,674) (48,9890
127,843 596,135 506,461
$ 596,135 $ 506,461 $ 457,472




Triarc Companies, inc. and Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS—CONTINUED

(In Thousands)

Year Ended
December 31, December 30, December 29,
2000 2001 2002
Dertail of cash flows related to investments:
Operating investment adjustments, net:
Proceeds from sales of trading securities ..................... $ 61,271 $ 88,461 $ 51,235
Cost of trading securities purchased ...................... ... (52,533) (96,253) (46,005)
Net recognized (gains) losses from trading securities and short
POSILIONS N SECUTITIES ...\ i ittt ittt (574) (1,595) 603
Other net recognized (gains) losses, including other than
temporary losses, and equity in investment limited
PArtNErships . ... ... o e (12,858) (73) 11,159
Net amortization of premium (accretion of discount) on debt
SECUFITIES L vttt ettt e e e e e e e 21 (7,905) 643

$ (4,715  $ (17,365) $ 17,635

Investing investment activities, net:
Proceeds from sales and maturities of available-for-sale securities

and other INVEStMENTS . .. .. .. i $ 150,307 $ 299,906 $ 78,831
Cost of available-for-sale securities and other investments

purchased . . ... .. (314,368) (157,026) (118,260)
Proceeds of securities sold shott ......... ... . ... .. ... ..... 42,922 30,449 36,418
Payments to cover short positions in securities ............... (46,704) (25,216) (37,859

$(167,843) $ 148,113 $ (40,870)

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year in continuing operations for:

OereSt . oo $ 3,911 $ 26,495 8 22,785
$ 1,816 $ 1,739

Income taxes, net of refunds .............. ... ... . ... ...... $ 1,360

Due to their noncash nature, the following transactions are not reflected in the respective consolidated
statements of cash flows (amounts in whole shares and dollars):

On January 19, 2000, in addition to a cash payment of $9,210,000 included in “Capital expenditures,”
the Company assumed an $18,000,000 secured promissory note in connection with the acquisition of 280
Holdings, LLC, which owns an airplane previously leased by the Company. Such $18,000,000 was reported as
an addition to “Properties” with an offsetting increase in long-term debt, including current portion. See Note
23 for further disclosure of this transaction.

In connection with the October 25, 2000 sale of the Company’s beverage businesses and the related
assumption by the purchaser of the Company’s convertible debt, the Company effectively established a written
call option on the Company’s common stock relating to the conversion feature of such debt. The fair value of
the written call option of $1,476,000 as of October 25, 2000 was recorded as a reduction of the gain on the sale
of the beverage businesses included in discontinued operations with an equal offsetting credit to “Other
liabilities, deferred income and minority interests in a consolidated subsidiary.” The reduction in the fair value
of the written call option during the period October 26, 2000 to December 31, 2000 and for the years ended
December 30, 2001 and December 29, 2002 was reported as a component of “Other income, net.” See Note 14
for further disclosure of this transaction.

In October 2001, the Company eliminated and effectively canceled the previously authorized 25,000,000
shares of its former class B common stock, all outstanding shares of which had been repurchased by the
Company. As a result of the effective cancellation of the 5,997,622 shares of the former class B common stock
repurchased, the Company recorded an entry within stockholders’ equity which reduced “Common stock” by
$600,000, “Additional paid-in capital” by $83,211,000, “Retained earnings” by $43,325,000 and “Common
stock held in treasury” by $127,136,000. See Note 14 for further disclosure of this transaction.
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Triarc Companies, Inc. and Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS—CONTINUED

On December 27, 2002, the Company purchased all of the voting equity interests of Sybra, Inc. for
$9,750,000, including estimated fees and expenses of $1,470,000. The purchase price, less cash of Sybra, Inc. of
$9,425,000, resulted in a net use of the Company’s cash of $325,000. In conjunction with the acquisition,
liabilities were assumed as follows (in thousands):

Fair value of assets acquired, excluding cash acquired ............................. $153,342
Net cash paid for the voting equity INLELESTS. ... ......cvrieure i anreinennn. (325)
Liabilities assumed . . ... $153,017

See Note 3 for further disclosure of this transaction.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Triarc Companies, inc. and Subsidiaries

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 29, 2002

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Triarc Companies, Inc. (“Triarc” and,
collectively with its subsidiaries, the “Company”) and its subsidiaries. The principal operating subsidiaries of
the Company, each indirectly wholly-owned as of December 29, 2002, are (1) Arby’s, Inc. (“Arby’s”), which, in
turn, indirectly owns 100% of Arby’s Franchise Trust (“Arby’s Trust”), and (2) Sybra, Inc. (“Sybra”) which was
acquired on December 27, 2002. The Company’s other wholly-owned subsidiaries at December 29, 2002 that
are referred to herein also include Triarc Acquisition, LLC (“Triarc Acquisition”), which owns 100% of Triarc
Restaurant Holdings, LLC (“TRH”"), the direct parent of Arby’s and Sybra; National Propane Corporation
(“National Propane”); SEPSCO, LLC (“SEPSCO”); Citrus Acquisition Corporation which owns 100% of Adams
Packing Association, Inc. (“Adams”); and Triarc Consumer Products Group, LLC (“TCPG”). TCPG owns 100%
of RCAC, LLC, into which RC/Arby’s Corporation (“RC/Arby’s”) was merged and also owned (1) 100% (99.9%
prior to October 25, 2000) of Snapple Beverage Group, Inc. (“Snapple Beverage Group”) which owned 100% of
Snapple Beverage Corp. (“Snapple”), Mistic Brands, Inc. (“Mistic”) and Stewart’s Beverages, Inc. (“Stewart’s”)
and (2) 100% of Royal Crown Company, Inc. (“Royal Crown”), prior to the October 25, 2000 sale of such
companies. These beverage businesses have been accounted for as discontinued operations in 2000 through the
date of sale. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. See
Notes 3 and 18 for further disclosure of the acquisition and disposition referred to above.

Fiscal Year

The Company reports on a fiscal year consisting of 52 or 53 weeks ending on the Sunday closest to
December 31 and each of its 2000, 2001 and 2002 fiscal years contained 52 weeks. Such periods are referred to
herein as (1) “the year ended December 31, 2000” or “2000,” which commenced on January 3, 2000 and ended
on December 31, 2000, (2) “the year ended December 30, 2001" or “2001,” which commenced on January 1,
2001 and ended on December 30, 2001 and (3) “the year ended December 29, 2002” or “2002,” which
commenced on December 31, 2001 and ended on December 29, 2002. December 30, 2001 and December 29,
2002 are referred to herein as “Year-End 2001” and “Year-End 2002,” respectively.

e
Cash Equivalents

All highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when acquired are considered cash
equivalents. The Company typically invests its excess cash in money market mucual funds, interest-bearing
brokerage and bank accounts with a stable value, commercial paper of high credit-quality entities and United
States government agency debt securities.

lnvestments

Short-Term Investments

Short-term investments include marketable debt and equity securities with readily determinable fair
values and other short-term investments, including investments in limited partnerships and similar investment
entities, which are not readily marketable., The Company’s marketable securities are classified and accounted for
either as “available-for-sale” or “trading” and are reported at fair market value with the resulting net unrealized
holding gains or losses, net of income taxes, reported as a separate component of comprehensive income (loss)
bypassing net income (loss) or included as a component of net income (loss), respectively. The cost or the
amount reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income (deficit) into earnings or loss of securities
sold for all marketable securities is determined using the specific identification method. Other short-term
investments that are not readily marketable consist of investments in which the Company has significant
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influence over the operating and financial policies of the investees (“Equity Investments”) and investments in
which the Company does not have significant influence over the investees (“Cost Investments”). Equity
Investments are accounted for in accordance with the equity method (the “Equity Method”) under which each
such investment is reported at cost plus the Company’s proportionate share of the income or loss or other
changes in stockholders’ equity of each such investee since its acquisition. The consolidated results of operations
include such proportionate share of income or loss. The carrying value of the Company’s investment in each of
its short-term Equity Investments is equal to the underlying equity in net assets of each investee. Cost
Investments are accounted for using the cost method (the “Cost Method”).

Non-Current Investments

The Company’s non-current investments consist of Equity Investments which are accounted for in
accordance with the Equity Method and Cost Investments which are accounted for under the Cost Method.
Prior to December 31, 2001, the excess, if any, of the carrying value of the Company’s non-current Equity
Investments over the underlying equity in net assets (the “Excess Carrying Value”) of each investee at the time
of their acquisition was amortized to equity in earnings or losses of investees included in “Other income, net”
(see Note 17) on a straight-line basis over 15 years until the carrying value of those Equity Investments had
been reduced to less than the underlying equity (see Note 8).

Effective December 31, 2001, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS”) No. 142 (“SFAS 142"), “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” In accordance therewith, the Excess
Carrying Value, if any, is no longer amortized.

See Note 8 for a further disclosure of the Company’s non-current investments.

Securities Sold With an Obligation to Purchase

Securities sold with an obligation to purchase are reported at fair market value with the resulting net
unrealized gains or losses included as a component of net income (loss).

All Investments

The Company reviews all of its investments in which the Company has unrealized losses and recognizes an
investment loss for any such unrealized losses deemed to be other than temporary (“Other Than Temporary
Losses™) with a corresponding permanent reduction in the cost basis component of the investments. With
respect to available-for-sale securities, the effect of the permanent reduction in the cost basis is an increase in
the unrealized gain or a decrease in the unrealized loss on the available-for-sale investments component of
“Comprehensive income (loss).” With respect to Equity Investments, the effect of the permanent reduction in
the cost basis is a reduction of the cost component of the carrying value of the investment.

Gain on Issyance of Investee Stock

The Company recognizes a gain or loss upon sale of any previously unissued stock by an Equity
Investment to third parties to the extent of the decrease in the Company’s ownership of the investee. However,
a gain is recognized only when realization of the gain by the Company is reasonably assured.

Inventories

The Company’s inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market with cost determined in accordance
with the first-in, first-out method.
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Properties and Depreciation and Amortization

Properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and
amortization of properties is computed principally on the straight-line basis using the estimated useful lives of
the related major classes of properties: 3 to 15 years for office, restaurant and transportation equipment and 40
years for buildings. Leased assets capitalized and leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of their
estimated useful lives or the terms of the respective leases. '

Amortization of Intangibles

Goodwill, representing the costs in excess of net assets of acquired companies, was amortized on the
straight-line basis over 15 to 40 years until December 30, 2001, after which such amortization ceased upon the
adoption of SFAS 142. Other intangible assets are amortized on the straight-line basis using the estimated
useful lives of the related classes of intangibles: 15 years for trademarks and distribution rights and 3 years for
computer software costs. A non-compete agreement, which became fully amortized during 2001, was amortized
over 5 years. Deferred financing costs and original issue debt discount are being amortized as interest expense
over the lives of the respective debt using the interest rate method.

See Note 9 for further information with respect to the Company’s goodwill and other intangible assets.
Impairments

Goodwill

Through the year ended December 30, 2001, the amount of impairment, if any, in unamortized goodwill
was measured based on projected future operating performance. As the future operating performance of the
enterprise (Arby’s) to which the goodwill related through the period such goodwill was being amortized was
sufficient to absorb the related amortization, the Company deemed there to be no impairment of goodwill.

Effective with the adoption of SFAS 142 as-of December 31, 2001, the amount of impairment, if any, in
unamortized goodwill is measured by the excess, if any, of the carrying amount of the unamortized goodwill
over its implied fair value. SFAS 142 requires that goodwill be tested for impairment at least annually. The
Company has determined that there was no impairment of goodwill upon adoption of SFAS 142 and as of the
first annual testing date.

Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews its long-lived assets other than goodwill for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If such review indicates
an asset may not be recoverable, an impairment loss is recognized for the excess of the carrying amount over the
fair value of an asset to be held and used or over the fair value less cost to sell of an asset to be disposed. The
Company has determined that for the year ended December 29, 2002 all of its long-lived assets that required
testing for impairment were recoverable and did not require the recognition of any associated impairment loss.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company’s derivatives consist of (1) the conversion component of short-term investments in corporate
convertible debt securities which are accounted for as trading securities, (2) put and call options on equity and
corporate debt securities which are accounted for as trading securities, (3) an interest rate swap agreement in
connection with a secured bank term loan and (4) a written call option on Triarc's common stock with physical
settlement. In addition, prior to August 10, 2001 the Company's derivatives included a forward purchase
obligation for Triarc’s common stock with cash settlement (see Note 14). The conversion component of
corporate convertible debt securities, put and call options on equity and corporate debt securities, the interest
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rate swap agreement and the call option on Triarc’s common stock with physical settlement are recorded at fair
value with changes in fair value recorded in the Company’s results of operations. The forward purchase
obligation for Triarc’s common stock with cash settlement was recorded at the cash redemption amount. As of
February 8, 2003, the written call option on Triarc's common stock ceased to exist without any Triarc common
stock being called under the option (see Note 14). See Note 11 for further disclosure of the Company’s
derivative financial instruments.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company measures compensation costs for its employee stock-based compensation under the intrinsic
value method. Accordingly, compensation cost for the Company’s stock options is measured as the excess, if any,
of the market price of the Company’s common stock at the date of grant, or at any subsequent measurement
date as a result of certain types of modifications to the terms of its stock options, over the amount an employee
must pay to acquire the stock. Such amounts are being amortized as compensation expense over the vesting
period of the related stock options. Any compensation cost is recognized as expense only to the extent it exceeds
compensation expense previously recognized for such stock options. Compensation cost for stock appreciation
rights, if any, is recognized currently based on the change in the market price of the Company’s common stock
during each period.

A summary of the effect on net income (loss) and net income (loss) per share in each year presented as if
the fair value method had been applied to all outstanding and unvested stock options that were granted
commencing January 1, 1995 is as follows (in thousands except per share data):

2000 2001 2002

Net income, as reported .........cooeiiiiiiiiiiii, $441,241  $52,416 $ 1,343
Reversal of stock-based employee compensation expense

determined under the intrinsic value method included in

reported net income, net of related income taxes............ 11,156 291 173
Recognition of total stock-based employee compensation

expense determined under the fair value method, net of

related 1ncome €axes . ... B (7,772)  (6,101) (5,092)
Net income (loss), as adjusted ............................... $444,625 $46,606 $(3,576)
Net income (loss) per share:

Basic, as reported ... ... $ 1899 § 244 § .06
Basic, as adjusted ... ... 19.14 2.17 .17
Diluted, as reported ................ R 18.99 2.31 .06
Diluted, as adjusted . ... 19.14 2.05 17

See Note 14 for disclosure of the adjustments, methods and significant assumptions used to estimate the fair
values of stock options reflected in the table above.

Treasury Stock

Common stock held in treasury is stated at cost. The cost of issuances of shares from treasury stock is
determined at average cost.

Costs of Business Acquisitions

The Company defers any costs incurred relating to the pursuit of business acquisitions while the potential
acquisicion process is ongoing. Whenever the acquisition is successful, such costs are included as a component
of the purchase price of the acquired entity. Whenever the Company decides it will no longer pursue a potential
acquisition, any related deferred costs are written off at that time.
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Foreign Currency Translation

Financial statements of foreign subsidiaries are prepared in their respective local currencies and translated
into United States dollars at the current exchange rates for assets and liabilities and at an average rate for the
year for revenues, costs and expenses. Net gains or losses resulting from the translation of foreign financial
statements, including those of discontinued operations through their date of disposition, are charged or credited
directly to the “Currency translation adjustment” component of “Accumulated other comprehensive income
(deficit)” in the accompanying consolidated statements of stockholders’ equity (deficit).

Income Taxes

The Company files a consolidated Federal income tax return with all of its subsidiaries. Deferred income
taxes are provided to recognize the tax effect of temporary differences between the bases of assets and liabilities
for tax and financial statement purposes. o

Revenue Recognition

Franchise fees are recognized as revenue when a franchised restaurant is opened since all material services
and conditions related to the franchise fee have been substantially performed by the Company upon the
restaurant opening. Franchise fees for multiple area development agreements represent the aggregate of the
franchise fees for the number of restaurants in the area being developed and are recognized as revenue when
each restaurant is opened in the same manner as franchise fees for individual restaurants. Franchise commitment
fee deposits are forfeited and recognized as revenue upon the termination of the related commitments to open
new franchised restaurants. Royalties are based on a percentage of restaurant sales of the franchised store and are
recognized as earned.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts included in the accompanying prior years’ consolidated financial statements and footnotes
thereto have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.

(2) Significant Risks and Uncertainties

Nature of Operations

The Company franchises and, effective with the acquisition of Sybra on December 27, 2002 (see Note 3),
operates Arby’s® quick service restaurants specializing in slow-roasted roast beef sandwiches. Arby’s restaurants
also offer an extensive menu of chicken, turkey, ham and submarine sandwiches, side dishes and salads
including Arby’s Market Fresh™ sandwiches. Some of the Arby's system-wide restaurants are multi-branded
with the Company's T.J. Cinnamons® product line and/or, to a lesser extent, Pasta Connection® product line.
The franchised restaurants are principally cthroughout the United States and, to a much lesser extent, Canada.
The Company’s owned restaurants are located in nine states, primarily Michigan, Texas, Pennsylvania and
Florida. Information concerning the number of Arby’s franchised and Company-owned restaurants is as follows:

2000 2001 2002

Franchised restaurants opened ........... ..ot 156 131 116
Franchised restaurants closed ......... ... ... .. i 65 99 64
Franchised restaurants purchased in the acquisition of Sybra (Note 3) .. — — 239 (a)
Franchised restaurants open at end of year ........................... 3319 3,351 3,164
Company-owned restaurants open at end of year...................... — — 239 (a)
System-wide restaurants open at end of year ........ ... ...l 3,319 3,351 3,403

(a) The Company operates these 239 restaurants effective December 28, 2002 as a result of the acquisition of
Sybra.
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Significant Estimates

The Company’s significant estimates which are susceptible to change in the near term relate to (1) the
amount of the post-closing adjustment currently in arbitration in connection with the Snapple Beverage Sale
(see Note 3), (2) provisions for the resolution of income tax contingencies subject to future examinations of the
Company’s Federal and state income tax returns by the lnternal Revenue Service (“IRS”) or state taxing
authorities, including remaining provisions included in “Net current liabilities relating to discontinued
operations,” (see Note 13), (3) provisions for the resolution of legal and environmental matters (see Note 24),
(4) the valuation of investments which are not publicly traded (see Note 12) and (5) provisions for unrealized
losses on investments deemed to be other than temporary (see Note 16). The Company's estimates of each of
these items historically have been adequate. However, due to uncertainties inherent in the estimation process, it
is reasonably possible that the actual resolution of any of these items could vary significantly from the estimate
and, accordingly, there can be no assurance that the estimates may not materially change in the near term.

Certain Risk Concentrations

The Company believes its vulnerability to risk concentrations in its cash equivalents and investments is
mitigated by (1) the Company’s policies restricting the eligibility, credit quality and concentration limits for its
placements in cash equivalents, (2) the diversification of its investments and (3) to the extent the cash
equivalents and investments are held in brokerage accounts, insurance from the Securities Investor Protection
Corporation of up to $500,000 per account as well as supplemental private insurance coverage maintained by
the brokerage firms covering substantially all of the Company’s accounts. The Company has one significant
franchisee which accounted for 27% of consolidated revenues from royalties and franchise and related fees in
each of 2000, 2001 and 2002, the loss of which would have a material adverse impact on the Company's
business. The Company’s restaurant opetrations could also be adversely affected by changing consumer
preferences resulting from health or safety concerns wich respect to the consumption of beef, french fries or
certain other foods. The Company believes that its vulnerability to risk concencrations related to significant
vendors and sources of its raw materials for itself and its franchisees is not significant. The Company also
believes that its vulnerability to risk concentrations related to geographical concentration is minimized since
the Company and its franchisees generally operate throughout the United States with minimal foreign
exposure.

(3) Business Acguisitions and Dispositions

Acquisition of Sybra

On December 27, 2002, the Company completed the acquisition of all of the voting equity interests of
Sybra (the “Sybra Acquisition”) from I.C.H. Corporation (“ICH”) under a plan of reorganization confirmed by a
United States Bankruptcy Court. In February 2002, ICH and Sybra had filed for protection under Chapter 11
of the United States Bankruptcy Code in order to restructure their financial obligations. Sybra owns and
operates 239 Arby’s restaurants in nine states and, prior to the Sybra Acquisition, was the second largest
franchisee of Arby’s restaurants. The Company acquired Sybra with the expectation of strengthening and
increasing the value of its Arby’s brand. The aggregate purchase price paid for Sybra by the Company was
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$9,750,000, consisting of $8,280,000 of payments to ICH's creditors and $1,470,000 of estimated fees and
expenses.

The allocation of the purchase price of Sybra to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of
acquisition, on a preliminary basis and subject to finalization due to the recent date of the acquisition, and a
reconciliation to “Cost of business acquisition less cash acquired” in the accompanying consolidated statement
of cash flows are summarized in the following table (in thousands):

CULTEIT BSSEES . o o\t ottt ettt et et e e e e e e e e e e $ 19,104
PrOPeIties ..ot 60,077
GoodWill . . e 71,960
Ocher intangible assets . ... ...t 3,379
Deferred income tax benefit. ... ... . e 7,848
Deferred costs and other assets .. ........ ... it e 399

Total assets acquired .. ... ..ottt e 162,767
Current labilities . ... . .. 31,805
Long-term debt, including cutrent poreion ............ooiiiiiin i, 103,242
Other liabilities and deferred income ............... ... .. . i 17,970

Total liabilities assumed ... ....... it 153,017
Net assets aCquired. .. .. ..ottt e 9,750
Less cash acquired. ... . i 9,425
Cost of business acquisition less cash acquired............. ... . o $ 325

The Sybra acquisition has resulted in $71,960,000 of goodwill (see Note 9), of which $17,723,000 is
estimated to be deductible for income tax purposes. Arby’s restaurants typically have relatively low levels of
receivables and inventories, as is the case with the Arby’s restaurants operated by Sybra, and Sybra has financed
substantially all of its land and buildings, including those buildings reported in leasehold improvements. As
such, Sybra had net liabilities on its historical financial statements before the allocation of the purchase price to
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed despite the substantial value of the restaurants. This excess of the
purchase price over the net tangible assets acquired relates in part to the fair value of the franchise agreements;
however, since Arby's is the franchisor of the acquired restaurants that value is included in goodwill in the
Company’s consolidated balance sheet as of December 29, 2002. The only other significant identifiable
intangible asset in accordance with an independent appraisal is $3,274,000 of favorable leases which are
amortizable over the lives of the leases with a weighted average remaining useful life of 14 years.

Sybra’s results of operations subsequent to the December 27, 2002 date of the Sybra Acquisition through
December 29, 2002 have been included in the accompanying consolidated income statement for the year ended
December 29, 2002. The results of operations before income taxes have been reported in “Other income, net”
(see Note 17) for convenience since Sybra’s pretax income for that two-day period is not material to the
Company’s consolidated income before income taxes. The pretax income of Sybra consists of the following
components (in thousands):

Net sales and other INCOMIE . ... . i $933
Costs and eXPENSES . . . ... it 918
Income before INCOME TAXES . ...ttt e e e e $ 15

The following unaudited supplemental pro forma condensed consolidated summary operating data (the
“As Adjusted Data”) of the Company for 2001 and 2002 has been prepared by adjusting the historical data as
set forth in the accompanying consolidated income statements to give effect to the Sybra Acquisition as if it
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had been consummated on January 1, 2001 and December 31, 2001, respectively (in thousands except per share
amounts);

2001 2002
As Reported As Adjusted As Reported As Adjusted

Revenues, investment income and other

INCOME, NEE ..ottt $137,146 $327.240 $98,773 $299.886
Income (loss) from continuing operations. . 8,966 5,570 (9,757) (16,367)
Net income (10SS) ....covviineeiinn.nn 52,416 49,020 1,343 (5,267)
Basic income (loss) per share:

Continuing Operations .............. 42 .26 (48) (.80)

Net income (loss) ........ccoovvn... 2.44 2.28 .06 (.26)
Diluted income (loss) per shate:

Continuing operations .............. 40 .25 (48) (.80)

Net income (loss) .................. 2.31 2.16 .06 (.26)

Such As Adjusted Data is presented for comparative purposes only and does not purport to be indicative of
the Company’s actual results of operations had such acquisition actually been consummarted on such dates or of
the Company’s future results of operations. The 2001 historical results of Sybra were impacted by a $2,129,000
pretax charge representing the write-off of costs for construction in progress for certain Arby’s restaurants that
were not completed. In February 2002, Sybra, as discussed above, filed for protection under Chapter 11 of the
United States Bankruptcy Code. In 2002, Sybra’s historical results were impacted by a $6,403,000 pretax
charge representing expenses incurred by Sybra directly relating to the bankruptcy, principally for legal fees
and, to a much lesser extent, for other professional fees.

Sale of Beverage Businesses

On October 25, 2000, the Company sold (the “Snapple Beverage Sale”) Snapple Beverage Group and
Royal Crown to affiliates of Cadbury Schweppes plc (“Cadbury”). Snapple Beverage Group represented the
operations of the Company’s former premium beverage business and Royal Crown represented the operations of
the Company’s former soft drink concentrate business. Snapple Beverage Group and Royal Crown are
collectively referred to herein as the “Former Beverage Businesses.” The consideration paid to the Company
consisted of (1) cash, which may be subject to further post-closing adjustments as described below, and (2) the
assumption by Cadbury of debt and related accrued interest. The assumed debt and accrued interest consisted of
(1) $300,000,000 of 10 1/4% senior subordinated notes due 2009 (the “Senior Notes”) co-issued by TCPG and
Snapple Beverage Group, (2) $119,130,000, net of unamortized original issue discount of $240,870,000, of
Triarc’s zero coupon convertible subordinated debentures due 2018 (the “Debentures”) and (3) $5,982,000 of
accrued interest. The Snapple Beverage Sale resulted in an after-tax gain in 2000 recorded in the “Gain on
disposal” component of “Total income from discontinued operations” in the accompanying consolidated income
statement (see Note 18) of $480,946,000, subject to any additional post-closing purchase price adjustment as
described below, and net of $19,134,000 of related fees and expenses and $226,765,000 of income tax
provision. In 2001 and 2002, the Company recorded additional gains from the Snapple Beverage Sale of
$43,450,000 and $11,100,000, respectively. The additional gain in 2001 principally resulted from the
realization of $200,000,000 of proceeds from Cadbury for the Company electing (the “Tax Election”) during
2001 to treat certain portions of the Snapple Beverage Sale as an asset sale in lieu of a stock sale under the
provisions of Section 338(h)(10) of the United States Internal Revenue Code, net of estimated income taxes,
partially offset by additional accruals relating to the Snapple Beverage Sale. The additional gain in 2002
resulted from the release of reserves for income taxes in connection with the receipt of related income tax
refunds. '
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In addition, the Snapple Beverage Sale purchase and sale agreement provides for a post-closing adjustment,
the amount of which is in dispute. Cadbury has stated that it currently believes that it is entitled to receive
from the Company a post-closing adjustment of $23,189,000 plus incerest at 7.19% from October 25, 2000
while the Company, on the other hand, has stated that it currently believes that no post-closing adjustment is
requited. The Company is in arbitration with Cadbury to determine the amount of the post-closing adjustment,
if any. The Company currently expects the arbitration process to be completed in 2003.

In connection with the closing of the Snapple Beverage Sale, in 2000 the Company repaid the
(1) outstanding principal of $436,433,000, (2) related accrued interest of $1,119,000, (3) related prepayment
penalties of $5,509,000 and (4) fees of $57,000 under a senior bank credit facility (the “Beverage Credit
Facility”) maintained by Snapple, Mistic, Stewart’s, Royal Crown and RC/Arby’s, the then parent company of
Royal Crown.

{4) Income (Loss) Per Share

Basic income (loss) per share for 2000, 2001 and 2002 has been computed by dividing the income or loss
by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding of 23,232,000, 21,532,000 and 20,446,000,
respectively. Diluted income (loss) per share for 2000 and 2002 is the same as the basic income (loss) per share
since the Company reported a loss from continuing operations and, therefore, the effect of all potentially
dilutive securities on the loss per share from continuing operations would have been antidilutive. Diluted
income per share for 2001 has been computed by dividing the income by an aggregate 22,692,000 shares
which reflect the effect of dilutive stock options of 1,160,000 shares computed using the treasury stock
method. The shares used to calculate diluted income per share for 2001 exclude any effect of (1) a written call
option on Triarc's common stock, which commenced following the assumption of the Debentures by Cadbury
and (2) a forward purchase obligation for Triatc’s common stock through its final settlement on August 10,
2001 since the effect of each of these on income per shate from continuing operations for 2001 would have been
antidilutive (see Note 14). The only Company securities outstanding as of December 29, 2002 that could dilute
basic income per share in years subsequent to 2002 are the 9,261,421 outstanding stock options (see Note 14).

{8) Short-Term Investments and Securities Sold With an Obligation to Purchase

Shovt-Term Investments

The Company’s short-term investments are carried at fair market value, except for Cost Investments and
Equity Investments set forth in the table below (see Note 1). The cost of available-for-sale debt securities
represents amortized cost. The cost of available-for-sdle securities and other short-term investments have also
been reduced by any unrealized losses deemed to be other than temporary (see Note 16). The cost, gross
unrealized holding gains and losses included in accumulated other comprehensive income (deficit), fair value
and carrying amount, as appropriate, of the Company’s short-term investments at December 30, 2001 and
December 29, 2002 were as follows (in thousands):
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Year-End 2001 Year-End 2002

Unrea.[ized Um-ealjzed
Holding Fair Carrying Holding

Fair Carrying

Cost Gains Losses  Value Amount Cost Gains Losses Value Amount

Marketable securities
Available-for-sale:

United States government and
government agency debt securities .. 75 $—  $ 30,009 $ 30,009 $ 74,663 $ 709 $— $ 75,372 § 75,372

Corporate debt securities — 10,157 10,157 9,988 — — 9,988 9,988
Asset-backed securities 13 (1) 24,183 24,183 24,340 10 (18) 24,332 24,332
Equity securities 2,140  (715) 30,131 30,131 26,733 341 (970) 26,104 26,104
Debt mutual fund 14 —_ 7,875 7,875 8,196 150 — 8,346 8,346

Total available-for-sale marketable
securities $(726) 102,355 102,355 143,920 $1,210 $(988) 144,142 144,142

Trading:
Equity securities 22,349 22,349 14,129 11,811 11,811
Corporate debt securities 2,665 2,665 1,222 601 601

Total trading securities 25,014 25,014 15,351 12,412 12,412

Other short-term investments:
Cost Investments 17,235 25,507 17,235 16,798 26,032 16,798
Equity Investments ................. 8,250 8,797 8,797 1,687 1,809 1,809

Total other investments 25,485 ‘ 34,304 26,032 18,485 27,841 18,607
$153,396 $161,673 $153,401 $177,756 $184,395 $175,161

The maturities of, United States government and government agency debt securities, corporate debt
securities and asset-backed securities at December 29, 2002 which are classified as available-for-sale at fair
value, which is equal to their carrying value, are as follows (in thousands):

WIthin ONE JEAr ..ottt e e et e e $ 92,162
After one year through five years......... ... .. . i 8,696
After five years through ten years ........ ... ..ottt 2,982
AfTEr TEIL YEALS . . oottt ettt et e e e 3,472
Mortgage-backed securities (classified within asset-backed securities above) not due
at a single maturity date. .. ... ... 2,380
$109,692
Proceeds from sales and maturities of available-for-sale marketable securities were $82,392,000, I
$288,584,000 and $69,444,000 in 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively. Gross realized gains and gross realized

losses on those sales are included in “Investment income, net” in the accompanying consolidated income
statements (see Note 16) and are as follows (in thousands):

2000 2001 2002
Gross realized gains .......... ..o i $14,441 $3,365 $2,857
Gross realized 10SSES . ..ottt (8,689) (483) (206)

$ 5,752 $2,882 $2,651

The net change in the unrealized holding gains on available-for-sale securities and the equity in an
unrealized gain on a retained interest of Encore Capital Group, Inc., an Equity Investment included in
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non-current investments (see Note 8), included in other comprehensive income (loss) consisted of the following
(in thousands):

2000 2000 2002

Net change in unrealized holding gains or losses on available-for-

sale securities:
Net change in unrealized appreciation or depreciation of

available-for-sale securities during the year ............... $4549 $ (93 $ 38

Less reclassification of prior year net appreciation included in
net 1Ncome OrF LSS . ..ot (8,098) (2,881) (1,332)
(3,549  (2,974) (1,294)
Equity in change in unrealized gain on a retained interest .. (117) (245) 33
Income tax benefit ........co0tivir i 1,344 1,129 435

$(2,322) $(2,090) § (826)

The change in the net unrealized gain or loss on trading securities resulted in losses of $4,848,000,
$2,033,000 and $883,000 in 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively, which are included in “Investment income,
net” in the accompanying consolidated income statements (see Note 16).

Ocher short-term investments represent investments in limited partnerships, limited liability companies
and similar investment entities which invest in securities that primarily consist of debt securities, common and
preferred equity securities, convertible preferred equity and debt securities, stock warrants and rights and stock
options. These investments are focused on both domestic and foreign securities. Certain of these investments
are, or if sold during 2002 were, accounted for in accordance with the Equity Method.

Securities Sold With an Obligation to Purchase

The Company also enters into short sales of debt and equity securities as part of its portfolio management
strategy. Short sales are commitments to sell debt and equity securities not owned at the time of sale that
require purchase of the debt and equity securities at a future date. These short sales resulted in proceeds of
842,922,000, $30,449,000 and $36,418,000 in 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively. The change in the net
unrealized gains (losses) on securities sold with an obligation to purchase resulted in income of $4,527,000 and
$2,180,000 in 2000 and 2001, respectively, and a loss of $1,020,000 in 2002, which are included in
“Investment income, net” (see Note 16). The fair value and the carrying value of the liability for securities sold
with an obligation to purchase were $17,384,000 and $9,168,000 at December 30, 2001 and December 29,
2002, respectively, and are included in “Accrued expenses” (see Note 6).

(6) Balance Sheet Detail

Cash

Cash includes cash equivalents of $15,700,000 and $15,018,000 as of December 30, 2001 and December
29, 2002, respectively, held in a custodial account at a financial institution which is subject to set off should
the Company or certain other parties not perform under cerrain debt guarantees (see Note 23). Cash also
includes cash and cash equivalents aggregating $9,201,000 as of December 29, 2002 pledged as collateral for
the Company’s insured securitization notes (see Note 10).
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Receivables

The following is a summary of the components of receivables (in thousands):

Year-End
000 2002
Accounts:
15 Vo 3 O $11,359 $10,318
A lates. 210 S8
Other . e 2,183 1,816
13,752 12,192
Notes
TEade . e e 1,060 367
AFFHAtES (3) oottt 1,667 1,667

2,727 2,034
16,479 14,226

Less allowance for doubtful accounts:

Trade ACCOUIMTS ..ottt t ettt e et e ettt e e e 450 699
Other aCCoUntS ..ot e e e — 193
Trade DOTES . . oo oo et e et e e e e e 1,060 367

1,510 1,259
$14,969 $12,967

(a) Represents the current portion of a note receivable from the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and the
President and Chief Operating Officer of the Company (the “Executives”) pursuant to a litigation
settlement (see Note 23).

The following is an analysis of the allowance for doubtful accounts (in thousands):

2000 2001 2002
Balance at beginning of year ......... ... ... .. ol $1,371  $1,172  $1,510
Provision for doubtful accounts:
Trade ACCOUNTS. ...ttt t ettt e e e e 292 479 331
Other aCCOUNS ..ottt i i it e e e — — 235
TrAde DOTES ..\ v v vttt et e e e e e — — (693)(a)

292 479 (127)

Uncollectible accounts written off:

Trade ACCOUMNTS . .\ vttt ettt et e et 491) (141) (82)
Other accounts ... it — — 42)
(491) (141) (124)

Balance at end of year. ... i $1,172  $1,510 $1,259

(a) Represents the reversal upon realization in 2002 of collections related to two fully-reserved notes receivable
from franchisees.

Certain trade receivables with an aggregate net book value of $6,297,000 as of December 29, 2002 are
pledged as collateral for the Company’s insured securitization notes (see Note 10).
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Inventories

Inventories consist principally of food, beverage and paper inventories and are classified entirely as raw
materials. Cerrain inventories aggregating $2,114,000 as of December 29, 2002 are pledged as collateral for
certain debt (see Note 10).

Properties

The following is a summary of the components of properties (in thousands):

Year-End
w00 200
Owned:
Land ..o 8 753 $ 1,607
Buildings and improvements ............ . . i — 1,080
Office, restaurant and transportation equipment ................... 66,667 87,463
Leasehold improvements ...............viiiieiitenniiiiinanen, 9,637 43,048
Leased assets capitalized ...... ... ... — 1,760
77,057 135,858
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization ....................... 16,068 20,634

$60,989  $115,224

Properties with a net book value of $103,527,000 as of December 29, 2002 are pledged as collateral for
certain debt (see Note 10).

Deferred Costs and Other Assets

The following is a summary of the components of deferred costs and other assets (in thousands):

Year-End
2001 2002
Deferred financing COSTS .. ...ttt $13,190 $13,190
Co-investment notes receivable from affiliates, net of allowance of
$569,000 in 2002 (@) . ...ttt 2,753 1,778
Long-term portion of note receivable from the Executives (Note 23) ..... 1,667 —
OReT . o 4,724 6,339
22,334 21,307
Less accumulated amortization .............ooiiiirineeinan .. 2,649 4,703

$19,685 $16,604

(a) The allowance for non-current doubtful accounts was provided in 2002 (see Note 23) and there has been no
other activity in the reserve for non-current doubtful accounts.
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Accrued Expenses

The following is 2 summary of the components of accrued expenses (in thousands):

Year-End
000 2002
Accrued compensation and related benefits ........... ... ... o oL $23,736  $25,008
ACCIUEA TAXES . . o oottt e e e e e e 12,229 11,742
Accrued INTErest .. ... 7,732 9,445
Securities sold with an obligation to purchase (Note 5) ................. 17,384 9,168
Other . .o B, 12,372 18,586

$73,453 $73,949

Other Liabilities, Deferred Income and Minority Interests in a Consolidated Subsidiary

Other liabilities, deferred income and minority interests in a consolidated subsidiary includes minority
interests of $4,266,000 and $718,000 as of December 30, 2001 and December 29, 2002, respectively, in 280
BT Holdings LLC (“280 BT”) a consolidated subsidiary with a respective 44.1% and 42.6% minority intetest
comprised principally of certain of the Company’s management (see Note 23).

(7) Restricted Cash Equivalents

The following is a summary of the components of non-current restricted cash equivalents (in thousands):

Year-End
000 2002
Collateral supporting obligations under insured securitization notes
(NOEE L0) . e e e $30,567 $30,537
Support for letter of credit securing payments due under a lease......... 1,939 1,939

$32,506 $32.476
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{8) Investments

The following is a summary of the carrying value of investments classified as non-current (in thousands):

Investment Year-End 2002
Year-End Underlying  Market
2001 2002 % Owned Equity Value
Encore Capital Group, Inc.
common stock, at equity....... $ — $ 681 7.2% $1,051 $589
EBT Holding Company, LLC, at
EQUELY ot et 279 — 18.6% —
Total of all non-current
Equity Investments ....... 279 681
Investments held in deferred
compensation trusts, at cost
(Notes 15 and 23) ............ 22,671 22,671
Encore Capital Group, Inc.
preferred stock, at cost ........ — 873
Non-marketable equity securities,
A0 COSE vttt 12,070 4,102
Other, at cOSt . ...vviven e, 7,054 6,390

$42,074 $34,717

The carrying value of the Company’s investment in the common stock of Encore Capital Group, Inc.
(“Encore”), formerly MCM Capital Group, Inc., at December 29, 2002 is less than its underlying equity
interest in Encore principally due to the Company’s recognition of unrealized losses deemed to be other than
temporary during 2000 (see below).

The Company’s consolidated equity in the earnings (losses) of investees accounted for under the Equity
Method and classified as non-current and included as a component of “Other income, net” {see Note 17) in the
accompanying consolidated income statements consisted of the following components (in thousands):

2000 2000 2002
Encore Capital Group, Inc, at equity ... $(2,099 $§ () $260
Limited parcnerships and limited liability companies, at equity ....... (208) (2149 —

$(2,307) $(221) $260

The equity in the earnings (losses) of investees included in “Other income, net” in the table above excludes
the equity in the earnings or losses of EBT Holding Company, LLC (“EBT”), an investment limited liability
company, which is included in “Investment income, net” (see Note 16) in the accompanying consolidated
income statements.

The Company and certain of its officers have invested in Encore, with the Company owning 7.2% and the
present officers, including entities controlled by them, collectively owning 17.2% of Encore’s issued and
outstanding common stock (see Note 23) as of December 29, 2002. During 2002 the Company, certain of its
officers, including entities controlled by them, and other significant stockholders of Encore invested in newly
issued convertible preferred stock of Encore (the “Encore Preferred Stock”) in which the Company invested
$873,000, or 17.5% of the aggregate $5,000,000 of Encore Preferred Stock, and che officers invested
$1,427,000. The $5,000,000 of Encore Preferred Stock is convertible into 10,000,000 shares of Encore
common stock. If all of the Encore Preferred Stock were converted, the ownership of the Company and the
present officers in Encore common stock would increase to 13.19% and 23.7%, respectively. Encore is a financial
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services company specializing in the collection, restructuring, resale and securitization of receivable portfolios
acquired at deep discounts.

During 2000 the Company’s investment in Encore common stock exceeded its interest in the underlying
equity in the net assets of Encore. The Company recorded amortization of such excess of $107,000 in 2000
which is included in the equity in losses of Encore. As of December 31, 2000, the Company reduced its
investment in Encore by $2,047,000 to the then fair market value of the Encore common stock of $.33 per
share, or $2.89 per share less than the Company’s then carrying value. The Encore common stock had traded at
depressed levels throughout the second half of 2000 ranging from $.13 to $.88 per share and Encore had
encountered cash flow and liquidity difficulties. As a result, the Company had deemed the loss on its
investment in Encore to be other than temporary. During 2001, the investment in Encore was reduced to zero
due to losses of Encore which resulted in the Company recording its equity in the losses of Encore as a
reduction of the unrealized gain on a retained interest of Encore which had been included in accumulated other
comprehensive income (see Note 5).

During 2002, as disclosed above, the Company invested $873,000 in the Encore Preferred Stock. In 2002
the Company recognized its cumulative unrecorded equity in losses of Encore of $744,000 through
December 30, 2001 in connection with its $873,000 investment in Encore Preferred Stock and resumed
applying the Equity Methoed as a result of the additional investment, recognizing $1,004,000 of equity in the
2002 earnings of Encore. Accordingly, the net equity in earnings of Encore amounted to $260,000 during
2002. Also during 2002 the outstanding principal amount of senior notes of Encore was reduced from
$10,000,000 to $7,250,000 as the lender forgave $2,750,000 of principal and $2,573,000 of related accrued
interest upon the investment in the Encore Preferred Stock. In connection with this forgiveness, Encore
recorded an increase in its additional paid-in capital of $4,665,000 representing the aggregate $5,323,000 of
debt forgiven less $658,000 of related unamortized debt discount and deferred loan costs. Accordingly, the
Company recorded its equity of $393,000 in such amount as an increase in “Additional paid-in capiral” during
2002. The effect of the debt forgiveness was recorded by Encore as a capital contribution since it was facilitated
by the Company and other significant equity holders of Encore Preferred Stock and chrough the Company's
relationship with the lender resulting from prior investment banking and financial advisory services rendered to
the Company by the lender and its affiliates.

The Company and certain of its officers and employees have co-invested in EBT with the Company
owning 18.6% and the officers and employees owning 56.4% (see Note 23) as of December 29, 2002. EBT had
as its only operating asset an investment in the non-cumulative preferred stock of EBondTrade.com, Inc.
(“Ebondtrade”), an online municipal bond trading business. The Company accounted for its investment in EBT
in accordance with the Equity Method; however, EBT’s investment in Ebondtrade was accounted for in
accordance with the Cost Method. Accordingly, the Company had equity in the earnings of EBT of $9,000 and
$8,000 in 2000 and 2001, respectively. Ebondtrade encountered operating, cash flow and liquidity difficulties
and in late 2002 its stock became worthless. As a result, the Company recognized an unrealized loss deemed to
be other than temporary for its then remaining investment in EBT of $279,000 included in “Investment
income, net” (see Note 16) in the accompanying consolidated statement of income for the year ended
December 29, 2002.

The Company has an investment in Scientia Health Group Limited (“Scientia”) through its 57.4% (see
Note 23) ownership of 280 BT as of December 29, 2002. The Company consolidates its investment in 280 BT
resulting in the investment in Scientia being included in “Non-marketable equity securities, at cost” in the
table above, with the related minority interests included in “Other liabilities, deferred income and minority
interests in a consolidated subsidiary.” 280 BT invested $5,000,000 in preferred shares of Scientia (the “Scientia
Preferred Shares”) in November 2001, of which $2,500,000 was originally invested by the Company and
$2,475,000 was invested by the Company’s management under a co-investment policy (see Note 23). As of
December 29, 2002, the carrying value of the investment in Scientia was a gross amount of $1,685,000,
effectively reduced by minority interests of $718,000. The gross carrying value represents the original cost less
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$3,315,000 of unrealized losses in Scientia that were deemed to be other than temporary included in “Other
than temporary unrealized losses” in “Investment income, net” (see Note 16), effectively reduced by minority
interests of $1,420,000.

Summary Unaundited Financial Information of Equity Investments

The following is a summary of the carrying value of the Company’s aggregate Equity Investments (in
thousands):

Year-End
2001 2002
Current (566 INOLE 5) ..\t e $8,797 $1,809
NON-CULLENT . . o ottt ettt 279 681

$9.076  $2,490

Presented below is summary unaudited operating informartion for the Company’s Equity Investments,
including those that were included in other short-term investments, for the year ended December 31, 2000, the
year-end of such investments. Summary unaudited information is not presented as of and for the years ended
December 30, 2001 and December 29, 2002 because the Company’s Equity Investments are no longer
significant to the Company’s consolidated total assets or consolidated income (loss) from continuing operations
before income taxes and minority interests in 2001 and 2002. The Company’s Equity Investments include
Encore, a financial services company as described above, entities that developed and operated golf courses and
several investment limited partnerships and limited liability companies, including EBT and 280 KPE
Holdings, LLC, which generally invest in diversified portfolios of securities. As such, the summary operating
information presented below combines revenues and expenses which vary greatly in nature. Revenues relate to
the operations of golf courses as well as operating revenues of the financial services company. Investment
income, net relates to the investment entities. The summary unaudited operating information for the year
ended December 31, 2000 is as follows (in thousands):

REVENUES .o ot $ 49,098
Investment 108S, Met . ...t (13,121)
Loss Defore INCOME TAXES . ..o vttt et et e e et e e e e e (53,491)
Nt J0SS o oot (46,234)

(9) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The following is a summary of the components of goodwill (in thousands):

Year-End
2000 2002
Goodwill ... e $29,599 $102,366
Less accumulated amortization. . ... 11,677 11,677

$17,922  § 90,689
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Upon the adoption of SFAS 142 effective December 31, 2001, the Company no longer amorcizes goodwill,
which relates entirely to the Company’s restaurant operations. In accordance with the requirements of
SFAS 142, the following summarizes the changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for 2002 (in thousands):

2002
Balance at beginning of year ......... ... i $17,922
Goodwill acquired in the Sybra Acquisition (Note 3) ....... ..., 71,960
Other . 807
Balance at end of year. . ... ..o $90,689

A reconciliation of reported income before extraordinary charges, net income and net income per share
adjusted on a pro forma basis for the reversal of goodwill amortization, net of related income taxes, as though
SFAS 142 had been in effect as of January 3, 2000 is as follows (in thousands except per share amounts):

2000 2001
As Reported Adjustment(a) As Adjusted As Reported Adjustment As Adjusted

Income before extraordinary

charges ........... ... $461,921 $830 $462,751  $52,416 $830 $53,246

Net income .................. 441,241 830 442,071 52,416 830 53,246
Net income per share:

Basic ........... ... 18.99 04 19.03 2.44 .04 248

Diluted .................. 18.99 .04 19.03 2.31 .04 2.35

(a) This adjuscment does not reflect goodwill amortization of $7,973,000, net of income taxes, relating to the
discontinued beverage operations included in the “Loss from operations” component of “Total income from
discontinued operations,” which if adjusted would be fully offset by an equal adjustment in the “Gain on
disposal” component of “Total income from discontinued operations” in 2000.

The following is a summary of the components of other intangible assets, all of which are subject to
amortization (in thousands):

Year-End 2001 Year-End 2002
Accumulated Accumulated
Cost  Amortization  Net Cost Amortization  Net
Trademarks..............covvi.. .. $8,003  $2,734  $5,269 § 7,776  $3,056  $4,720
Favorable leases..................... — —_ — 3,274 — 3,274
Computer software and distribution
rights ... 286 83 203 520 223 297

$8,289  $2,817  $5,472 $11,570  $3,279  $8,291

Aggregate amortization expense:

Actual:
200 L $655
2002 689
Estimate for fiscal year:
2003 L e $909
2004 . - 791
2005 L 791
20006 . . 791
2007 775
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(10) Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following (in thousands):

Year-End
2001 2002

Insured securitization notes bearing interest at 7.44% having

expected repayments through 2011, net of unamortized original

issue discount of $30 as of December 29, 2002 (@) ............ $273,957 $254,774
Leasehold notes bearing interest at a weighted average rate of

9.64% due through 2021 (b)............... e — 82,016
Secured bank term loan bearing interest effectively at 6.8% due

through 2008 (€) ... oot e 21,515 18,287
Secured promissory note bearing interest at 8.95% due through

2006 (). o 15,021 13,320
Equipment notes bearing interest at a weighted average rate of

9.79% due though 2009 (e)......... ... — 6,272
Mortgage notes bearing interest at a weighted average rate of

9.37% due through 2018 () .......... ... il — 3,346
Mortgage and equipment notes related to restaurants sold in 1997

bearing interest at a weighted average rate of 10.37% as of

December 29, 2002 due through 2016 (g) .................... 3,230 3,024
Capitalized lease obligations .......... ... iieiiiiiiiiiii . — 5,648
OthEr . oot — 435

Total debt .. ... .. . . 313,723 387,122
Less amounts payable within one year.................. 24,768 34,422

$288,955 $352,700

Aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt were as follows as of December 29, 2002 (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Amount
2003 L e e $ 34,422
2004 . 36,080
200 e 38,158
2000 .. e 44,872
2007 39,751
Thereafter. . ... o 193,869
387,152

Less unamortized original issue discount................ ... ... ... 30
4387,122

(a) The Company, through Arby’s Trust, issued insured non-recourse securitization notes (the “Securitization
Notes”) in the principal amount of $290,000,000, with a discounted amount of $289,963,000, on
November 21, 2000. In connection with the issuance of the Securitization Notes, the Company incurred
$12,982,000 (812,445,000 estimated as of December 31, 2000) of fees and expenses which are included,
net of amortization, in “Deferred costs and other assets” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
(see Note 6).

(foornotes continued on next page)
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(footnotes continued from previous page)

The remaining principal amount of the Securitization Notes of $254,804,000 as of December 29, 2002 is
due no later than December 2020. However, based on current projections and assuming the adequacy of
available funds, as defined under the indenture (the “Indenture”) pursuant to which the Securitization
Notes were issued, the Company currently estimates it will repay $20,665,000 in 2003 with increasing
annual payments to $37,377,000 in 2011 in accordance with a targeted principal payment schedule. The
table of annual maturities of long-term debt above reflects these rargeted payments. The Securitization
Notes are redeemable by Arby’s Trust at an amount equal to the total of remaining principal, accrued
interest and the excess, if any, of the discounted value of the remaining principal and interest payments over
the outstanding principal amount of the Securitization Notes.

Obligations under the Securitization Notes are insured by a financial guarantee company and are
collateralized by assets with an aggregate net book value of $46,035,000 as of December 29, 2002
consisting of cash and cash equivalents of $9,201,000, a cash equivalent reserve account of $30,537,000
and royalty receivables of $6,297,000.

(b) The leasehold notes (the “Leasehold Notes”) with a remaining principal of $82,016,000 were assumed in
the Sybra Acquisition and are due in equal monthly installments including interest through 2021 of which
$5,937,000 is due in 2003. The Leasehold Notes bear interest at rates ranging from 6.23% to 10.89% and
are secuted by restaurant leasehold improvements, equipment and inventories with respective net book
values of $32,049,000, $12,783,000 and $2,114,000.

(¢) The Company maintains a secured bank term loan (the “Bank Term Loan”) with a remaining principal
amount of $18,287,000 as of December 29, 2002 with payments due of $3,227,000 in each year through
2007 and $2,152,000 in 2008. The Bank Term Loan bears interest at variable rates (3.23% as of
December 29, 2002), determined at the Company’s option, at the prime rate or the one-month London
Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 1.85%, reset monthly. The Company also entered into an interest
rate swap agreement (the “Swap Agreement”) on the Bank Term Loan which commenced August 1, 2001
whereby it effectively pays a fixed rate of 6.8% as long as the one-month LIBOR is less than 6.5%, but
with an embedded written call option whereby the Swap Agreement will no longer be in effect if, and for
as long as, the one-month LIBOR is at or above 6.5% (see Note 11). Obligations under the Bank Term
Loan are secured by an airplane with a net book value of $21,810,000 as of December 29, 2002.

(d) The Company assumed an $18,000,000 secured promissory note (the “Promissory Note”) in connection
with its acquisition of 280 Holdings, LLC (see Note 23) on January 19, 2000. The remaining principal
amount of the Promissory Note of $13,320,000 as of December 29, 2002 is due $1,860,000 in 2003 with
increasing annual payments to $7,204,000 in 2006. The Promissory Note is secured by an airplane with a
net book value of $27,631,000 as of December 29, 2002.

(e) The equipment notes (the “Equipment Notes”) with a remaining principal of $6,272,000 were assumed in
the Sybra Acquisition and are due in equal monthly installments including interest through 2009 of which
$1,281,000 is due in 2003. The Equipment Notes bear interest at rates ranging from 8.52% to 11.64%
and are secured by restaurant equipment with a net book value of $7,070,000.

(f) The mortgage notes (the “Mortgage Notes”) with a remaining principal of $3,346,000 were assumed in the
Sybra Acquisition and are due in equal monthly installments including interest through 2018 of which
$79,000 is due in 2003. The Mortgage Notes bear interest at rates ranging from 8.77% to 10.11% and are
secured by land and buildings of restaurants with net book values of $1,110,000 and $1,074,000,
respectively.

(g) The Company remains liable for $3,024,000 of mortgage and equipment notes payable as of December 29,
2002, of which it is a co-obligor for notes aggregating $446,000 as of December 29, 2002.
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The loan agreements for most of the Leasehold Notes, Mortgage Notes and Equipment Notes contain
various prepayment provisions that provide for prepayment penalties of up to 5% of che principal amount
prepaid or are based upon specified “yield maintenance” formulas.

The Indenture and the agreements for the Leasehold Notes and Mortgage Notes contain various covenants,
the most restrictive of which (1) require periodic financial reporting, (2) require meeting certain debt service
coverage ratio tests and (3) restrict, among other matters, (a) the incurrence of indebtedness, (b) certain asset
dispositions and (c) the payment of distributions by Arby’s Trust and Sybra. The Company was in compliance
with all of such covenants as of December 29, 2002.

As of December 29, 2002, Arby’s Trust had no amounts available for the payment of distributions.
However, on January 21, 2003, $1,650,000 relating to cash flows for the calendar month of December 2002
became available for the payment of such distributions by Arby’s Trust, through its parent to Arby's which, in
turn, would be available to Arby’s to pay management service fees or Federal income tax-sharing payables to
Triarc or, to the extent of any excess, make distributions to Triarc. In connection with Sybra’s reorganization,
Sybra is unable to pay any distributions prior to December 27, 2004,

Sybra is required to maintain a fixed charge coverage charge ratio (the “FCCR") under the agreements for
the Leasehold Notes and Equipment Notes. In the event that Sybra fails to maintain the minimum FCCR, such
failure may be cured by a capital contribution in cash to Sybra in the quarter immediately following such
period of an amount such that the minimum FCCR would have been met.

(i1} Derivative instruments

The Company’s derivative instruments, excluding those that may be settled in its own stock and,
accordingly, not affected by SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,”
during 2001 and 2002 are (1) the conversion component of short-term investments in convertible debt
securities which are accounted for as trading securities and had aggregate carrying values of $2,665,000 and
$601,000 as of December 30, 2001 and December 29, 2002, respectively, (2) put and call options on equity
and corporate debt securities which are accounted for as trading securities and (3) the Swap Agreement entered
into during 2001 (see Note 10 and below). The Company enters into convertible debt and put and call
derivatives as part of its overall investment portfolio strategy. This strategy includes balancing the relative
proportion of its investments in cash equivalents with their relative stability and risk-minimized returns with
opportunities to avail the Company of higher, but more risk-inherent, rerurns associated with other
investments, including convertible debt securities and put and call options. The Swap Agreement effectively
establishes a fixed interest rate on the variable-rate Bank Term Loan, but with an embedded written call option
whereby the Swap Agreement will no longer be in effect if, and for as long as, the one-month LIBOR is at or
above a specified rate. On the initial date of the Swap Agreement, the fair market value of the Swap Agreement
and the embedded written call option netted to zero but, as interest rates either increase or decrease, the fair
market values of the Swap Agreement and written call option have moved and will continue to move in the
same direction but not necessarily by the same amount. As of December 30, 2001 and December 29, 2002, the
net fair market value of the Swap Agreement and embedded written call option had changed to payable
positions of $651,000 and $1,229,000, respectively, included in “Other liabilities, deferred income and
minority interests in a consolidated subsidiary” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets, resulting in
charges of $651,000 and $578,000 included in “Interest expense” in the accompanying consolidated income
statements for 2001 and 2002, respectively.
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{12) Fair Value of Financial instruments

The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Company's financial instruments for which the
disclosure of fair values is required were as follows (in thousands):

Year-End
2001 2002
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (@)................ $506,461 $506,461 $457,472 $457,472
Short-term investments excluding Equity
Investments (Note 5) (b).................. 144,604 152,876 173,352 182,586
Restricted cash equivalents (Note 7) (a) ... ... 32,506 32,506 32,476 32,476
Non-current Cost Investments (Note 8) for
which it is:
Practicable to estimare fair value (c) ....... 29,725 34,769 29,934 38,412
Not practicable (d) ....................... 12,070 — 4,102 —
Financial liabilities:
Long-term debt, including current portion
(Note 10):
Securitization Notes (&) ................... 273,957 289,052 254,774 287,102
Leasehold Notes (f) ....................... — — 82,016 82,016
Bank Term Loan (g)...........ccovvvunn.. 21,515 21,515 18,287 18,287
Promissory Note (€) ..........ccoivvone... 15,021 15,962 13,320 14,745
Equipment Notes (f) ..................... — — 6,272 6,272
Mortgage Notes () .....c.oviivviininn... — — 3,346 3,346
Mortgage and equipment notes related to
restaurants sold in 1997 {e)............. 3.230 3,518 3,024 3,514
Capitalized lease obligations (f)............ _— — 5,648 5,648
Other () ... ..o — — 435 435
Total long-term debt ................... 313,723 330,047 387,122 421,365
Securities sold with an obligation to purchase
(Note 5) (B) ..o 17,384 17,384 9,168 9,168
Deferred compensation payable to related
parties (Note 23) (h) ............. ... ... 24,356 24,356 25,706 25,706
Swap Agreement (Note 11) ()............... 651 651 1,229 1,229
Written call option on Triarc’s common stock
MNote 14 (oovvvii 30 30 — —
Guarantees of obligétions of (Note 22):
Subsidiaries of RTM Restaurant Group, Inc.: »
Lease obligations (k)...................... 293 293 194 194
Mortgage and equipment notes
payable (k) ... 194 194 137 137
AmeriGas Eagle Propane, L.P. debt (1) ....... — 690 — 690
Encore: ‘
Revolving credit borrowings (m)........... —_— 70 — 18
Senior notes payable (k) ......... .. . ..., 505 505 338 338

(footnotes on mext page)
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(a) The carrying amouats approximated fair value due to the short-term macurities of che cash equivalents.

(b) The fair values were based on quoted market prices or statements of account received from investment
managers or investees which are principally based on quoted market or brokered/dealer prices.

(c) These consist of investments held in deferred compensation trusts and certain other non-current Cost
Investments. The fair values of these investments were based almost entirely on statements of account
received from investment managers or investees which are principally based on quoted market or
brokered/dealer prices. To the extent that some of these investments, including the underlying investments
in investment limited partnerships, do not have available quoted market or brokered/dealer prices, we rely
on third-party appraisals or valuations performed by the investment managers or investees in valuing those
securities.

(d) It was not practicable to estimate the fair value of these Cost Investments because the investments are non-
marketable and are in start-up enterprises.

(e) The fair values were determined by discounting the future scheduled payments using an interest rate
assuming the same original issuance spread over a current Treasury bond yield for securities with similar
durations.

(f) The fair values were based on an independent appraisal as part of the Sybra Acquisition purchase
accounting as of December 27, 2002.

(g) The fair value approximated the catrying value due to the frequent reset, on a monthly basis, of the floating
interest rate.

(h) The fair value was equal to the carrying amount of the underlying investments held by the Company in the
related trusts which may be used to satisfy such payable in full.

(i) The fair value was based on a quote provided by the bank counterparty.

(j) The fair value was determined by independent third-party consultants using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model, although, in the opinion of the Company, the model has limications on its effectiveness and
does not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of the written call option.

(k) The fair values were assumed to reasonably approximate their carrying amounts since the carrying amounts
represent the fair value as of the inception of the guarantee less subsequent amortization.

(1) The fair value was determined through an independenc third-party appraisal based on the net present value
of the probability adjusted payments which may be required to be made by the Company.

(m) The fair value was determined through an independent third-party appraisal based on the net present value
of the estimated interest payment differential between the Encore revolving credit borrowings with and
without the related guarantee.

The carrying amounts of accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses approximated fair
value due to the related allowance for doubtful accounts receivable and the short-term maturities of accounts
payable and accrued expenses and, accordingly, they are not required to be presented in the table above.

(i3) Income Taxes

Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes and minority interests consisted of the
following components (in thousands):

200 000 200
DOMESTIC © oottt et e $ 2334 $17,420 $(16,606)
Boreign . oo (123) (10) (28)

$ 2,211 $17,410 $(16,634)
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The provision for (benefit from) income taxes from continuing operations consisted of the following
components (in thousands):

200 2000 2002
Current:
Federal ... o e $(1,164) $ 7,341 $(3,855)
R 22 < P 3,465 2,140 1,668
BOreIgn « v vttt e 322 269 256
2,623 9,750 (1,931)
Deferred:
Federal .. ... 10,377 (569) (1,226)
AL ot ittt e e e (632) (485) (172)
9,745 (1,054) (1,398)
Total . o $12,368 § 8,696 $(3,329)

The net current deferred income tax benefit and the net non-current deferred income tax (liability)
resulted from the following components (in thousands):

Year-End
2000 2002
Curtent deferred income tax benefit (liability):

Accrued compensation and related benefits ............. ... ... $ 7574 $ 5,851
Investment limited partnerships basis differences ................... (713) 3,692
Investment write-downs for unrealized losses deemed other than

temporary on marketable securities .......... .. ... .o L 1,095 3,142
Accrued liabilities of SEPSCQO discontinued operations (Note 18).... 1,095 1,050
Severance, relocation and closed facilities reserves................... 203 1,005
Unrealized (gains) losses, net, on available-for-sale and trading

securities and securities sold with an obligation to purchase

(NOLE 5] v ettt e e e e e e (439) 692
Allowance for doubtful accounts ............ ... .. ... i 587 490
Other, Net ... e e 2,093 12

11,495 15,934

Non-current deferred income tax benefit (liability):

Gain on sale of propane business ..., (37,003)  (37,003)
Reserve for contingencies and other tax matters, net ............... (15,148) (15,148)
Investment in propane business other basis differences.............. (11,286) (8,936)
Accelerated depreciation and other property basis differences ........ (6,834) (8,888)
Intangible assets basis differences ............. ... .. ...l — 4,495
Investment write-downs for unrealized losses deemed other than

temMporary On NON-CULTENt INVESTMENTS .. ..vvreneoreneeannen.n. 734 2,368
Other, NBL ...ttt e (69) 2,145

(69,6060) (60,967)
$(58,111) $(45,033)

The decrease in the net deferred income tax liability from $58,111,000 at December 30, 2001 to
$45,033,000 at December 29, 2002, or a decrease of $13,078,000, exceeds the 2002 benefit for deferred
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income taxes of $1,398,000. The difference of $11,680,000 is principally due to the recognition of net deferred
tax assets in connection with the Sybra Acquisition.

A reconciliation of the difference between the reported provision for (benefit from) income taxes and the
provision (benefit) that would result from applying the 35% Federal statutory rate to the income or loss from
continuing operations before income taxes and minority interests is as follows (in thousands):

000 2000 2002
Income tax provision (benefit) computed at Federal statutory
LT e e e e e $ 774 8% 6,094 $(5,822)
Increase (decrease) in Federal income taxes resulting from:
Minority interests in loss of a consolidated subsidiary...... — 88 1,242
Non-deductible compensation ............................ 9,702 1,131 782
State income taxes, net of Federal income tax benefit...... 1,841 1,076 972
Amortization of non-deductible goodwill ................. 284 284 —
Dividend income exclusion ............. ... ...l (350) (271) (567)
Other, net ... .. i 117 204 64

$12,368 § 8,696 $(3,329)

The Company's Federal income tax returns for years subsequent to 1993 have not been examined by the
IRS. However, should any income taxes or interest be assessed as the result of any Federal or state examinations
for periods through the October 25, 2000 date of the Snapple Beverage Sale, Cadbury has agreed to pay up to
$4,984,000 of any resulting income taxes or associated interest relating to the operations of Snapple Beverage
Group and Royal Crown.

(14) Stockhoiders’ Equity

Class A Common Stock

The Company’s class A common stock (the “Class A Common Stock”) has one vote per share. There were
no changes in the 100,000,000 shares authorized and the 29,550,663 shares issued of Class A Common Stock
throughout 2000, 2001 and 2002.

Class B Common Stock

In October 2001, the Company authorized 100,000,000 shares of a new class B common stock (the “Class
B Common Stock”), none of which have been issued through December 29, 2002, and eliminated and
effectively canceled the previously authorized 25,000,000 shares of its former non-voting class B common stock
(the “Former Class B Common Stock”). The voting rights of the Class B Common Stock will not be determined
until an issuance thereof. All outstanding shares of the Former Class B Common Stock, which were held by
affiliates of Victor Posner (the “Posner Entities”), had been repurchased by the Company, as disclosed in more
detail below under “Treasury Stock.” Victor Posner was a former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Triarc
prior to May 1993. As a result of the effective cancellation of the 5,997,622 shares of the Former Class B
Common Stock, the Company recorded an entry in 2001 within stockholders’ equity which reduced “Common
stock” by $600,000, “Addicional paid-in capital” by $83,211,000, “Retained earnings” by $43,325,000 and
“Common stock held in treasury” by $127,136,000.

Preferved Strock

The Company increased the number of authorized preferred shares to 100,000,000 in October 2001 from
25,000,000, none of which were issued throughout 2000, 2001 and 2002. The authorized preferred stock
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previously included 5,982,866 shares designated as redeemable preferred stock until such shares were retired on
August 20, 2001. As a result, all of the authorized 100,000,000 shares of preferred stock are undesignated.

Treasury Stock

A summary of the changes in the number of shares of Class A Common Stock and Former Class B
Common Stock held in treasury is as follows (in thousands):
2000 2001 2002

Former Former
Class A Class B Class A Class B Class A

Number of shares at beginning of year .......... 9,773 1,999 9,224 3,998 9,194
Common shares acquired from Posner Entities (a) — 1,999 — 1,999 —
Common shares acquired in open market

CLANSACTIONS . . o v ittt vttt neeae e — — 300 — 289
Common shares acquired from certain officers and

a director of the Company (b) ................ 1,046 — — — —
Common shares retired (¢) ....... ..o, — — — (5,997) —
Common shares issued from treasury upon

exercises of stock options ............. ... ..., (1,585) — (323) — (311
Common shares issued from treasury for directors’

felS o 9 — N — 6)
Other ..o 8 — — — —
Number of shares at end of year ................ 0,224 3998 9,194 — 9,166

(@) In August 1999 Triarc entered into a contract to repurchase in three separate transactions the 5,997,622
shares of the Former Class B Common Stock then held by the Posner Entities for an aggregate of
$127,050,000. Triarc completed the purchases of 1,999,207 shares of Former Class B Common Stock (the
“Class B Repurchases”) each on August 19, 1999, August 10, 2000 and August 10, 2001. The August 10,
2000 and August 10, 2001 Class B Repurchases were for an aggregate of $42,343,000 and $43,843,000,
respectively, at negotiated prices of $21.18 and $21.93 per share, respectively, plus expenses of $30,000 for
the August 10, 2000 repurchase. The negotiated prices were based on the fair market value of the Class A
Common Stock of $20.44 per share at the time the transaction was negotiated. The August 10, 2001
payment resulted in the reduction to zero of the “Common stock to be acquired” component of
“Stockholders’ equity.”

(b) During December 2000 the Company repurchased 1,045,834 shares of its Class A Common Stock from
certain of its officers and a director for an aggregate cost of $25,942,000 (see disclosure below).

(c) On October 25, 2001, all of the previously authorized 25,000,000 shares of the Former Class B Common
Stock were eliminated and effectively canceled (see disclosure above), which effectively recired all 5,997,622
shares of the Former Class B Common Stock then held in treasury.

Written Call Option

Prior to February 8, 2003, Cadbury had the right to cause the Company to issue Class A Common Shares
upon conversion of the Debentures assumed by Cadbury, which effectively established a written call option on
such stock (the “Written Call Option”). Cadbury called the Debentures for redemption in full with a
redemption date of February 9, 2003 and the Written Call Option terminated without any Class A Common
Stock being called under the option. The original fair value of the Written Call Option of $1,476,000 as of

October 25, 2000 was recorded as a reduction of the “Gain on disposal” component of “Total income from
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discontinued operations” in the accompanying consolidated income statement for the year ended December 31,
2000 (see Note 18). The fair value of the Written Call Option, of $30,000 as of December 30, 2001 and less
than $1,000 as of December 29, 2002, was reported as a liability included in “Other liabilities, deferred income
and minority interests in a consolidated subsidiary” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The
reduction in the fair value of the Written Call Option of $653,000 from October 25, 2000 to December 31,
2000, $793,000 during 2001 and $30,000 during 2002 was reported as a component of “Other income, net”
(see Note 17). The fair value of the Written Call Option was determined by independent third-party
consultants using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company maintains or maintained several equity plans (the “Equity Plans”) which collectively
provide or provided for the grant of stock options to certain officers, key employees, consultants and non-
employee directors and shares of Class A Common Stock pursuant to automatic grants in lieu of annual retainer
or meeting attendance fees to non-employee directors. The Equity Plans include the 2002 Equity Participation
Plan which was approved by the Company’s stockholders in June 2002 and which authorized an additional
5,000,000 shares for grants of stock options, tandem stock appreciation rights and restricted shares of the
Company’s common stock. As of December 29, 2002, there are 5,398,442 shares available for future grants
under the Equity Plans.

A summary of changes in outstanding stock options under the Equity Plans is as follows:
Weighted Average

Options Option Price Option Price

Outstanding at January 2, 2000 .............. 10,611,565 $6.39-$30.00 $17.78
Granted during 2000 (@) .............c....... 1,018,000 $19.00-$25.4375 $25.17
Exercised during 2000 ....................... (1,584,545) $6.39-$23.3125 $14.31
Stock options settled for cash or on a net share

basis (B) v\ (868,755) $10.125-823.6875 $16.60
Terminated during 2000 ..................... (257,847) $10.125-$27.00 $19.55
Outstanding at December 31, 2000 ........... 8,018,418 $10.125-$30.00 $19.31
Granted during 2001 @) ..........coviviinnn. 912,500 $24.60-$26.15 $24.69
Exercised during 2001 ....................... (323,334) $10.125-$24.125 $17.56
Stock options surrendered by the Executives

(see NOtE 23) vt e (775,000) $20.125 $20.13
Terminated during 2001 ..................... (143,000) $16.875-$26.4375 $23.35
Outstanding at December 30, 2001 ........... 8,589,584 $10.125-$30.00 $19.81
Granted during 2002 (@) ............ ... ..., 1,031,000 $26.93-$27.17 $26.94
Exercised during 2002 ....................... (311,496) $10.125-$25.4375 $19.67
Terminated during 2002 ..................... (47,667) $17.75-$25.4375 $24.39
QOutstanding at December 29, 2002 ........... 9,261,421 $10.125-$30.00 $20.58

(a) The weighted average grant date fair values of stock options granted under the Equity Plans during 2000,
2001 and 2002, all of which were granted at exercise prices equal to the market price of the stock on the
grant date, were $11.37, $8.12 and $8.22, respectively.

(b) Includes 856,169 stock options held by the employees of Snapple Beverage Group and Royal Crown who
chose to surrender these options prior to the Snapple Beverage Sale (see discussion below).
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A summary of exercisable stock options under the Equity Plans is as follows:
Weighted Average

Options Option Price Option Price
December 31, 2000 ........coiviiiiiiiniien. 3,468,671 $10.125-$30.00 $17.16
December 30, 2001 ...... ... 3,921,423 $10.125-%30.00 $17.79
December 29, 2002 .. ...t 4,643,922  $10.125-$30.00 $18.64

The following table sets forth information relating to stock options outstanding and stock options
exercisable at December 29, 2002 under the Equity Plans:

Stock Options Outstanding Stock Options Exercisable

Ourtstanding at Weighted Weighted Outstanding at Weighted

Year-End Average Years Average Year-End Average

Option Price 2002 Remaining Option Price 2002 Option Price

$10.125-813.375 ............. 1,050,835 29 $11.19 1,050,835 $11.19

$16.25-8$17.75 ............... 784,003 6.7 $17.52 784,003 §17.52

$18.00-$19.75 ............... 1,093,500 0.6 $18.11 1,088,500 $18.11
$20.125..... . 2,725,000 1.3 $20.13 — —

$20.375-824.75 .......... ..., 1,593,500 6.7 $23.59 - 1,056,831 $23.08

$25.00-$30.00 ............... 2,014,583 8.9 $26.25 663,753 $25.58

9,261,421 4.5 4,643,922

Stock options under the Equity Plans generally have maximum terms of ten years and vest ratably over
periods of generally three years but not exceeding five years from date of grant. However, an aggregate
2,725,000 stock options outstanding at December 29, 2002 granted on April 21, 1994 to the Executives at an
exercise price of $20.125 per option vest on October 21, 2003.

Stock options under the Equity Plans are generally granted at the fair market value of the Class A
Common Stock at the date of grant. However, options granted in March 1997 included 1,331,000 options
issued at a weighted average option price of $12.70 which was below the $14.82 weighted average fair market
value of the Class A Common Stock on the respective dates of grant (based on the closing price on such dates),
resulting in aggregate unearned compensation, representing the initial intrinsic value, of $2,823,000 originally
reported in the “Unearned compensation” component of stockholders’ equity. Such unearned compensation was
amortized as compensation expense over the applicable vesting period of one to three years through March
2000. During 2000, $61,000 of remaining unearned compensation was credited to “Unearned compensation,”
of which $49,000 relating to employees of Triarc and Arby’s was charged to “General and administrative” and
$12,000 relating to employees of Snapple Beverage Group and Royal Crown was reported in the “Loss from
operations” component of “Total income from discontinued operations.”

During December 2000, certain of the Company’s officers and a director exercised stock options under the
Equity Plans and the Company repurchased the 1,045,834 shares of its Class A Common Stock received by
these individuals upon such exercises on the respective exercise dates. Since such shares of Class A Common
Stock were repurchased within six months after exercise of the related stock options, the Company recognized
aggregate compensation cost of $10,422,000 representing the excess of the market prices on the dates of
purchase by the Company over the exercise prices of the underlying stock options, net of any amortization
related to such stock options issued below market. Such amount was charged to “General and administrative”
with an offsetting credit to “Additional paid-in capital.”

As disclosed in Note (b) above, during October 2000 certain employees of Snapple Beverage Group and
Royal Crown who held stock options for Triarc’s Class A Common Stock surrendered 856,169 stock options
prior to the Snapple Beverage Sale. Such option holders received an amount initially equal to the excess of
$23.75 per option over the respective exercise prices of the underlying stock option, or an aggregate
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$6,159,000 of cash, in this settlement. Such cash payment, net of $274,000 previously amortized for stock
options issued below market, or $5,885,000, was recorded in the “Gain on disposal” component of “Total
income from discontinued operations” in the accompanying consolidated income statement for the year ended
December 31, 2000. Further, Triarc agreed to pay cash compensation to certain of these individuals for each
option surrendered equal to the excess of the average of the five highest daily closing prices of Triarc’s Class A
Common Stock during the 90-day period following the October 25, 2000 date of the Snapple Beverage Sale
over the $23.75 price used in the settlement, which aggregated $599,000 and was paid in January 2001. Since
each of the five highest daily closing prices occurred during 2000, the Company recorded the liability for the
full $599,000 in 2000 with an equal offsetting charge to “General and administrative” expenses.

During 2000, 2001 and 2002, there were certain other modifications to the vesting or exercise periods of
stock options relating to certain terminated employees of the Company. Such modifications resulted in
aggregate compensation of $491,000, $462,000 and $275,000 during 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively,
which was credited to “Additional paid-in-capital” and was charged to “General and administrative”, except for
$26,000 during 2000 relating to employees of Snapple Beverage Group and Royal Crown which was reported
in the “Loss from operations” component of “Total income from discontinued operations.”

Snapple Beverage Group maintained a stock option plan (the “Snapple Beverage Plan”) which provided for
the grant of options to purchase shares of Snapple Beverage Group's common stock (the “Snapple Beverage
Common Stock”) to key employees, officers, directors and consultants of Snapple Beverage Group and the
Company. Effective with the Snapple Beverage Sale on October 25, 2000, the Company was no longer
responsible for the 149,284 then outstanding stock options under the Snapple Beverage Plan which remained
the responsibility of Snapple Beverage Group under Cadbury’s ownership and which at the time of the Snapple
Beverage Sale had an aggregate intrinsic value of $123,638,000. A summary of changes in outstanding stock
options under the Snapple Beverage Plan is as follows:

Weighted Average

Options Option Price Option Price
Outstanding at January 2, 2000 (@) .......... 147,450 $107.05-$311.99 $128.55
Granted during 2000 ....................... 2,501 $456.14 $456.14
Terminated during 2000 .................... (667) $138.83-$311.99 $182.18
Stock options no longer the responsibility of
the Company (see disclosure above) ........ (149,284) $107.05-$456.14 $133.80

Outstanding and exercisable at December 31,
2000, December 30, 2001 and December
29, 2002 .. —

(a) Exercisable stock options as of January 2, 2000 were 47,723 stock options at prices of $107.05 and
$138.83 with a weighted average option price of $123.07.

Stock options under the Snapple Beverage Plan were generally granted at the fair value of Snapple
Beverage Common Stock at the date of grant as determined by .independent appraisals. However, all 2,501
options granted in 2000 were issued at option prices below the fair market value of Snapple Beverage Common
Stock on the date of grant resulting in aggregate compensation expense of $1,157,000, of which $412,000
relating to an employee of Triarc was included in “General and administrative” and $745,000 relating to
employees of Snapple Beverage Group was reported in the “Loss from operations” component of “Total income
from discontinued operations.” The weighted average grant date fair value of the options granted during 2000
was $462.53. Stock options under the Snapple Beverage Plan had maximum terms of ten years and generally
vested or would have vested ratably over periods approximating three years. However, 144,675 stock options
reissued in 1999 vested or would have vested ratably on July 1 of 2000, 2001 and 2002.
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The Snapple Beverage Plan provided for an equitable adjustment of options in the event of a
recapitalization or similar event. Effective as of May 17, 1999 the exercise prices of the Snapple Beverage Group
options then outstanding that were granted prior to January 4, 1999 were equitably adjusted for the effects of
net distributions of $91,342,000, principally consisting of transfers of cash and deferred tax assets from Snapple
Beverage Group to Triarc, partially offset by the effect of the contribution of Stewart’s to Snapple Beverage
Group effective May 17, 1999. The exercise prices of options granted at $147.30 per share were equitably
adjusted to $107.05 per share and options granted at $191.00 per share were equitably adjusted to $138.83 per
share and a cash payment (the “Cash Payment”) of $51.34 and $39.40 per share, respectively, was due from the
Company to the option holder following the exercise of the stock options and the occurrence of certain other
events. The Company accounted for the equitable adjustment of the Snapple Beverage Group stock options in
accordance with the intrinsic value method. In accordance therewith, the equitable adjustment, exclusive of the
Cash Payment, was considered a modification to the terms of existing stock options. Compensation expense for
the Cash Payment was recognized ratably over the vesting period of the stock options through the date such
options were no longer the responsibility of the Company but remained the responsibility of Snapple Beverage
Group under Cadbury’s ownership in connection with the Snapple Beverage Sale. Such compensation expense
with respect to option holders who were employees of Triarc of $306,000 during 2000 is included in “General
and administrative” in the accompanying consolidated income statement. Such compensation expense with
respect to option holders who were employees of Snapple Beverage Group of $312,000, net of income taxes of
$199,000, during 2000 was charged to the “Loss from operations” component of “Total income from
discontinued operations.” Upon the release of the Company’s obligation for such Cash Payment to option
holders who were employees of Triarc, the related accruals of $1,550,000, net of income taxes of $883,000,
were released and reported in the “Gain on disposal” component of “Total income from discontinued
operations” (see Note 18). No compensation expense was recognized for the changes in the exercise prices of the
outstanding options because such modifications to the options did not create a new measurement date under
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As disclosed in Note 1, the Company accounts for stock options in accordance with the intrinsic value
method and, accordingly, has not recognized any compensation expense for those stock options granted at
option prices equal to the fair market value of the Class A Common Stock or the Snapple Beverage Common
Stock, as applicable, at the respective dates of grant. The pro forma net income (loss) and basic and diluted net
income (loss) per share set forth in Note 1 adjusts such data as set forth in the accompanying consolidated
income statements to reflect for the Equity Plans and, through October 25, 2000, for the Snapple Beverage
Plan (1) the reversal of stock-based employee compensation expense determined under the intrinsic value
method included in reported net income, (2) the recognition of total stock-based employee compensation
expense for all 1995 through 2002 stock option grants determined under the fair value method and (3) the
income tax effects of each. In 2000 the reduction in compensation expense recorded in accordance with the
intrinsic value method exceeded the compensation expense based on the fair value method due to the expense
recognized in accordance with the intrinsic value method of (a) $10,422,000 for the Company’s repurchase of
Class A Common Stock from cerrain officers and a director representing the excess of the market prices on the
dates of purchase by the Company over the exercise prices of the underlying stock options and (b) $5,885,000
related to certain employees of Snapple Beverage Group and Royal Crown who surrendered 856,169 stock
options for Triarc’s Class A Common Stock prior to the Snapple Beverage Sale for cash, at prices in excess of the
exercise prices of the underlying stock options, both as disclosed in more detail above.

The fair value of stock options granted under the Equity Plans on the date of grant was estimated using
the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the weighted average assumptions set forth below. The fair value
of stock options granted in 2000 under the Snapple Beverage Plan was assumed to be their intrinsic value since
such options were issued shortly before the October 25, 2000 date of the Snapple Beverage Sale.
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2000 2001 2002

Risk-free INCEIESE FATE ... ...ttt e 5.19% 4.73% 3.68%
Expected option life in years.............cooeiii it 7 7 7
Expected volatility ... 322% 17.0% 18.5%
Dividend yield. ... oo None None None

The Black-Scholes option pricing model has limitations on its effectiveness including that it was
developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options which have no vesting restrictions and are fully
transferable and that the model requires the use of highly subjective assumptions including expected stock price
volatility. Because the Company’s stock-based awards to employees have characteristics significantly different
from those of traded options and because changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect che
fair value estimate, in the opinion of the Company, the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable
single measure of the fair value of its stock-based awards to employees.

(15) Capital Market Transaction Related Compensation

The capital market transaction related compensation results from incentive compensation directly related
to the consummation of the Snapple Beverage Sale in October 2000 and the issuance of the Securitization Notes
in November 2000 consisting of (1) an aggregate of $22,500,000 to the Executives which was invested in two
deferred compensation trusts (the “Deferred Compensation Trusts”) for their benefit in January 2001 (see
Note 23) and (2) $3,510,000 paid to other officers and employees in January 2001. The incentive compensation
payable to the Executives, together with investment income on the Deferred Compensation Trusts, is included
in “Deferred compensation payable to related parties” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

(16} Investment Income, Net

Investment income, net consisted of the following components (in thousands):

00 2000 200

INterest INCOME . . ..o o vttt e $16,478 $31,796 $ 10,910
Distributions, including dividends ........................... 1,599 1,246 2,095
Realized gains on available-for-sale marketable securities ....... 5,752 2,882 2,651
Realized gains (losses) on trading marketable securities ........ 2,190 1,650 (6,495)
Realized gains (losses) on securities sold and subsequently

purchased . ... ... (1,295) (202) 7,795
Realized gains on sales of investment limited partnerships and

similar Investment entities .............oveviiiiueninen.. 10,891 573 675
Unrealized losses on trading marketable securities ............. (4,848) (2,033) (883)
Unrealized gains (losses) on securities sold with an obligation

to purchase .. ... e 4,527 2,180 (1,020)
Other than temporary unrealized losses (2).................... (3,669)  (3,466) (14,531)
Equity in the earnings (losses) of investment limited

partnerships and similar investment entities ................ (116) 84 46
Investment fees. . ...ttt (794)  (1,078) (392)

$30,715 $33,632 § 851

(a) The Company recognized unrealized losses deemed to be other than temporary on certain marketable

securities classified as available-for-sale, certain investments in limited partnerships, including 280 BT,
EBT and 280 KPE Holdings, LLC, Encore and cerrain non-marketable common and preferred stocks and
(footnotes continued on next page)
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(footnotes continued from previous page)

reduced the cost basis of those investments. Such losses were deemed to be other than temporary due to

declines in the underlying economics of the specific security or volatility in capital and lending markets.
These unrealized losses were before minority interests in 280 BT of $264,000 and $3,448,000 in 2001 and
2002, respectively.

(17) Other Income, Net

Other income, net consisted of the following income (expense) components (in thousands):

2000 2001 2002
Interest income on note receivable from the Executives (Note 23) $ — $ 148 § 62
Interest income related to the Snapple Beverage Sale (a)......... — 8,284 —
Other interest INCOME ... ..ottt 686 284 283
Amortization of debt guarantee reserves ................. ... .... 247 209 324
Sublease rental income........ ... 327 483 278
Sublease rental expense ....... ... .. i i (207) (209) (180)
Equity in (losses) earnings of investees (Note 8) ................ (2,307) (221) 260
Reduction in fair value of the Wricten Call Option (Note 14).. . 653 793 30
Sybra’s two-day resules of operations Note 3) ...........c.o.... — — 15
Sectlement of bankruptcy claims with a former affiliate
previously written off ........ .. .. 859 — 8
Adjustment to prior period gain on pension termination (b)..... — 506 —
Gain (loss) on lease termination ...............ccciviinain... 337 (12) —
Recognition of deferred gain on sale of restaurants.............. 471 — —
Other INCOME ..\ o\ttt e 211 76 346
Other eXpenses ... ... vttt et (36) (150) (68)

$1,241 $10,191 ¢ 1,358

(2) The Company received $8,284,000 of interest income on the $200,000,000 payment by Cadbury for the
Tax Election (see Note 3) in accordance with a Snapple Beverage Sale tax agreement. Such interest income
was recognized in 2001 when the Tax Election was made and was for the period from December 9, 2000
(45 days after the October 25, 2000 Snapple Beverage Sale date) through the date of payment of the
$200,000,000 on June 14, 2001.

(b) The Company received $1,461,000 of compensation in 2001 resulting from the demutualization of the
insurance company from which a group annuity contract was purchased in July 1987 to provide for pension
payments to participants in connection with the settlement of certain pension obligations associated with
the termination of a pension plan effective June 1985. Of such compensation, $506,000 related to
continuing operations and is included above in “Other income, net” and $955,000 related to the
discontinued operations associated with the Snapple Beverage Sale and is included, net of income taxes, in
the “Gain on disposal” component of “Total income from discontinued operations” in 2001.

(18) Discontinued Operations

On October 25, 2000, the Company consummated the Snapple Beverage Sale (see Note 3) and, as set forth
in Note 1, these beverage businesses have been accounted for as discontinued operations (the “Beverage
Discontinued Operations”) in 2000 through the date of sale. Further, prior to 2000 the Company sold the stock
or the principal assets of the companies comprising SEPSCO’s utility and municipal services and refrigeration
business segments (the “SEPSCO Discontinued Operations”) which have been accounted for as discontinued
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operations and of which there remain certain obligations not transferred to the buyers of the discontinued
businesses to be liquidated and incidental properties of the refrigeration business to be sold.

The income (loss) from discontinued operations consisted of the following (in thousands):

00 2000 2002
Loss from operations, plus income tax provision of $915 ...... $ (8,868) $ — $ —
Gain on the disposal of the Former Beverage Businesses (see
Note 3), net of income tax provisions of $226,765 during
2000 and $145,533 during 2001 and representing an
income tax benefit of $11,100 during 2002 ............... 480,946 43,450 11,100
Total income from discontinued operations............... $472,078 843,450 $11,100

The loss from discontinued operations relating to the Former Beverage Businesses from January 3, 2000
through their date of sale of October 25, 2000 consisted of the following (in thousands):

Revenues and other inCOMEe .. ... ...ttt $681,063
Loss before INCOME TaXES. ..o iit ittt (7,953)
Provision for INCOME TAXES .. ... ..ottt i (915)
Nt J08S . ottt e e (8,868)

The Company’s discontinued operations had a provision for income taxes despite a loss before income taxes
in 2000 principally due to (1) the amortization of non-deductible unamortized costs in excess of net assets of
acquired companies and (2) the differing impact of the mix of pretax loss or income among the combined
entities since the Company files state income tax returns on an individual company basis.

Net current liabilities relating to discontinued operations as of December 30, 2001 and December 29,
2002 consisted of the following (in thousands):

Year-End
000 2002
Accrued expenses, including accrued income taxes, of the Beverage
Discontinued Operations..........c.vvurteiiitairienireieananeeana, $29,067 $30,316
Net liabilities of the SEPSCO Discontinued Operations (net of assets held
for sale of $234) . .. . 2,895 2,767

$31,962  $33,083

Accrued expenses, including accrued income taxes, of the Beverage Discontinued Operations as of
December 29, 2002 represent remaining liabilities payable with respect to the Beverage Discontinued
Operations. The net liabilities of SEPSCO Discontinued Operations principally represent liabilities that have
not been liquidated as of December 29, 2002. The Company expects that the liquidation of the remaining
liabilities associated with both the Beverage Discontinued Operations and the SEPSCO Discontinued
Operations as of December 29, 2002 will not have any material adverse impact on its financial position or
results of operations.

(19) Extracrdinary Charges

The 2000 extraordinary charges resulted from the early assumption or extinguishment, as applicable, of (1)
the Senior Notes co-issued by TCPG and Snapple Beverage Group, (2) the Beverage Credit Facility maintained
by Snapple, Mistic, Stewart’s, Royal Crown and RC/Arby’s and (3) the Triarc Debentures. These extraordinary
charges consisted of (1) the write-off of previously unamortized deferred financing costs of $27,491,000, (2) the
payment of prepayment penalties of $5,509,000 and (3) fees of $17,000, all less income tax benefit of
$12,337,000.
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{20} Retirement Benefit Plans

The Company maintains two 401(k) defined contribution plans (the “401(k) Plans”) covering all of its
employees who meet certain minimum requirements and elect to participate, including employees of Sybra
subsequent to December 27, 2002. Under the provisions of the 401(k) Plans, employees may contribute various
percentages of their compensation ranging up to a maximum of 20% (15% prior to January 1, 2002) for one of
the 401(k) Plans and 15% for the other plan, subject to certain limitations. One of the 401(k) Plans provides
for Company matching contributions at 50% of employee contributions up to the first 6% thereof, whereas the
other plan does not currently provide for matching contributions. In addition, the 401(k) Plans permit
discretionary annual Company profit-sharing contributions to be determined by the employer regardless of
whether the employee otherwise elects to participate in the 401(k) Plans. In connection with both of these
employer contributions, the Company provided $924,000, $1,004,000 and $1,174,000 as compensation
expense in 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively.

The Company maintains two defined benefit plans for eligible employees through December 31, 1988 of
certain subsidiaries, benefits under which were frozen in 1992. After recognizing a curtailment gain upon
freezing the benefits, the Company has no untecognized prior service cost related to these plans.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the accumulated benefit obligations and the fair
value of the plans’ assets and a reconciliation of the resulting funded status of the plans to the net amount
recognized are (in thousands):

2001 2002
Change in accumulated benefit obligations:
Accumulated benefic obligations at beginning of year.................. $3,902 $3,788
Service cost (consisting entirely of plan expenses) ...................... 91 118
TREerest COSt .. oot 254 254
Actuarial 1SS . ... 116 1,091
Benefit payments .. .....ouinitorit e (433)  (366)
Plan expense Payments . ... .....uue ittt i e T (142) (114)
Accumulated benefit obligations at end of year........................ 3,788 4,771
Change in fair value of the plans’ assets:
Fair value of the plans’ assets at beginning of year .................... 4,074 3,878
Actual gain (loss) on the plans’ assets ............. ... ... ool. 379 (56)
Company contributions ...... ... .. .. . i — 431
Benefit PAYMENLS ...\ vuvt ittt et ettt s (433)  (366)
Plan expense payments ...........uuuuuernimiiri e (142) (114)
Fair value of the plans’ assets at end of year.......................... 3,878 3,773
Funded (unfunded) status at end of year ....... ... oo, 920 (998)
Unrecognized net actuarial and investment (gain) loss ...................... 4) 1,456
Net amount recognized. ... ....oooiiie $ 86 $ 458
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The net amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consisted of the following (in thousands):

Year-End
2001 2002

Accrued pension liability reported in “Cther liabilities, deferred income and
minority interests in a consolidated subsidiary” ....... ... .. Lo oo $(148) $ (998)

Unrecognized pension loss reported in “Accumulated other comprehensive
income (deficit)” component of “Stockholders’ equity” ............ ... . ... 234 1,456

Net amount recogNIzed . . ..o vuu vttt et $ 86 $ 458

As of December 30, 2001, one of the plans had an accumulated benefit obligation of $1,756,000 which
was in excess of the fair value of the plan assets of $1,445,000. As of December 29, 2002, both plans have
accumulated benefit obligations in excess of the fair value of each of the plans’ assets.

The components of the net periodic pension cost (credit) are as follows (in thousands):

2000 2001 2002

Service cost (consisting entirely of plan expenses)..................... $ 38 ¢ 91 §$118
DIt EIEST COSE &\ vttt e e e e e 269 254 254
Expected return on the plans’ assets..............coociiiiiiiiii ... (335) (296) (314)
Amortization of unrecognized net (gain) loss ................ ... . ..., (9) (3) 1

Net periodic pension cost (credit). ... ..o $ 37) $ 46 § 59

The unrecognized pension loss in 2000 and 2002, and the recovery in 2001, less related deferred income
taxes, has been reported as “Unrecognized pension loss” and “Recovery of unrecognized pension loss,”
respectively, as components of comprehensive income (loss) reported in the accompanying consolidated
statements of stockholders’ equity (deficit) consisting of the following (in thousands):

2000 2001 2002

Unrecognized pension (loss) recovery ..........coovviviin i, $(320) $87 $(1,222)
Deferred income tax benefit (provision) ........... ..o, 122 (33) 438

$198) $§s54 $§ (784

The actuarial assumptions used in measuring the net periodic pension cost (credit) and accumulated
benefit obligations are as follows:

2000 2001 2002

Net periodic pension cost {credit):

Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets .................. 80% 80% 8.0%

DISCOUNT LATE. ..ottt et ettt e 7.5% 75% 7.0%
Benefit obligations as of end of year:

DISCOUNT LATE. ..ottt et e e 7.0% 5.5%

The effect of the decrease in the discount rate used in measuring the net periodic pension cost from 2001
to 2002 resulted in a decrease in the net periodic pension cost of $6,000. The decrease in the discount rate used
in measuring the accumulated benefit obligations from 2001 to 2002 resulted in an increase in the accumulated
benefit obligations of $535,000. In addition, a change in the mortality table used in determining the
accumulated benefit obligations from 2001 to 2002 resulted in an additional increase of $427,000. Both of
these increases in the accumulated benefit obligations are reflected in the “Actuarial loss” component of the
change in accumulated benefit obligations during 2002 above.
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(21) Lease Commitments

The Company leases real property and transportation, restaurant and office equipment, principally related
to Sybra. Some leases related to restaurant operations provide for contingent rentals based on sales volume.

Rental expense under operating leases consisted of the following components (in thousands):

2000 2000 2002
Minimum rentals .. ... $3,882 84,154 $4,133
Contingent rentals ... — — 6
3,882 4,154 4,139
Less sublease incOmMe ... ..ottt 327 483 278

$3,955 $3,671 $3,861

The Company has recorded $3,274,000 of “Favorable leases” included in “Other intangible assets” (see
Note 9) and $15,506,000 of unfavorable leases included in “Other liabilities, deferred income and minority
interests in a consolidated subsidiary.” The Company’s future minimum rental payments, reduced by the
$12,232,000 of net unfavorable leases the Company has provided as previously set forth and excluding (1) the
lease obligations assumed by RTM Restaurant Group, Inc. in connection with the May 1997 sale of restaurants
(see Note 22) and (2) sublease rental receipts for noncancelable leases having an initial lease term in excess of
one year as of December 29, 2002 are as follows (in thousands):

Sublease
Rental Payments Rental Receipts
Capitalized  Operating Operating
Fiscal Year Leases Leases Leases
2008 L e $ 1,486 $ 16,250 $ 391
2004 e e 1,481 14,315 349
2005 1,169 12,507 282
20006 e 798 11,058 282
2007 e 554 10,684 179
Thereafter . .. ... 4,651 77,015 176
Total minimum payments........................ 10,139  $141,829 $1,659
Less IMEEIESE . oo\ ettt e e 4,491
Present value of minimum capitalized lease payments... § 5,648

The present value of minimum capitalized lease payments is included either with “Long-term debt” or
“Current portion of long-term debt,” as applicable, in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of
December 29, 2002 (see Note 10).

{22) Guarantees

National Propane retains a less than 1% special limited partner interest in its former propane business,
now known as AmeriGas Eagle Propane, L.P. ("AmeriGas Eagle”). National Propane agreed that while it
remains a special limited partner of AmeriGas Eagle, National Propane would indemnify (the “Indemnifica-
tion”) the owner of AmeriGas Eagle for any payments the owner makes related to the owner's obligations under
certain of the debt of AmeriGas Eagle, aggregating approximately $138,000,000 as of December 29, 2002, if
AmeriGas Eagle is unable to repay or refinance such debt, but only after recourse by the owner to the assets of
AmeriGas Eagle. National Propane’s principal asset is an intercompany note receivable from Triarc in the
amount of $30,000,000 as of December 29, 2002, which amount was increased to $50,000,000 as of January 1,
2003. The Company believes it is unlikely that it will be called upon to make any payments under the
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Indemnification. In August 2001, AmeriGas Propane L.P. (“AmeriGas Propane”) purchased all of the interests
in AmeriGas Eagle other than Nartional Propane’s special limited partner interest. Either National Propane or
AmeriGas Propane may require AmeriGas Eagle to repurchase the special limited partner interest. However,
the Company believes it is unlikely that either party would require repurchase prior to 2009 as either
AmeriGas Propane would owe the Company tax indemnification payments if AmeriGas Propane required the
repurchase or the Company would accelerate payment of deferred taxes associated with the July 1999 sale of che
propane business if National Propane required the repurchase.

Triarc has guaranteed obligations under mortgage and equipment notes payable through 2015 (the
“Mortgage and Equipment Notes Guarantee”) which were assumed by subsidiaries of RTM Restaurant Group,
Inc. ("RTM"), the largest franchisee in the Arby’s system, in connection with the May 1997 sale of all 355 of
the then Company-owned restaurants to RTM (the “Restaurant Sale”), of which approximately $44,000,000
and $42,000,000 were outstanding as of December 30, 2001 and December 29, 2002, respectively.

In connection with the Restaurant Sale, substantially all lease obligations associated with the sold
restaurants were also assumed by RTM, although the Company remains contingently liable if the future lease
payments, which extend through 2031 including all then existing extension or renewal option periods, are not
made by RTM (the “Lease Guarantee”). Such lease obligations could aggregate a maximum of approximately
$73,000,000 and $66,000,000 as of December 30, 2001 and December 29, 2002, respectively, assuming RTM
has made all scheduled payments thereof through those dates.

The Company also guarantees certain debt of Encore, as disclosed in Note 23.

The carrying amounts of the Mortgage and Equipment Notes Guarantee, the Lease Guarantee and the
guarantee of Encore senior notes (see Note 23) aggregated $992,000 and $669,000 as of December 30, 2001
and December 29, 2002, respectively. Such carrying amounts are included in “Other liabilities, deferred income

and minority interests in a consolidated subsidiary” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets (see
Note 12).

(23) Transactions with Related Parties

Deferred compensation expense of $1,856,000 and $1,350,000 was recognized in 2001 and 2002,
respectively, for increases in the fair value of the investments in the Deferred Compensation Trusts. Under
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the Company recognized investment
income of 171,000 on the investments in the Deferred Compensation Trusts during 2001 but was not able to
recognize any investment income on the increase in the value of those investments during 2002. This disparity
between compensation expense and investment income recognized will reverse in future periods as either (1) the
investments in the Deferred Compensation Trusts are sold and previously unrealized gains are recognized
without any offsetting increase in compensation expense or (2) the fair values of the investments in the Deferred
Compensation Trusts decrease resulting in the recognition of a reduction of deferred compensation expense
without any offsetting losses recognized in investment income. Investment income on the Deferred
Compensations Trusts is included in “Investment income, net” and Deferred compensation expense is included
in “General and administrative” in the accompanying consolidated income statements. The obligation to the
Executives is reported as “Deferred compensation payable to related parties” and the investments in the
Deferred Compensation Trusts are included in “Investments” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

The Company leased a helicopter until April 4, 2002 from a subsidiary of Triangle Aircraft Services
Corporation (“TASCO”), a company owned by the Executives, under a dry lease which was scheduled to expire
in September 2002. Annual rent for the helicopter was $369,000 from January 19, 2000 through
September 30, 2000, and increased to $382,000 and $392,000 as of October 1, 2000 and October 1, 2001,
respectively, as a result of annual cost of living adjustments. The Company terminated its lease effective
April 1, 2002 and paid $150,000 to TASCO to be released from all of its remaining obligations under the
lease, including a then remaining rental obligation of $196,000. In addition, the Company leased an airplane
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until January 19, 2000 from 280 Holdings, LLC, a then subsidiary of TASCO, pursuant to a dry lease for base
annual rent which as of January 2, 2000 was $3,078,000. On January 19, 2000 the Company acquired the
airplane through its acquisition of 280 Holdings, LLC for $27,210,000 consisting of cash of $9,210,000 and
the assumption of the $18,000,000 Promissory Note. The purchase price was based on independent appraisals
and was approved by the Company’s audit committee and board of directors. Under the terms of the dry lease
for both aircraft, the Company paid the operating expenses, including repairs and maintenance, of the aircraft
directly to third parties. The aggregate expense attributable to lease related payments to TASCO, including che
amortization of a lease option entered into in 1997 aggregated $574,000, $385,000 and $248,000 for 2000,
2001 and 2002, respectively. On January 19, 2000 the Company was reimbursed $1,200,000 by TASCO
representing the return of substantially all of the remaining unamortized amount paid for the lease option.

A class action lawsuit relating to certain awards of compensation to the Executives in 1994 through 1997
was settled effective March 1, 2001 whereby, among other things, (1) the Company received an interest-bearing
note (the “Executives’ Note”) from the Executives, in the aggregate amount of $5,000,000, receivable in three
equal installments due March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 and (2) as set forth in Note 14, the Executives
surrendered an aggregate of 775,000 stock options awarded to them in 1994, The Company recorded the
$5,000,000 during 2001 as a reduction of compensation expense included in “General and administrative” in
the accompanying consolidated income statement for the year ended December 30, 2001, since the settlement
effectively represents an adjustment of prior period compensation expense. The Executives’ Note bore interest
initially at 6% per annum and, in accordance with its terms, was adjusted on April 2, 2001 to 4.92% per
annum and was again adjusted on April 1, 2002 to 1.75%. The Company recorded interest income on the
Executives’ Note of $148,000 and $62,000 during 2001 and 2002, respectively. During 2001 and 2002 the
Company collected the first and second installments aggregating $3,333,000 on the Executives’ Note plus
related interest. The remaining balance of the Executives’ Note of $1,667,000 as of December 29, 2002 is
included in “Receivables” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

The Company’s president and chief operating officer has an equity interest in a franchisee that owns an
Arby’s restaurant. That franchisee is a party to a standard Arby's franchise license agreement and pays to Arby’s
fees and royalty payments that unaffiliated third-party franchisees pay. Under an arrangement that pre-dated
the Sybra Acquisition, Sybra manages the restaurant for the franchisee and has not received any compensation
for its services during 2002.

As part cf its overall retention efforts, the Company has provided certain of its management officers and
employees, including its executive officers, the opportunity to co-invest with the Company in certain
investments and made related loans to management through December 30, 2001. The Company did not enter
into any new co-investments or make any co-investment loans to management officers or employees during
2002 and management notified the Company’s board of directors that the Company does not intend to make
any further co-investment loans. Moreover, under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the Company is not
permitted to make any new loans to its executive officers. The co-investment and corporate opportunity policy,
as amended in May 2001 and approved by the Company’s audit committee, provided that the Company could
make loans to management, not to exceed an aggregate of $5,750,000 principal amount outstanding, where the
Company’s portion of the aggregate co-investment was at least 20%. Each loan could not exceed two-thirds of
the total amount to be invested by any member of management in a co-investment and was to be evidenced by
promissory notes, of which at least one-half were to be recourse notes, secured by such member’s co-investment
shares. The promissory notes were to mature no later than the lesser of (1) five years, (2) the sale of the
investment by the officer or employee or (3) the termination of employment of the officer or employee; and bear
interest at the prime rate payable annually in arrears. The Company and certain of its management had entered
into four co-investments in accordance with this policy: (1) EBT (see Note 8), (2) 280 KPE Holdings, LLC
(“280 KPE"), (3) K12 Inc. (“K12”), a Cost Investment and (4) 280 BT (see Note 6). EBT, 280 KPE and
280 BT are limited liability holding companies principally owned by the Company and present and former
company management that, among other parties, invested in operating companies. The investment in K12,

20




Triarc Companies, {nc. and Subsidiaries

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—CONTINUED
December 29, 2002

however, is directly in the operating company. The underlying investments held by EBT and 280 KPE became
worthless. Information pertaining to each of these co-investments is as follows (dollars in thousands):

EBT 280 KPE K12 280 BT
Ownership percentages at
December 29, 2002:
Company ... ....ovvviiinnen.n. 18.6% 100%(b) 2.7% 57.4%(c)
Present and former company
MANagement. ................ 56.4% — %(b) 0.7% 41.8%
Unaffiliated .. .................. 25.0% — % 96.6% 0.8%
Received from management on date
of co-investment: December 1999 March 2000 July 2001 November 2001
Cash ... o i i, $376 $677 §222 § 825
Recourse notes . ................ 376 600 222 825
Non-recourse notes ............. 376 600 222 825
Management notes outstanding at
December 29, 2002:
Principal balance............... $353 (a) §— (b) $444 $1,550 (¢
Allowance for uncollectible non-
recourse notes (@) ............ (176)(a) — — (393)d)
Accrued interest ............... — — () 9 6
Interest rate (reset annually) . ... 4.25% — 4.75% 4.25%

(a) Reflects the collection of $90,000 in 2002 and an allowance for uncollectible notes established in 2002 for

outstanding non-recourse notes due to the worthlessness of the investments by EBT during 2002. The
related provision for uncollectible notes of $176,000 is included in “General and administrative” in the
accompanying consolidated income statement for 2002. In addition, $5,000 of accrued interest associated
with the non-recourse notes was also written off as a reduction of the “Other interest income” component of
“Other income, net” (see Note 17) in 2002.

(b) Reflects the collection of $3,000 in 2000, the reduction of $762,000 in 2001 for the release for future

investment obligations which were never drawn upon and the write-off of $219,000 in 2001 of non-
recourse notes which were forgiven in 2002 due to the worthlessness of the underlying investments held by
280 KPE and included in “General and administrative” in the accompanying consolidated income
statement for 2001. In addition, $14,000 of accrued interest associated with the non-recourse notes
forgiven was also written off as a reduction of the “Other interest income” component of “Other income,
net” (see Note 17) in 2001. The remaining $216,000 of recourse notes and related accrued interest was
collected during 2002. Prior to the surrender of all their interests in 280 KPE to the Company upon the
forgiveness of the non-recourse notes, present and former company management owned 74.7% and the
Company owned the remaining 25.3% of 280 KPE.

(¢) Reflects the collection of $50,000 in 2002 and the surrender in 2002 by a former Company officer of 1.5%

of his 2.5% co-investment interest in 280 BT to the Company in settlement of a $50,000 non-recourse
loan, which resulted in an increase in the Company’s ownership percentage to 57.4% from 55.9%. Such
settlement resulted in a pretax gain to the Company of $48,000 consisting of a reduction of the minority
interests in 280 BT of $100,000 as a result of the Company now owning the 1.5% surrendered interest less
the $52,000 charge for the extinguishment of the $50,000 non-recourse note and related accrued interest.
The reduction of the minority interests was included as a credit to “Minority interests in loss of a
consolidated subsidiary” and the charge for the extinguishment of the note was included in “General and

(footnotes continued on next page)
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(footnotes continued from previous page)

administrative” in the accompanying consolidated income statement for the year ended December 29,
2002.

(d) Reflects an allowance for uncollectible notes established in 2002 for the portion of the non-recourse notes
which the Company estimates will not be collected due to declines in value of the underlying investments
of 280 BT. The related provision of $393,000 was included in “General and administrative” in 2002,

As indicated above, both the Company and certain of its management officers made a co-investment in
280 BT in November 2001, which was in addition to a cash-only co-investment previously made in May 1998.
280 BT invested all of such November 2001 proceeds in Scientia Preferred Shares. The Company and an officer
who is not one of the Executives and who co-invested in 280 BT had previously invested in ordinary shares (che
“Scientia Ordinary Shares”) of Scientia. The Scientia Ordinary Shates were acquired for a significantly lower cost
per share, while the Scientia Preferred Shares provide for dividend and liquidation preferences. The officer owns
a higher percentage of Scientia Ordinary Shares than the Company owns while the officer owns a lower
percentage of Scientia Preferred Shares than the Company owns. The officer could have indirectly benefited
from the lower average cost of his investments compared with that of the Company’s investments. However,
because of a substantial decline in value of the Scientia Ordinary Shares during 2002, it is unlikely the officer
will realize this benefit.

In addition to the co-investments set forth in the preceding table, the Company and certain of its officers,
including entities controlled by them, have invested in Encore, resulting in the Company owning 7.2% and
present officers collectively owning 17.2% of Encore’s issued and outstanding common stock as of
December 29, 2002. The Company and certain of its then officers and employees had co-invested in Encore
prior to an initial public offering by Encore of its common stock in July 1999 (the “Encore IPO”), resulting in
the Company acquiring an 8.4% share and certain of the present and former officers acquiring a 15.7%
collective share, as adjusted for the effect of the Encore IPO. In October 2002 the Company made a restricted
stock award of 90,000 shares of Encore common stock owned by it to an officer of the Company who is not one
of the Executives and who began serving on Encore’s board of directors. Such award reduced the Company’s
ownership of Encore’s common stock by 1.2% to 7.2%. In connection with this award, the Company recorded
the $72,000 fair market value of the Encore shares as of the date of grant as accrued compensation which is
being amortized to expense ratably over the three-year vesting period of the restricted stock award. An equal
offsetting deferred gain will be amortized to income equally upon each of the three annual vesting dates.

In addition, as disclosed in Note 8, during 2002 the Company, certain of its officers, including entities
controlled by them, and other significant stockholders of Encore invested in the Encore Preferred Stock. If all of
the Encore Preferred Stock were converted, the ownership of the Company and the present officers in Encore
common stock would increase to 13.1% and 23.7%, respectively.

On January 12, 2000 the Company entered into a guarantee (the “Note Guarantee”) of $10,000,000
principal amount of senior notes that mature in January 2007 (the “Encore Notes”) issued by Encore to a major
financial institution. In consideration for the guarantee, the Company received a fee of $200,000 and warrants
to purchase 100,000 shares of Encore common stock at $.01 per share with an estimated fair value on the date
of grant of $305,000. As disclosed in Note 8, during 2002 the outstanding principal amount of the Encore
Notes was reduced from $10,000,000 to $7,250,000. The $10,000,000 guaranteed amount has been reduced to
$6,698,000 as of December 29, 2002 and the guaranteed amount will be further reduced by (1) any repayments
of the Encore Notes, (2) any purchases of the Encore Notes by the Company and (3) the amount of certain
investment banking or financial advisory services fees, if any, paid to the financial insticution or its affiliates or,
under certain citcumstances, other financial institutions by the Company, Encore or another significant
stockholder of Encore or any of their affiliates. The present and former officers of the Company, including
entities controlled by them, who collectively owned 15.7% of Encore as of the Encore IPO, are not parties to
the Note Guarantee and could indirectly benefit from it.
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In addition to the Note Guarantee, the Company and certain other stockholders of Encore, including the
present and former officers of the Company who had invested prior to the Encore IPO, on a joint and several
basis, have entered into guarantees (the “Bank Guarantees”) and certain related agreements to guarantee up to
815,000,000 of revolving credic borrowings of a subsidiary of Encore. The Company would be responsible for
approximately $1,800,000 assuming the full $15,000,000 was borrowed and all of the parties, other than the
Company, to the Bank Guarantees and the related agreements fully perform thereunder. As of Encore’s year end
of December 31, 2002 Encore had 83,933,000 of outstanding revolving credit borrowings. In connection
therewith, at December 29, 2002 the Company had $15,018,000 in an interest-bearing bank custodial account
at the financial institution providing the revolving credit line which under the Bank Guarantees is subject to
set off under certain circumstances if the parties to the Bank Guarantees and related agreements fail to perform
their obligations thereunder. The interest-bearing bank account is included in “Cash (including cash
equivalents)” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 29, 2002.

Encore had encountered cash flow and liquidity difficulties in the past. However, Encore’s liquidity and
capital were positively impacted by the debt forgiveness and preferred stock investment referred to above.
Encore also has returned to profitability, and it reported net income available to common stockholders for its
year ended December 31, 2002. The Company currently believes chat it is unlikely the Company will be
required to make payments under the Note Guarantee and/or the Bank Guarantees.

The Company, the Company’s officers who had invested in Encore prior to the Encore IPO and certain
other stockholders of Encore, through a then newly-formed limited liability company, CTW Funding, LLC
("CTW"), entered into an agreement on October 31, 2000 to make available to Encore a $2,000,000 revolving
credit facility (the “Encore Revolver”) for working capital purposes which was extended through December 31,
2001, at which date it expired unused. The Company owned an 8.7% interest in CTW and, had any
borrowings under the Encore Revolver occurred, all members of CTW would have been required to fund such
borrowings in accordance with their percentage interests. In return for its commitment, CTW received warrants
to purchase a total of 250,000 shares of Encore common stock at $.01 per share with an aggregate estimated
fair value on the dates of grant of $108,000. The Company accounted for its investment in CTW in accordance
with the Equity Method and had equity in the earnings of CTW of $2,000 and $7,000 in 2000 and 2001,
respectively, that were fully offset in 2001 by recognizing equity in losses of Encore. During 2002 CTW
exercised the warrants and was then liquidated, resulting in the Company receiving 21,822 shares of Encore
common stock: Such shares had a less than 0.1% effect on the Company’s ownership percentage of Encore
because of the common shares issued to other members of CTW upon CTW's exercise of the warrants and
liquidation.

The Company also has related party transactions disclosed in Note 14 consisting of the Class B
Repurchases from the Posner Entities and stock-based compensation.

(24) Legal and Environmental Matters

In 2001, a vacant property owned by Adams, a non-operating subsidiary, was listed by the United States
Environmental Protection Agency on the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability
Information System (“CERCLIS") list of known or suspected contaminated sites. The CERCLIS listing appears
to have been based on an allegation that a former tenant of Adams conducted drum recycling operations at the
site from some time prior to 1971 until the late 1970s. The business operations of Adams were sold in
December 1992. Adams engaged an environmental consultant that, under the supervision of the Florida
Department of Environmental Protection (the “FDEP”), conducted an investigation of the site that was
intended to develop additional information on the extent and nature of the soil and groundwater contamination
and the appropriate remediation for that contamination. Adams’ environmental consultant has submitted to the
FDEP a summary of the results of this investigation and Adams and the FDEP have negotiated a work plan for
further investigation of the site and limited remediation of the identified contamination. The work plan is
embodied in a consent order between Adams and the FDEP. The consent order has been executed by Adams
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and by the FDEP subsequent to December 29, 2002 and is effective, subject to a petition for administrative
hearing being filed during the statutory public comment period. Based on a preliminary cost estimate of
approximately $1,000,000 for completion of the work plan developed by Adams’ environmental consultant
and, after taking into consideration various legal defenses available to the Company, including Adams, Adams
has provided for its estimate of its liability for this matter, including related legal and consulting fees. Such
provision was made primarily during the year ended December 29, 2002 principally as a reduction of “Gain
(loss) on sale of businesses” in the accompanying consolidated income statement for the year ended
December 29, 2002 since the provision represents an adjustment to the previously recorded gain on the sale of
Adams.

On March 23, 1999 a stockholder filed a complaint on behalf of persons who held Triarc Class A Common
Stock as of March 10, 1999 which, as amended in April 2000, alleged that the Company’s tender offer
statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission in 1999, pursuant to which the Company
repurchased 3,805,015 shares of its Class A Common Stock for $18.25 per share, was materially false and
misleading. The amended complaint sought damages in an unspecified amount, together with prejudgment
interest, the costs of suit, including attorneys’ fees, an order permitting all stockholders who tendered their
shares in the tender offer to rescind the transaction and unspecified other relief. The amended complaint names
the Company and the Executives as defendants. Gn October 17, 2002 the court presiding over the matter
granted the Company’s motion to dismiss this action and subsequently entered a judgment dismissing the case.
On November 21, 2002 the plaintiff filed a notice of appeal. Subsequent to December 29, 2002, the plaintiff
withdrew the appeal.

In October 1998, various class action lawsuits were filed on behalf of the Company’s stockholders. Each of
these actions names the Company, the Executives and members of the Company’s Board of Directors as
defendants. On March 26, 1999, certain plaintiffs in these actions filed an amended complaint making
allegations substantially similar to those asserted in the March 23, 1999 action described in the preceding
patagraph. In October 2000, the plaintiffs agreed to stay this action pending determination of the March 23,
1999 action disclosed in the preceding paragraph.

In addition to the environmental matter and stockholder lawsuits described above, the Company is
involved in other litigation and claims incidental to its business. Triarc and its subsidiaries have reserves for all
of their legal and environmental matters aggregating $2,700,000 as of December 29, 2002. Although the
outcome of such matters cannot be predicted with certainty and some of these matters may be disposed of
unfavorably to the Company, based on currently available information, including legal defenses available to
Triarc and/or its subsidiaries, and given the aforementioned reserves, the Company does not believe that the
outcome of its legal and environmental matters will have a material adverse effect on its consolidated financial
position or results of operations.
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(25) Quarterly Information (Unaudited)

Quarter Ended

April 1, (b)

July 1,

September 30,

December 30,

(In Thousands Except Per Share Amounts)

2001
Revenues, investment income and other
income (@) (€).....ccuviiin $36,677
Income (loss) from continuing operations
before income taxes and minority

$39,716

2,900
960

38,517

39,477

.04
1.73
1.77

.04
1.64
1.68

430,268

(1,214)
(1,768)

(1,768)

(.08)

(.08)

(.08)

(.08)

Quarter Ended

$30,485

1,324
1,566

4,933
6,499

.08
.24
.32

.07
23
30

June 30,

September 29,

December 29,

(In Thousands Except Per Share Amounts)

interests (a) . ..., 14,400
Income (loss) from continuing
operations (b) .......... ... o 8,208
Income from discontinued operations
(Note 18) ... —
Net income (loss) ..................... 8,208
Basic income (loss) per share (c):
Continuing operations ............. 37
Discontinued operations ........... —
Net income (loss)................. .37
Diluted income (loss) per share (c):
Continuing operations ............. 35
Discontinued operations ........... —
Net income (loss) . ................ 35
March 31,
2002
Revenues, investment income and other

income (d) (&) ....... ... .. ... ..., $27,873
Income (loss) from continuing operations
before income taxes and minority

LOCETESES o v v v et e e e e e et et (749)
Income (loss) from continuing operations (1,046)
Income from discontinued operations

(Note 18) ...t —

o Net income (loss) ................co .. (1,046)
Basic income (loss) per share (c):
Continuing operations . ............ (.05)
Discontinued operations ........... —
Net income (10sS)................. (.05)
Diluted income (loss) per share (c):
Continuing operations ............. (.05}
Discontinued operations ........... —
Net income (loss)................. (.05)

(2) Revenues, investment income and other income for the quarters ended July 1, 2001, September 30, 2001
and December 30, 2001 and income from continuing operations before income taxes and minority interests
for the quarter ended December 30, 2001 have been reclassified to conform with the accompanying 2001

full year consolidated income statement.

$19,046

(10,024)
(7,511)

(7,511)

(.37)

(.37)

(.37)

(.37)

$25,657

(6,146)
(2,555)

(2,555)

(.12)

(.12)

(.12)

(.12)

(footnotes continued om next page)

$26,197

285
1,355

11,100
12,455

.07
.54
61

.06
52
58
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(footnotes continued from previous page)

(b) The income from continuing operations for the quarter ended April 1, 2001 was materially affected by a
credit of $5,000,000, or $3,200,000 net of income tax provision of $1,800,000, upon the receipt of che
Executives’ Note in connection with the settlement of a class action lawsuit involving certain awards of
compensation to the Executives (see Note 23).

(c) Basic and diluted income (loss) per share have been computed consistently with the annual calculations
explained in Note 4. Basic and diluted income (loss) per share are the same for the quarter ended
September 30, 2001 and for each of the first three quarters of 2002 since all potentially dilutive securities
would have had an antidilutive effect based on the loss from continuing operations in each of those
quarters.

(d) Revenues, investment income and other income for the quarter ended June 30, 2002 reflect certain
reclassifications from the Company’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q to conform with the accompanying
2002 full year consolidated statement of operations.

(e) Revenues are not significantly impacted by seasonality although they are somewhat lower in the first
quarter. However, investment income for each quarter is significantly impacted by, among other things,
fluctuations in interest rates earned on the Company’s investments, timing of sales of investments with
unrecognized gains or losses and the timing of the recognition of Other Than Temporary Losses.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

Not applicable.

PART I

Items 10, 11, 12 and 13.

The information required by items 10, 11, 12 and 13 will be furnished on or prior to April 29, 2003 (and
is hereby incorporated by reference) by an amendment hereto or pursuant to a definitive proxy statement
involving the election of directors pursuant to Regulation 14A which will contain such information.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, information appearing in the sections “Executive Compensation Report of the
Compensation Committee and Performance Compensation Subcommittee” and “Stock Price Performance
Graph” shall not be deemed to be incorporated by reference in this Form 10-K.

Item 14. Controls And Procedures

Our management, including our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer,
evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures within 90 days prior to the filing date of
this annual report. There are inherent limitations to the effectiveness of any system of disclosure controls and
procedures however well designed, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention or
overriding of the controls and procedures. Accordingly, even effective disclosure controls and procedures can
only provide reasonable assurance of achieving their control objectives. Notwithstanding these limitations,
based upon and as of the date of the evaluation, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that information required
to be included in the reports we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported as and when required. No significant changes were made to our internal
controls or in other factors that could significantly affect these controls subsequent to the date of their
evaluation.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, And Reports On Form 8-K.
(a) 1. Financial Statements:
See Index to Financial Statemencs (Item 8).
2. Financial Statement Schedules:

All schedules have been omitted since they are either not applicable or the information is contained
elsewhere in “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”

3. Exhibits:

Copies of the following exhibits are available at a charge of $.25 per page upon written request to the
Secretary of Triarc at 280 Park Avenue, New York, New York 10017.

Exhibic
No. Description

2.1 —Agreement and Plan of Merger dated September 15, 2000, among Cadbury Schweppes plc, CSN
Acquisition Inc., CRC Acquisition Inc., Triarc Companies, Inc., Snapple Beverage Group, Inc. and
Royal Crown Company, Inc., incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Triarc’s Current Report
on Form 8-K dated September 20, 2000 (SEC file no. 1-2207).

2.2 —Triarc Companies, Inc.’s Third Amended Joint Plan of Reorganization Under Chapter 11 of the
Bankruptcy Code for ICH Corporation, Sybra, Inc. and Sybra of Connecticut, Inc., dated
November 22, 2002, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Triarc’s Current Report on
Form 8-K dated November 27, 2002 (SEC file no. 1-2207).
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No.

2.3

24

3.1
3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

10.1

10.2

10.3
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10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

Description

—Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Order Under Section 112%a) of the Bankruptcy Code and
Rule 3020'of the Bankruptcy Rules Confirming Triarc Companies, Inc.’s Third Amended Joint Plan of
Reorganization Under Chapter 11 for ICH Corporation, Sybra, Inc. and Sybra of Connecticut, Inc.,
dated November 22, 2002, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to Triarc’s Current Report
on Form 8-K dated November 27, 2002 (SEC file no. 1-2207).

—Purchase and Funding Agreement dated as of December 27, 2002 between Triarc Restaurant
Holdings, LLC and 1.C.H. Corporation, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to TriarcC’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 27, 2002 (SEC file no. 1-2207).

—Certificate of Incorporation of Triarc, as currently in effect, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to Triarc’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 9, 2001 (SEC file no. 1-2207).

—By-laws of Triarc, as currently in effect, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Triarc’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 12, 2002 (SEC file no. 1-2207).

~—Master Agreement dated as of May 5, 1997, among Franchise Finance Corporation of America, FFCA
Acquisition Corporation, FFCA Mortgage Corporation, Triarc, Arby’s Restaurant Development
Corporation (“ARDC”), Arby’s Restaurant Holding Company (*“ARHC”), Arby’s Restaurant Operations
Company (“AROC”), Arby’s, RTM Operating Company, RTM Development Company, RTM Partners,
Inc. (“Holdco”), RTM Holding Company, Inc., RTM Management Company, LLC and RTM, Inc.
(“RTM"), incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.16 to Triarc’s Registration Statement on
Form S-4 dated October 22, 1997 (SEC file no. 1-2207).

—Indenture dated as of February 9, 1998 between Triarc Companies, Inc. and The Bank of New York, as
Truscee, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Triarc’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A
dated March 6, 1998 (SEC file no. 1-2207).

—Supplemental Indenture No. 1, dated as of October 25, 2000, by and among Triarc Companies, Inc.,
SBG Holdings Inc. and The Bank of New York, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to
Triarc’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 8, 2000 (SEC file no. 1-2207).

—Indencure dated as of November 21, 2000 among Arby’s Franchise Trust, as issuer, Ambac Assurarnce
Corporation, as insurer, and BNY Midwest Trust Company, a Bank of New York Company, as
Indenture Trustee, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Triarc’s Current Report on
Form 8-K dated March 30, 2001 (SEC file no. 1-2207).

—Triarc’s 1993 Equity Participation Plan, as amended, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to Triarc’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 31, 1997 (SEC file no. 1-2207).

—Form of Non-Incentive Stock Option Agreement under Triarc’s Amended and Restated 1993 Equity
Participation Plan, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Triarc’s Current Report on
Form 8-K dated March 31, 1997 (SEC file no. 1-2207).

—Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under Triarc’s Amended and Restated 1993 Equity Participation
Plan, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 13 to Triarc’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
April 23, 1993 (SEC file no. 1-2207).

—PForm of Indemnification Agreement, between Triarc and certain officers, directors, and employees of
Triarc, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit F to the 1994 Proxy (SEC file no. 1-2207).
—Guaranty dated as of May 5, 1997 by RTM, RTM Parent, Holdco, RTMM and RTMOC in favor of
Arby’s, ARDC, ARHC, AROC and Triarc, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.31 to

Triarc’s Registration Statement on Form $-4 dated October 22, 1997 (SEC file no. 1-2207). '

—Triarc Companies, Inc. 1997 Equity Participation Plan (the “1997 Equity Plan”), incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Triarc’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 16, 1998 (SEC file
no. 1-2207).

—Form of Non-Incentive Stock Option Agreement under the 1997 Equity Plan, incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Triarc’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 16, 1998 (SEC file
no. 1-2207).

—Triarc’s 1998 Equity Participation Plan, as currently in effect, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Triarc’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 13, 1998 (SEC file no. 1-2207).

—Form of Non-Incentive Stock Option Agreement under Triarc’s 1998 Equity Participation Plan,

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Triarc’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
May 13, 1998 (SEC file no. 1-2207).

10.10—Form of Guaranty Agreement dated as of March 23, 1999 among National Propane Corporation,
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Triatc Companies, Inc. and Nelson Peltz and Peter W. May, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.30 to Triarc’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 3, 1999 (SEC
file no. 1-2207).




Exhibit
No. Description

10.11—1999 Executive Bonus Plan, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit A to Triarc’s 1999 Proxy
Statement (SEC file no. 1-2207).

10.12—Employment Agreement dated as of May 1, 1999 between Triarc and Nelson Peltz, incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Triarc’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 30, 2000
(SEC file no. 1-2207).

10.13—Employment Agreement dated as of May 1, 1999 between Triarc and Peter W. May, incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Triarc's Cutrent Report on Form 8-K dated March 30, 2000
(SEC file no. 1-2207).

10.14—Employment Agreement dated as of February 24, 2000 between Triarc and Brian L. Schorr,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Triarc’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
March 30, 2000 (SEC file no. 1-2207).

10.15—Deferral Plan for Senior Executive Officers of Triarc Companies, Inc., incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to Triarc’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 30, 2001 (SEC file no. 1-2207).

10.16—Trust Agreement for the Deferral Plan for Senior Executive Officers of Triarc Companies, Inc., dated as
of January 23, 2001, between Triarc and Wilmington Trust Company, as trustee, incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Triarc’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 30, 2001 (SEC file
no. 1-2207).

10.17—Trust Agreement for the Deferral Plan for Senior Executive Officers of Triarc Companies, Inc., dated as
of January 23, 2001, between Triarc and Wilmington Trust Company, as trustee, incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Triarc’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 30, 2001 (SEC file
no. 1-2207).

10.18—Tax Agreement dated as of September 15, 2000, by and among Cadbury Schweppes plc, SBG
Holdings, Inc., Triatc Companies, Inc. and Triarc Consumer Products Group, LLC, incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Triarc’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 20, 2000 (SEC
file no. 1-2207).

10.19—Indemnity Agreement, dated as of October 25, 2000 between Cadbury Schweppes plc and Triarc
Companies, Inc., incorporated hetein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Triarc’s Current Report on
Form 8-K dated November 8, 2000 (SEC file no. 1-2207).

10.20—S8ervicing Agreement, dated as of November 21, 2000, among Arby’s Franchise Trust, as Issuer, Arby’s,
Inc., as Servicer, and BNY Midwest Trust Company, a Bank of New York Company, as Indenture
Trustee, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Triarc’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated March 30, 2001 (SEC file no. 1-2207).

10.21—Promissory Note, dated April 1, 2000, issued by Nelson Peltz and Peter W. May to Triarc in the
original principal amount of $5,000,000, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Triarc’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 30, 2001 (SEC file no. 1-2207).

10.22—Stipulation and Agreement of Compromise, Settlement and Release, dated August 17, 2000,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Triarc’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
March 30, 2001 (SEC file no. 1-2207).

10.23—First Amendment to the Trust Agreement for the Deferral Plan for Senior Executive Officers of Triarc
Companies, Inc., dated as of April 6, 2001, between Triarc Companies, Inc. and Wilmington Trust
Company, as trustee, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Triarc’s Cutrent Report on
Form 8-K dated August 14, 2001 (SEC file no. 1-2207).

10.24—First Amendment to the Trust Agreement for the Deferral Plan for Senior Executive Officers of Triarc
Companies, Inc., dated as of April 6, 2001, between Triarc Companies, Inc. and Wilmington Trust
Company, as trustee, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Triarc’s Cutrent Report on
Form 8-K dated August 14, 2001 (SEC file no. 1-2207).

10.25—Aircraft Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated June 19, 2001, by and between Meadowlark
Acquisitions, Inc. and AP IV Holdings, Inc., incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
Triarc’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 27, 2002 (SEC file no. 1-2207).

10.26—Triarc’s 2002 Equity Participation Plan, as currently in effect, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit A to Triarc’s 2002 Proxy Statement (SEC file no. 1-2207).

10.27—Form of Non-Incentive Stock Option Agreement under Triarc’s 2002 Equity Participation Plan,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Triarc’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
March 27, 2003 (SEC file no. 1-2207).

21.1 —Subsidiaries of the Registrant*

23.1 —Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP*
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23.2 —Consent of Ernst & Young LLP*
23.3 —Consent of BDO Seidman, LLP*
99.1 —Consolidated Financial Statements of Encore Capital Group, Inc.*

*

(b)

(d)
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Filed herewith

Instruments defining the rights of holders of certain issues of long-term debt of Triarc and its consolidated
subsidiaries have not been filed as exhibirs to this Form 10-K because the authorized principal amount of
any one of such issues does not exceed 10% of the total assets of Triarc and its subsidiaries on a
consolidated basis. Triarc agrees to furnish a copy of each of such instruments to the Commission upon
request.

Reports on Form 8-K:

On November 12, 2002, Triarc filed a Current Report on Form 8-K, which included information under
Item 7 of such form.

On November 27, 2002, Triarc filed a Current Report on Form 8-K, which included information under
Items 5 and 7 of such form.

On December 27, 2002, Triarc filed a Current Report on Form 8-K, which included information under
Items 5 and 7 of such form.

Separate financial statements of subsidiaries not consolidated and fifty percent or less owned persons:

The consolidated financial statements of Encore Capital Group Inc. (formerly known as MCM Capital
Group, Inc.), an investment of the Company accounted for in accordance with the equity method, are
hereby incorporated by reference from Item 8. “Consolidated Financial Statements” from the Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 of Encore Capital Group, Inc. (SEC file
no. 000-26489). A copy of the consolidated financial statements incorporated by reference in this Item
14(d) is included as Exhibit 99.1 to this Form 10-K.




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Triarc Companies, Inc.
(Registrant)

NEeLsoN PrLTZ

Nelson Peltz
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Dated: March 28, 2003

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below on
March 28, 2003 by the following persons on behalf of the registrant in the capacities indicated.

Signature Titles
,,,,,,,,,,, Newson Perrz ~ Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, and Director (Principal
(Nelson Peltz) Executive Officer)
........... PETER W. May President and Chief Operating Officer, and Director (Principal
(Peter W. May) Operating Officer)
_______ Francis T. McCARRON  Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (Principal
(Francis T. McCarron) Financial Officer)
......... FrRep H. SCHAEFER ~ Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer (Principal
(Fred H. Schaefer) Accounting Officer)
HucH L. CAREY Director

(Hugh L. Carey)

CLIvE CHAJET Director

Josepr A. LeEvAaTO Director

(Joseph A. Levato)

Davip E. ScHwaB II Director

(David E. Schwab II)

RaymMoND S. TROUBH Director

(Raymond S. Troubh)

GERALD T5sal, JR. Director

(Gerald Tsai, Jr.)
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CERTIFICATIONS

I, Nelson Peltz, the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Triarc Companies, Inc., certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Triarc Companies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
| omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
w such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
| annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows
| of the registranc as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

| 4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and
have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

|

\

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within
90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and
|

|

|

¢) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for
the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether there were
significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls
subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: March 28, 2003

NELsON PELTZ

Nelson Peltz
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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CERTIFICATIONS

1, Francis T. McCarron, the Senior Vice Presidenc and Chief Financial Officer of Triarc Companies, Inc.,
certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Triarc Companies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows
of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and
have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within
90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

¢) presented in this annual report our conclusions abour the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for
the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether there were
significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls
subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: March 28, 2003

Francis T. McCARRON

Francis T. McCarron
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT 210.1

Triarc Companies, Inc.
LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES AS OF
March 15, 2003

State or Jurisdiction

Subsidiary ) Under Which Organized
Triarc Acquisition, LLC (formerly, Arby's Acquisition, LLC) Delaware
Triarc Restaurant Holdings, LLC Delaware
Arby’s, Inc. Delaware
Arby’s Holdings, LLC Delaware
Arby’s Finance, LLC Delaware
Arby’s Franchise Trust Delaware
Arby’s Brands, LLC Delaware
Arby’s IP Holder Trust Delaware
Arby’s Building and Construction Co. Georgia
Arby’s of Canada Inc. Ontario
ARHC, LLC Delaware
Sybra, Inc. Michigan
Sybra of Connecticut, Inc. Connecticut
VA Funding Corp. Delaware
BNY Funding, LLC Delaware
Triarc Consumer Products Group, LLC Delaware
RCAC, LLC Delaware
Madison West Associates Corp. Delaware
280 BT Holdings LLC (1) New York
National Propane Corporation (2) Delaware
NPC Holding Corporation Delaware
Citrus Acquisition Corporation Florida
Adams Packing Association, Inc. (formerly New Adams, Inc.) Delaware
Home Furnishing Acquisition Corporation Delaware
1725 Contra Costa Property, Inc. (formerly Couroc of Monterey, Inc.) Delaware
GVT Holdings, Inc. (3) Delaware
TXL Corp. (formerly Graniteville Company) ' South Carolina
SEPSCQO, 1ILC Delaware
Crystal Ice & Cold Storage, Inc. Delaware
Triarc Holdings 1, Inc. Delaware
Triarc Holdings 2, Inc. Delaware
Triarc Asset Management, LLC Delaware
SYH Holdings, Inc. (formerly, Ramapo Holding Company, Inc.) Delaware
280 Holdings, LLC Delaware
280 Holdings II, Inc. Delaware
Triarc AGR Investments, LLC Delaware
DSR Holdings, Inc. Delaware
280 Holding Company, Inc. Delaware
TPH Holdings LLC Delaware

(1) 57.4% owned by Madison West Associates Corp., 41.8% owned by present and former officers of Triarc
Companies, Inc. and 0.8% owned by unaffiliated third parties.

(2) 24.3% owned by SEPSCO, LLC and 75.7% owned by Triarc Companies, Inc.
(3) 50% owned by Triarc Companies, Inc. and 50% owned by SEPSCO, LLC.
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EXHIBIT 23.1

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ CONSENT

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos. 33-60551, 333-44711,
333-50051, 333-82069 and 333-97569 of Triarc Companies, Inc. on Form $-8 of our report dated March 27,
2003 (which report expresses an unqualified opinion and includes an explanatory paragraph relating to a change
in method of accounting), appearing in the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Triarc Companies, Inc. for the

fiscal year ended December 29, 2002.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

New York, New York
March 27, 2003
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EXRIBIT 23.2

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos. 33-60551, 333-44711,
333-50051, 333-82069 and 333-97569 of Triarc Companies, Inc. on Form S-8 and in the related Prospectuses
of our report dated February 2, 2001, with respect to the consolidated financial statements of Encore Capital
Group, Inc. (formerly MCM Capital Group, Inc.) for the year ended December 31, 2000, included as
Exhibit 99.1 to this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 29, 2002.

Ernst & Young LLP

Kansas City, Missourt
March 26, 2003

106




EXHiIBIT 23.3

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos. 33-60551, 333-44711,
333-50051, 333-82069 and 333-97569 of Triarc Companies, Inc. on Form S-8 of our report dated February 18,
2003, except for Note 16 as to which the date is March 25, 2003, with respect to the consolidated financial
statements of Encore Capital Group, Inc., formerly MCM Capital Group, Inc., as of and for each of the years
ended December 31, 2001 and 2002, included at page 1 of Exhibit 99.1 to this Annual Report on Form 10-XK.

/sy BDO SEIDMAN, LLP

Orange County, California
March 26, 2003
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